
 AGENDA 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

                                    
Motto:  "Opportunity Through Diversity; Unity Through Cooperation." 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 

 
 
  
 Mission Statement: "The City of Watsonville is dedicated to improving the economic vitality, safety & living environment for the 
culturally rich Watsonville community, by providing leadership for the achievement of community goals & high quality, responsive 
public services." 
 

Mayor Dr. Nancy A. Bilicich, District 7 
Mayor Pro Tempore Felipe Hernandez, District 1 

 
Karina Cervantez, Council Member, District 2 

Lowell Hurst, Council Member, District 3 
Jimmy Dutra, Council Member, District 4 

Rebecca J. Garcia, Council Member, District 5 
Trina Coffman-Gomez, Council Member, District 6 

 
Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

Alan J. Smith, City Attorney 
Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 

 
CIVIC PLAZA COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

275 MAIN STREET, 4
th

 FLOOR, 6
TH

 LEVEL PARKING 
WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 

Americans with Disabilities Act 
 

The Council Chambers is an accessible facility.  If you wish to attend a meeting and you will require 
assistance in order to attend and/or participate, please call the City Clerk's Office at least five (5) 
days in advance of the meeting to make arrangements. The City of Watsonville TDD number is (831) 
763-4075. 

 

Meetings are televised live on Charter Cable Communications Channel 70 and AT&T 

Channel 99 Meetings are televised live on Charter Cable Communications Channel 70 

and AT&T Channel 99 and re-broadcast on Thursday at 5:00 p.m. and Saturday at 8:00 

a.m. the same week of the meeting. 
For information regarding this agenda or interpretation services, please call the City Clerk's Office at (831) 768-3040. 

 

INTERPRETATION SERVICES 
Spanish language interpretation is available 

 



AGENDA 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE 

REGULAR JOINT CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
FOR THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 

February 24, 2015 City Council Chambers  
275 Main Street, 4th Floor 

4:30 P.M. 

1.0 ROLL CALL 

4.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items appearing on the Consent Agenda are recommended actions which are considered to be routine and will 
be acted upon as one consensus motion. Any items removed will be considered immediately after the consensus 
motion. The Mayor will allow public input prior to the approval of the Consent Agenda. 

Public Input on any Consent Agenda Item 

4.1 RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS & CALLING FOR 
BIDS FOR RAMSAY PARK SOFTBALL FIELD LIGHTING RENOVATION 
PROJECT NO. PK—15-1 (Recommended by Parks & Community Service 
Director Espinoza) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution 

4.2 RESOLUTION AWARDING $401,115 BID TO TRIDENT CONTRACTORS, INC., 
FOR SCHOOL CROSSINGS UPGRADES PROJECT NO. ST-14-03 & 
AUTHORIZING BUDGET APPROPRIATION OF $61,500 FROM GAS TAX 
FUND ($305,000 OF PROJECT COST WILL BE REIMBURSED FROM SAFE 
ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROGRAM GRANT FUNDINT) (Recommended by 
Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution 

4.3 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION FOR 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FOR A $1,300,000, “LOW INTEREST” RATE LOAN 
FROM THE STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD FOR THE 
PLANNING, DESIGN, & CONSTRUCTION OF THE MAÑANA LANE SEWER 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT (Recommended by Public Works & Utilities Director 
Palmisano) 
(a) Staff Report 
(b) Resolution Authorizing Submittal of Application for Financial Assistance 

for a $1,300,000, “Low Interest” Rate Loan from State Water Resources 
Control Board for Planning, Design, & Construction of Mañana Lane 
Sewer Replacement Project 

(c) Resolution Pledging Wastewater Funds to Pay for Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund Financing Necessary to Construct Mañana Lane Sewer 
Replacement Project, Estimated to Cost $1,300,000 

(d) Resolution Statement of Intention Regarding Borrowing State Funds to 
Finance Construction of Mañana Lane Sewer Replacement Project 

1 
P:\Agendas\2015\CC022415.Docx 
2/19/2015 5:20 PM 



4.4 RESOLUTION APPOINTING TONY TAPIZ AS MEMBER TO LIBRARY BOARD 
[District 3]  
--Application 
--Resolution 

4.5 RESOLUTION APPOINTING CATHERINE E. PEREZ AS MEMBER TO 
LIBRARY BOARD [Districts 4] 
--Application 
--Resolution 

4.6 RESOLUTION NOMINATING COUNCIL MEMBER REBECCA J. GARCIA TO 
THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ LATINO AFFAIRS COMMISSION FOR A 
FOUR-YEAR TERM 

4.7 RESOLUTION NOMINATING BOB MARTIN DEL CAMPO FOR APPOINTMENT 
TO THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ADVISORY 
COMMISSION FOR A FOUR-YEAR TERM  

4.8 JOINT RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
CITY/SUCCESSOR AGENCY FOURTH LOAN AGREEMENT IN AN 
ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $58,000 FOR ENFORCEABLE 
OBLIGATIONS, ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES & PROJECT RELATED 
EXPENSES (Recommended by Administrative Services Director Vega) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution 

5.0 ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL 

9.0 REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS 

9.1 PUBLIC OUTREACH MEETING: STRUCTURAL DEFICIT—DEFINING 
CHALLENGES PRESENTED BY SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT 
DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER CLIFFORD—15 Min.—No Action Required 
(a) Oral Report 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Input 

9.2 PRESENTATION ON POTENTIAL FOR REGIONAL ORGANICS PROCESSING 
PROGRAM TO MEET NEW STATE WASTE MANDATES—10 Min.—No Action 
Required 
(a) Oral Report 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Input 

5:30 P.M. 

10.0 CLOSED SESSION 
(City Council Conference Room, 275 Main Street, 4th Floor) 

2 
P:\Agendas\2015\CC022415.Docx 
2/19/2015 5:20 PM 



(a) Public Comments regarding the Closed Session agenda will only be accepted by the City 
Council at this time. 

(b) Closed Session Announcement 
The City Council will now recess to discuss those items listed on the Closed Session 
Statement attached to the Agenda. 

6:30 P.M. 

1.0 ROLL CALL 

2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3.0 PRESENTATIONS & ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

3.1 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC & CITY COUNCIL 
(This time is set aside for members of the general public to address the Council on any item not on 
the Council Agenda, which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council. No action or 
discussion shall be taken on any item presented except that any Council Member may respond to 
statements made or questions asked, or may ask questions for clarification.  All matters of an 
administrative nature will be referred to staff. All matters relating to Council will be noted in the 
minutes and may be scheduled for discussion at a future meeting or referred to staff for clarification 
and report. Any Council Member may place matters brought up under Oral Communications on a 
future agenda. ALL SPEAKERS ARE ASKED TO FILL OUT A BLUE CARD & LEAVE IT AT THE 
TABLE DESIGNATED NEAR THE PODIUM, GO TO THE PODIUM AND ANNOUNCE THEIR 
NAME AND ADDRESS IN ORDER TO OBTAIN AN ACCURATE RECORD FOR THE MINUTES 
OF THE MEETING.) 

3.2 REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

6.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES, & APPEALS 

6.1 CLIMATE ACTION PLAN & ESTABLISHMENT OF CARBON FUND PROGRAM 
(Recommended by Acting Community Development Director Boyle)—Continued 
from February 10, 2015 
(a) Staff Report 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Hearing 
(d) City Council Discussion 
(e) Resolution Adopting City of Watsonville Climate Action Plan 
(f) Resolution Approving Initial Study & Mitigated Negative Declaration for 

Climate Action Plan & Carbon Fund for City of Watsonville 
(g) Ordinance Introduction Adding New Chapter 51 (Carbon Fund Program) 

of Title 14 (Zoning) of Watsonville Municipal Code to Establish Carbon 
Fund Fee to Assist in Achieving Climate Related Goals as Prioritized in 
Climate Action for City 

8.0 NEW BUSINESS 

8.1 COMPLIANCE OF NEW STATE-MANDATED CHROMIUM 6 DRINKING 
WATER REGULATION, AGREEMENT WITH CORONA 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING FOR PRELIMINARY DESIGN OF 
TREATMENT SYSTEMS, & AGREEMENT WITH RAFTELIS FINANCIAL 
CONSULTANTS, INC. FOR UTILITIES FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND 

3 
P:\Agendas\2015\CC022415.Docx 
2/19/2015 5:20 PM 



RATE STUDY (Recommended by Public Works & Utilities Director 
Palmisano)  
(a) Staff Reports 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Input 
(d) City Council Discussion 
(e) Resolution Approving Agreement with Corona Environmental Consulting, 

LLC., for Preliminary Design of Treatment Systems Necessary to Comply 
with New State Mandated Chromium 6 Drinking Water Regulations, in an 
Amount not to Exceed $560,520 & Authorizing $560,520 Budget 
Appropriation from Water Enterprise Fund  

(f) Resolution Approving Agreement With Raftelis Financial Consultants, 
Inc., for Preparing a Cost of Service Analysis & Rate Study for City’s 
Water, Wastewater, & Solid Waste Enterprise Funds, in an Amount not to 
Exceed $96,560; Authorizing a $96,560 Budget Appropriation: $32,187 
from Water Enterprise Fund, $32,187 from Wastewater Enterprise Fund, 
& $32,187 From Solid Waste Enterprise Fund 

10.1 REQUESTS & SCHEDULING FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

10.2 EMERGENCY ITEMS ADDED TO AGENDA 

10.3 INFORMATION ITEMS—Written Report(s) Only 
(a) Report of Disbursements 
(b) Miscellaneous Documents 

11.0 ADJOURNMENT 

Pursuant to Section 54954.2(a)(1) of the Government Code of the State of California, this agenda was posted at least 72 
hours in advance of the scheduled meeting at a public place freely accessible to the public 24 hours a day and on the City 
of Watsonville website at www.cityofwatsonville.org. 

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office (275 Main Street, 4th Floor) during normal business hours. Such documents are 
also available on the City of Watsonville website at www.cityofwatsonville.org subject to staff’s ability to post the document 
before the meeting.

4 
P:\Agendas\2015\CC022415.Docx 
2/19/2015 5:20 PM 

http://www.ci.watsonville.ca.us/
http://www.cityofwatsonville.org/








Page 1 of 2

P:\CityCouncil\StaffReports\2015\February 24\RamsaySoftballlightingcallforbid021115.doc 

City of Watsonville 
Parks and Community Services Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: February 17, 2015 

TO: Marcela Tavantzis, City Manager Pro Tempore 

FROM: Ana Espinoza, Director Parks & Community Services  
Robert Berry, Public Works & Utilities Project Manager 

SUBJECT: Call for Bids for Ramsay Park Softball Field  Lighting 
Renovation Project PK15-1 

AGENDA ITEM:      February 24, 2015 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the Resolution Calling for Bids for the renovation 
of   Ramsay Park Softball Field Lighting Park (No. PK15-1).  The engineer’s estimate for the 
project is $192,000.  Funds for the project are allocated from the Park In Lieu Fees.  

DISCUSSION: 

In November 2014, the City’s Risk Management staff conducted a review of the light poles at 
the Ramsay Park Softball Field and it was determined that the light poles and lighting system 
required to be replaced and improved for overall safety and operational efficiency. The light 
poles were installed around 1966. The current lighting system is quite outdated and 
replacement parts are not readily available, therefore, this is a priority project. 

The field is the City’s sole adult softball facility.  The Parks and Community Services 
Department operates an adult softball league consisting of two seasons (Fall & Spring with  
approximately 700 participants.  The majority of the games are played at night.   

Bids will be opened on March 26, 2015 at 11:00 AM and the City Council will award the bid at 
their meeting on April 14, 2015 .  It is anticipated that construction would begin by the 
beginning of May 2015.    

CITY COUNCIL 4.1



Page 2 of 2 

 
2/17/2015 8:08:45 AM 
 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN: 
City Council’s adoption of this resolution is consistent with the Council’s goals of improving the 
City’s infrastructure  and image by improving the safety, accessibility  and providing amenities 
at City parks for the benefit of the public. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The estimated project cost is $192,000 which will be funded from Park in Lieu Fees.  
 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The City Council may choose not to call for bids.   
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
None.  
 
 
 
cc: City Attorney 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND 
CALLING FOR BIDS FOR THE RAMSAY PARK SOFTBALL FIELD 
LIGHTING RENOVATION PROJECT, NO. PK15-1 (ESTIMATED COST 
OF $192,000 WILL BE FUNDED FROM PARK IN LIEU FEES)  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the plans and specifications for the Ramsay Park Softball Field

Lighting Renovation Project, No. PK15-1, copies of which are on file in the Office of the 

City Clerk, are hereby ratified and approved. 

2. That the Purchasing Officer is hereby authorized and directed to call for

public competitive sealed bids for the above named project, and that the bids are to be 

opened in the “Old City Council Chambers,” 250 Main Street, Watsonville, California, on 

Thursday, March 26, 2015, at 11:00 A.M., and the City Clerk is hereby directed to give 

notice inviting such sealed bids in the time, form, and manner provided by law. 

3. That hand-carried bids should be delivered to the City of Watsonville, 250

Main Street, Watsonville, California, c/o Purchasing Officer. Bidders may mail bids at 

their own risk to the City of Watsonville, c/o Purchasing Officer, 250 Main Street, 

Watsonville, California 95076. 

4. That after the bids are opened, they shall be tabulated and analyzed and a

report submitted to the City Manager Pro Tempore, who shall recommend the awarding, 

or other action, to the Council at its next regular meeting, or as soon thereafter as 

possible. 

************************************

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\PK15-1 Ramsay Park Lighting Project.docx 
ri 2/17/2015 4:05:13 PM AJS ______ MT ______ PCS ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.1

ana.espinoza
Stamp



Page 1 of 2
ME 2/10/2015 2:07:41 PM 

 

CITY COUNCIL # _____________ 

__________________ 

Endorsed for presentation 

to the City Council 

 __________________ 

Marcela Tavantzis

City of Watsonville 

Public Works And Utilities Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: February 2, 2015 

TO: Marcela Tavantzis, City Manager Pro Tempore 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Director of Public Works and Utilities 
Natalie Diaz, Assistant Engineer 

SUBJECT: School Crossings Upgrades Project, Project No. ST-14-03 

AGENDA ITEM: February 24, 2015 City Council

RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends that the City Council: 

a) Adopt a resolution awarding a contract for the School Crossings Upgrades Project,
Project No. ST-14-03, to the lowest responsive bidder, Trident Contractors, Inc., in the
amount of $401,115.

b) Approve an additional $61,500 in Gas Tax encumbrance for the project.

DISCUSSION:   
At the December 9, 2014 meeting, City Council approved the plans, specifications, and called 
for bids for the School Crossings Upgrades Project. The project will provide ADA compliant 
curb ramps and upgraded school signs and striping at 31 locations throughout the City (see 
Attachment 1, Location List and Map).   

The locations are adjacent to elementary and middle schools and will be provide improved 
safety and access to all pedestrians traveling in those locations. The new signs and striping 
will alert drivers and bicyclists that they are entering school zones and will highlight student 
and pedestrian crossings. These locations and improvements were included in the grant 
application approved by the State for the Safe Routes to School funding on this project.    

Bids were opened on January 28, 2015.  The results are summarized as follows: 

4.2

mindy.esqueda
Approved

marcela.tavantzis
Approved



Page 2 of 2 

ME 2/10/2015 2:07:41 PM 
 

 

Bidder         Amount 
Trident Contractors, Inc.      $401,115.00 
Earthworks        $448,699.44 
FBD Vanguard Construction     $536,562.95 
Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc.  $556,512.00 
Don Chapin Co.       $581,634.30 
Monterey Peninsula Engineering     $582,381.25 
Graniterock         $595,994.00 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution awarding a contract for the School 
Crossings Upgrades Project, Project No. ST-14-03, to the lowest responsive bidder, Trident 
Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $401,115. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:   
This project is consistent with the strategic plan goal of improving infrastructure. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
This project will initially be funded by the Gas Tax fund.  This project was included in the 
Capital Improvement Projects in the City’s adopted budget for $339,662.  It will require an 
additional encumbrance of $61,500 of Gas Tax funding to cover the entire project cost.   
 
$305,000 of the project cost will be reimbursed to the City through a State grant from the Safe 
Routes to School Program (SR2S).   
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
The Council can choose not to award the bid and not proceed with the project. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
1. Locations List and Map 
 
 
 
cc: City Attorney 



School Crossing Upgrades Project
Project No.ST-14-03
Improvement Locations List

NOTE:  See Att. School Locations for map including all locations circled in red

Location Affected School(s) Street Cross Street
1 Ann Soldo Wagner Ave Vista Montana Drive
2 C Chavez Arthur Rd Sonoma St
3 E.A Hall Brewington Ave E. Lake (SR 152)
4 E.A Hall Brewington Ave Orchard St
5 E.A Hall Madison St E. Fifth St
6 E.A. Hall/ M White Brewington Ave Palm Ave
7 E.A. Hall/ M White Palm Ave Lincoln St
8 E.A. Hall/ M White Palm Ave Madison St
9 E.A. Hall/ M White Palm Ave midblock Brewington/Madison
10 Freedom Holly Dr Airport Rd
11 Freedom Holly Dr Ross Ave
12 H. A. Hyde Alta Vista Ave Marilyn St
13 H. A. Hyde Alta Vista Ave Sta Clara St
14 H. A. Hyde Sta Clara St Manana Lane
15 Landmark Ohlone Parkway Kingfisher Dr
16 Landmark Ohlone Parkway Loma Vista Dr
17 Linscott Elm St Marchant St
18 Linscott Elm St midblock Marchant /Lincoln
19 M White California St Brewington Ave
20 M White California St Lincoln St
21 M White California St Monte Vista Ave
22 M White California St Roosevelt St
23 Moreland Notre Dame Brennan St midblock E 5th/Palm
24 Radcliff Rodriguez St Kearney St
25 Rolling Hills Anna St Herman Ave
26 Rolling Hills Anna St Holm Rd
27 Rolling Hills Anna St Shady Oaks Dr
28 Rolling Hills Herman Ave Kralj Dr
29 Starlight Pennsylvania Dr Hammer Dr
30 T. S. MacQuiddy Martinelli St midblock Washington/Glemar
31 T. S. MacQuiddy Martinelli St Washington St

maria.esther.rodrigu
Text Box
Attachment 1Page 1 of 2



nm

nm

nm
nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

Pajaro Valley High School

Watsonville High School

Lakeview Middle School

Rolling Hills Middle School

E. A. Hall Middle School

Saint Francis High School

Cesar Chavez Middle School

Ann Soldo School

AVCI

MacQuidy School

Hyde Elementary School

Pajaro Middle School

Freedom Elementary School

Starlight  Elementary School

Pacific Coast Charter

Calabasas Elementary School

Green Valley Christian School

Mintie White School

Landmark Elementary School

Notre Dame Private School

Radcliff Elementary School

Cabrillo College

Duncan Holbert School

Linscott Charter School

New School

CEIBA College Prep
LEVEE

MAIN ST

STATE HWY 1

LEE RD

FREEDOM BL

AIRPORT BL

EAST LAKE AV

BR
IDG

E S
T

LAKEVIEW RD

HOLOHAN RD

HARKINS SLOUGH RD

LINCOLN ST

TUTTLE AV

BUENA VISTA DR

WEST BEACH ST

HO
LM

 R
D

WALKER ST

RIVERSIDE RD

MA
NF

RE
 R

D

2ND ST

WEST RIVERSIDE DR

RAMP

PALM AV

FO
RD ST

BREWINGTON AV

LARKIN VALLEY RD

MADISON ST

CLIF
FORD AV

RODRIGUEZ ST

OHLONE PARKWAY

SO
UT

H G
RE

EN
 VA

LL
EY

 RD

ANNA ST

HOLLY DR

EAST BEACH ST

UNION ST

RANPORT RD

BRONTE AV

CU

TTER DR

COLLEGE RD

HO
PE

 D
R

MC
KE

NZ
IE 

AV

ARTHUR RD

DE
LT

A W
Y

MARTINELLI ST

PENNSYLV ANIA D R

BECK ST

VIVIENNE DRMARIN ST

RIVERSIDE DR

ROSA LN

CAREY AV

DR
IVE

WA
Y

ROSS AV

ROGERS AV

BLANCA LN

ST
AT

E H
WY 1

52

WESTGATE DR

KEARNEY ST

AL
LE

Y

SUDDEN ST

GREE
N V

AL
LE

Y R
D

MILES LN

BRENNAN ST

JUDD RD

SANTA CLARA ST

AL
MO

ND
 DR

ATKINSON LN

CRESTVIEW DR

HANGAR W
Y

STANFORD ST

PASEO DR

MARCHANT ST

CE
DA

R 
DR

HARVEST DR

BLACKBURN ST

CENTER ST

HUSHBECK AV

MARIPOSA AV

6TH
 ST

WAGNER AV

H ER M
AN

 A
V

ALTA
 VISTA AV BRONSON ST

WEST BEACH RD

LOGAN ST

LOCUST ST

HAMMER DR

1ST ST

AVIATION WY

LOMA PRIETA AV

NORTH DR

UN
NA

ME
D

PERA DR

INDUSTRIAL RD

KRALJ DR

SUNNYHILLS DR

PINE ST

OLD ADOBE RD

RO ACHE RD

COTTAGE RD

LA
WRE

NCE AV

C O NDIT LN

WEST LAKE AV

DOLORES AV

GR
IM

ME
R R

D

MANOR AV

AU
TO

 C
EN

TE
R 

DR

TIERRA ALTA  DR

AIRPORT RD

CARMEL ST

PAJARO LN

MONTE VISTA AV

BO
WKE

R R
D

DAVIS AV

HILL AV

IRIS DR

RIDGE WAY DR

J S
T

9TH ST

CALIFORNIA ST

LA
KE

 V
ILL

AG
E 

DR

SINCERO DR

J EN N IN
GS

 D
R

W 5TH ST

LOMA VISTA DR

SYDNEY AV
CHAPPELL RD

MANANA LN

PROSPECT ST

LU
C E

RN
E A

V

EATON AV

LIGHTHOUSE DR

GL
EM

AR
 ST

FU
CH

SIA
 DR

CALABASAS RD

JOYCE DR

PENNY LN

PACIFICA BL

SH
AD

Y O
AK

S 
DR

LANDIS AV

JEFFERSON ST

AT
RI C

TSILVER LEAF DR

SHASTA ST

WESTRIDGE DR

NIELSON ST

GROVE ST

OR
EG

ON
 S

T

AR
CE

 ST

TH
AR

P A
V

NON
A AV

COMPTON TE

SUNBIRD DR

WEST FRONT ST

HYDE ST

G REY R D

WATERS ALLEY

P E
LIC

AN
 D

R

TRABING RD

LA JOLLA ST

BR
AD

FO
RD

 R
D

EAST FRONT ST

SUNCREST WY

CARR ST

EAST HIGH ST

ST
RA

WBERRY HILL

RO
BL

E S
T

CLOUDVIE W DR

MILLER AV

LA
KE

N 
DR

WI
LK

IE
 AV

CREEK DR

ROOSEVELT ST

PIMA ST

WILDCATZ WY

CI
PR

ES
 S

T

NAPA ST

TECHN O LO
GY

 D
R

WI
LL

OW
 W

Y

EU
CA

LYPTUS DR

PARKER DR

VISTA ST

VISTA POINTE DR

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON
 S

T

GARDNER AV

PEACE DR

WINCHESTER DR

ACCESS RD

WEST H
IG

H ST

FE
LIZ

 DR

SAKATA LN

ARLENE DR

PACKARD LN

QUINN AV

EM
ME L

N

BERMAN LN

E 5TH ST

MARIGOLD AV

W
INDING WY

PAUL LN

MONTEBELLO DR

VA
LD

EZ
 LN

CRESCENT DR

ZU
RI

CH
 AV

CRESPI WY

GREEN MEADOW DR

SOUTH DR

HI L LS
IDE

 AV

MENKER ST

JEANE TTE WY

B U R CH
EL

L A
V

KILBURN ST

VILLAGE WY

FIRETHORN WY MA
RC

EL
A  D

R

CO
FF

EY
 LN

BRENTWOOD DR

PALOMA WYEVELYN AV

ALMA ST

DEL RIO CT

SECOYA ST

ALTAMONT DR

VIC RUGH LN

MARANATHA DR

SONOMA ST

SAN LUIS AV

MA
RS

H 
LN

8TH ST

MENASCO DR

BA

FP DR

EL RIO ST

LO
NE

 PI
NE

 AV

ALLSTON WY

M EMORIA
L A

V

MO
NU

MEN
T A

V

CUTTER DR LO
WER

EASTERN DR

SANTA CATALINA AV

LAUREL ST

KINGS W Y

CEREZE ST

BREE LN

ALVARADO ST

CASILL
AS AV

HO NEYSU CKLE DR
ENGRACIA DR

S ENECA CTTERR Y LOOP

COOLIDGE AVLA HACIENDA ST

ROGGE ST

CO
TT

AG
E D

R

CIRVELO ST

BROADIS ST

VE
RM

ON
T S

T CA
MB

RID
GE

 D
R

LONGVIEW DR

PE
AR

TR
EE

 D
R

MEL
WOOD S

T

WATSON ST

SEBASTIAN LN

SPRU CE CI

ARBOL DR

PECK ST

LA SA LLE ST

MELROSE AV

INEZ ST

MANZANA ST

ARISTA LN

ARG OS CI

POR TOLA CI

SAN BENITO ST

RICHAR
DSON AV

BEVERLY DR

CO
RPORATE WY

ALISA CI

WESTERN DR

ORT E GA DR

B A RON ST

PROGRESS DR

LA
SS

EN WY SYCAMORE ST

CY
NT

HIA
 DR

PAJARO CI

CE
RR

ITO
 TE

PA
RA

ISO
 CT

EILEEN ST

EATON CT

DO
GW

OO
D D

R

GINOS CT

MISTY GLADE LN

KIMBERLY LN

BROOKHAVEN LN

CR

ESPI C I

STILLB R EEZE LN

CARITA CT

DR
EW

 LA
KE

 R
D

WE

E KS DR

AN
DE

RS

ON DR

EL CAPITAN CT

CHERRY CT

COSTANSO ST

MATA WY

AMBER CT

MAGNOLIA CT

NUGENT AV

HERON CT

QUNIZA CT

CR
OS

SR
OA

DS

MUNKS CT

LA
S 

PA
LM

AS

PASEO PRIETO

PARK WY

WESLEY CT

ALLEY

ALLEY

DR
IVE

WA
Y

ALLEY

RAMP

DRIVEW AY

E 5TH ST

UN
NA

ME
D

D R IVEWAY

ALLEY

DRIVEWAY

LEVEE

E 5TH ST

1ST ST

DR
IVE

WA
Y

DRIVEWAY

DRIVEWAY

DRIVEWAY

DR
IV

EW
AY

RAMP

DRIVEWAY

ALLEY
ALL EY

DRIVEWAY

UNNAMED

DRIVEWAY

ALLEY

ALLEY

RAMP

UNNAMED

ALLEY

UN
NAM

ED

DRIVEWAY

ALLEY

CL
IFF

ORD
 AV

RAMP

DR
IVE

WA
Y

ALLEY

DRIVEWAY

UNNAMED

RAMP

DRIVEWAY

DRIVEWAY

DRIVEWAY

DR
IVE

WA
Y

LE
VE

E

ALLEY

RAMP

OREGON ST

DR
IVE

WA
Y

RAMP

UN
NA

ME
D

RAMP

MARTINELLI ST

ALLEY

HILL AV

ALLEY

ALLEY

D R IV EWAY

ROGGE ST

PALM AV

RAMP

ALLEY

ALLEY

RAM P

DRIVE
W

AY

CA
LIF

OR
NI

A S
T

RAMP

CALIFORNIA ST

W 5T
H ST

DRIVEWAY

DRIVEWAY

ALLEY

DRIVEWAY

DRIVEWAY

DRIVEWAY

UNNAMED

RA
MP

STATE HWY 1

DRIVEWAY

UN
NA

ME
D

DRIVEWAY

DRIVEWAY

ALLEY
MADISON ST

SAN JUAN RD

SALINAS RD

LEWIS RD

HAYES RD

RAILROAD AV

ALLISON RD

INGRAM CT

STORM RD

PORTER DR

GO
ND

A S
T

BROOKLYN ST

MA
RI

NO
VI

CH
 AV

SU
SA

N 
ST

WATERS LN

BISHOP ST

JONATHAN ST

LE W
IS  CT

STENDER AV

ASSOCIATED LN

Legend
nm School

Street
High School
K-8 School
Parcel
Watsonville City Limit

Prepared by Watsonville GIS Center 6/27/2011 (PWKS0625).
This Document is a graphic representation using the best currently available sources.

The City of Watsonville assumes no responsibility for any errors.

Motto: “Opportunity Through Diversity; Unity Through Cooperation.”

City of Watsonville

1 inch = 1,750 feet

µ
0 875 1,750 2,625 3,500437.5

Feet

School
Locations

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

natalie.diaz
Oval

maria.esther.rodrigu
Text Box
Attachment 1Page 2 of 2



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE AWARDING $401,115 BID TO TRIDENT 
CONTRACTORS, INC., A CORPORATION, FOR THE SCHOOL 
CROSSING UPGRADES PROJECT, NO. ST-14-03 AND AUTHORIZING 
A $61,500 BUDGET APPROPRIATION FROM THE STATE GAS TAX 
FUND ($305,000 OF THE PROJECT COST WILL BE REIMBURSED TO 
THE CITY FROM SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROGRAM GRANT 
FUNDING) 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 154-14 (CM) adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Watsonville on December 9, 2014, approved plans and specifications and authorized 

calling for bids for the School Crossing Upgrades Project, No. ST-14-03; and 

WHEREAS, the bids received for the School Crossing Upgrades Project, No. ST-

14-03 were opened in the “Old City Council Chambers,” City Hall, 250 Main Street, 

Watsonville, California, on Wednesday, January 28, 2015, at 11:00 A.M., and later 

tabulated by the Purchasing Officer for the consideration of the City Manager Pro 

Tempore and submission to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager Pro Tempore has recommended that the bid from 

Trident Contractors, Inc., a corporation, [Contractor License #991011] for the School 

Crossing Upgrades Project, No. ST-14-03, in the amount of $401,115, be accepted as 

the lowest responsive bid. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the bid of Trident Contractors, Inc., a corporation, for the School

Crossing Upgrades Project, No. ST-14-03, in the amount of $401,115 be accepted, and 

the execution of a contract by the City Manager Pro Tempore is hereby authorized. 

2. That the budget appropriation of $61,500 from the State Gas Tax Fund is

hereby authorized. 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\AB ST-14-03 School Crossing Upgrades.docx 
ri 2/18/2015 10:53:19 AM AJS ______ MT ______PWU ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.2

mindy.esqueda
Approved



 

3. That all other bids are hereby rejected. 

 
********************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\AB ST-14-03 School Crossing Upgrades.docx  
ri 2/18/2015 10:53:19 AM 

2 



Page 1 of 2
ME 2/10/2015 2:16:24 PM 
P:\engineer\murray\council correspondance\riverside mobile home park\staff report west front abandonment 06012007.doc 

 City Council _______ 

City of Watsonville 
 Public Work and Utilities Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: February 5, 2015 

TO: Marcela Tavantzis, City Manager Pro Tempore 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Director of Public Works and Utilities 
Tom Sharp, Senior Engineering Associate 

SUBJECT: State Revolving Fund Loan Application for the Manana Lane Sewer 
Replacement Project  

AGENDA ITEM: February 24, 2015 City Council

RECOMMENDATION:  

It is recommended that the City Council adopt the following resolutions: 
1. Approving the application for loan funds from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund

(CWSRF);
2. Authorizing the City Manager to sign the CWSRF loan application forms, and;
3. Pledging wastewater funds to pay for CWSRF financing necessary to construct the

Manana Lane Sewer Replacement Project, estimated to cost $1.3 million.

DISCUSSION: 
 In 2007 the City of Watsonville commissioned the Sanitary Sewer System Capacity Evaluation 
and Assurance Plan, prepared by MWH Consulting Engineers.  The purpose of the plan was to 
identify locations in the City’s sewer system where the pipeline capacity was too small to 
convey peak flows, which generally results in sewer overflows. The Plan also provided 
solutions to correct existing and future sewer capacity deficiencies.   

Project Description 
The Sanitary Sewer Plan identified and prioritized a number of areas of the City’s sewer 
system that need to be upgraded or replaced, including the Manana Lane Sewer. The project 
area runs between the northwest end of Manana Lane to Marin Street and Miles Lane, then 
continuing across the Portola Heights Mobile Home Park, and ending at Auto Center Drive 
(see map).   

The Plan predicts that the capacity of this sewer line is exceeded under existing wet weather 
peak flow and staff has witnessed overflows along this sewer line during the rainy season. The 

4.3a

mindy.esqueda
Approved

marcela.tavantzis
Approved



Page 2 of 2 

ME 2/10/2015 2:16:24 PM 
P:\engineer\murray\council correspondance\riverside mobile home park\staff report west front abandonment 06012007.doc 

 

project area is located adjacent to the Watsonville Slough. This project would result in 
improved environmental protection of the sensitive wetland habitat from the potential impacts 
of sewer overflows. 
 
A portion of the sewer line runs across the Portola Mobile Home Park property underneath 
several of the residences. This project would relocate the sewer line to be located under the 
street, so that it can be properly accessed and maintained.    
 
Project Financing 
The Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) loan program provides funding to local 
agencies for sewer and water capital improvement projects which have a beneficial effect on 
the environment.  The program provides financing for these projects are very low interest 
rates, and is currently at a rate of 1.6%.   
 
As an Economically Disadvantage Community, Watsonville is eligible to have up to 50% of the 
loan amount forgiven. This is not guaranteed, but is based on funding availability each year. 
Pursuing loan forgiveness would be top priority for staff. 
 
City Council approval of the attached resolutions is a requirement of the loan application 
process.  The project would be brought back to Council for approval for bidding once plans and 
specifications have been completed. 
 
Staff is recommending participating in this funding program because the current sewer 
rates do not generate adequate revenue to pay for all necessary capital improvement 
projects with existing cash reserves.  The low financing costs and the potential for loan 
forgiveness makes this an attractive funding mechanism.  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:   
This action is consistent with the strategic plan goal of improving infrastructure. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
The Manana Lane Sewer Replacement project is estimated to cost $1,300,000.  The annual 
debt service on a 20-year loan would be approximately $75,000 per year.  Loan payments 
would be paid from the City’s Wastewater Enterprise Fund.  If the City received partial loan 
forgiveness from the State, the annual payment amount could be reduced by half. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
The Council could decide to not move forward with the loan application.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Location map  
 
cc: City Attorney 



Wats
onv

ille
Slough

Watsonville Slough

PALM
AV

ALLEY

CALIFORNIA

ST

PARK
WY

HYDE
ST

LOGANST

ARTHUR RD FREEDOM BL

PORTOLA CI

EASTERN

DR

DR
IVE

WA
Y

7TH
ST

WEST
HIGH ST

MADISON ST

WESTERN
DR

GONZALES

ST

9TH
ST

SANTA

CLARA ST

ALVARADO

ST

ZEPHYR
CT

AU
TO

CE
NT

ER
 D

R

JEFFERSON

ST

VIZCAINO
ST

DRIVEWAY

ALLEY

ALLEY

JU
NI

PE
RO

SE
RR

A 
DR

AL
LE

Y

ALLEY

ALLEY

CRESPI WY

ALLEY

AL
LE

Y

PROSPECT

ST

ALTON
WY

WESTW
IND

CT

BRENNAN
ST

SUDDEN
ST

ERIKLN
DR

IVE
WA

Y

CRESPI CI

LINCOLNST

ALLEY

STANFORD

ST

EAST

HIGH ST

MARTINELLI
ST

SONOMA
ST

COSTANSO ST

8TH
ST

CABRILLOST
MANANA

LN
GREY RD

MILES LN

KIMBERLY
LN

ALLEY

ALLEY

SIERRA ST

BROADIS
ST

SYCAMORE
ST

LAUREL
ST

GREY RD

MADERA
ST

ALLEY

DRIVEWAY

SAN
BENITO

 ST

NAPA
ST

DRIVEWAY

ALLEY

CR
ES

PI 
CI

MARIN ST

MAIN ST

Legend
Existing Sanitary Sewer Pipes

Existing SS Force Main
Existing SS Gravity Main

New SS Pipe
SS Pipe to be Replaced

Sloughs
Watsonville City Limit ¬

1 inch = 300 feet
300 0 300 600 900 1,200150

Feet

Mañana Lane Sanitary Sewer Replacement

City of Watsonville

Prepared by City of Watsonville
Public Works Department 04/17/2014.

This document is a graphic
representation of best available sources.

The City of Watsonville assumes no
responsibility for any errors.

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed,
USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid,
IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User
Community

Monterey Bay

Regional Location

Project Location

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 1



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER 
PRO TEMPORE ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE TO 
APPLY FOR A FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION FOR A 
$1,300,000, “LOW INTEREST” RATE LOAN FROM THE STATE 
WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD FOR THE PLANNING, 
DESIGN, AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE MAÑANA LANE SEWER 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND IF AWARDED, TO EXECUTE A 
STANDARD AGREEMENT AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO; AND 
ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS 

WHEREAS, the Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan program provides 

funding to local agencies for sewer and water capital improvement projects; and 

WHEREAS, approval of this resolution by the City Council is a requirement of the 

loan application process; and 

WHEREAS, the Mañana Lane Sewer Replacement Project would be brought 

back to Council for approval for bidding once plans and specifications have been 

completed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager Pro

Tempore on behalf of the City of Watsonville to apply for a Financial Assistance 

Application for a $1,300,000, “low interest” rate loan from the State Water Resources 

Control Board for the planning, design, and construction of the Mañana Lane Sewer 

Replacement Project.  

2. That if recommended for funding by the State Water Resources Control

Board, the City Council authorizes the City Manager to accept a loan up to $1,300,000. 

3. That the City Manager Pro Tempore is designated to provide assurances,

certifications, and commitments required for the financial assistance application, 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Mañana Lane Authorization for Loan.docx 
ri 2/19/2015 12:43:58 PM AJS ______ MT ______PWU ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.3b

mindy.esqueda
Approved



including executing a financial assistance agreement from the State Water Resources 

Control Board and any amendments thereto; and  

4. That the City Manager Pro Tempore is designated to represent the City of 

Watsonville in carrying out the City’s responsibilities under the financing agreement, 

including certifying disbursement requests on behalf of the City of Watsonville and 

compliance with applicable state and federal laws.   

 
********************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Mañana Lane Authorization for Loan.docx  
ri 2/19/2015 12:43:58 PM 

2 



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE PLEDGING WASTEWATER FUNDS TO PAY FOR 
CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND FINANCING NECESSARY 
TO CONSTRUCT THE MAÑANA LANE SEWER REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT, ESTIMATED TO COST $1,300,000  

WHEREAS,  in 2003, MWH Americas, Inc., prepared the Sanitary Sewer System 

Capacity Evaluation and Assurance Plan (the Plan) for the City of Watsonville; and  

WHEREAS, the Plan identified and prioritized a number of areas of the City’s 

sewer system that needs to be upgraded or replaced, including the Mañana Lane 

Sewer Replacement Project; and 

WHEREAS, the project area runs between the northwest end of Mañana Lane to 

Marin Street and Miles Lane, then continuing across the Portola Heights Mobile Home 

Park and ending at Auto Center Drive; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan predicts that the capacity of this sewer line is exceeded 

under existing wet weather peak flow and City staff has witnessed overflows along this 

sewer line during rainy seasons; and 

WHEREAS, the project area is located adjacent to the Watsonville Slough; and 

WHEREAS, this project would result in improved environmental protection of the 

sensitive wetland habitat from the potential impacts of sewer overflows; and  

WHEREAS, a portion of the Mañana Lane sewer line runs across the Portola 

Mobile Home Park property underneath several residences; and  

WHEREAS, this project would relocate the sewer line to be located under the 

street, so that it can be properly accessed and maintained; and  

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Mañana Lane Pledging Revenues and Funds.docx 
ri 2/19/2015 12:44:32 PM AJS ______ MT ______PWU ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.3c

mindy.esqueda
Approved



WHEREAS, as an Economically Disadvantaged Community, Watsonville is 

eligible to have up to 50% of the loan amount forgiven, based on funding availability 

each year; and  

WHEREAS, City Council approval of this resolution is a requirement of the loan 

application process.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City of Watsonville hereby dedicates and pledges Wastewater 

User Fees and Wastewater Enterprise Funds to payment of any and all Clean Water 

State Revolving Fund and/or Water Recycling Funding Program financing for the 

Mañana Lane Sewer Replacement Project, CWSRF Project No. C-06-8021-110 (the 

“Project”). 

2. The City of Watsonville commits to collecting such revenues and 

maintaining such funds throughout the term of such financing and until the City has 

satisfied its repayment obligation thereunder unless modification or change is approved 

in writing by the State Water Resources Control Board. 

3. So long as the financing agreement(s) are outstanding, the City of 

Watsonville’s pledge hereunder shall constitute a lien in favor of the State Water 

Resources Control Board on the foregoing fund(s) and revenue(s) without any further 

action necessary. 

4.  So long as the financing agreement(s) are outstanding, the City of 

Watsonville commits to maintaining the fund(s) and revenue(s) at levels sufficient to 

meet its obligations under the financing agreement(s). 

 
********************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Mañana Lane Pledging Revenues and Funds.docx  
ri 2/19/2015 12:44:32 PM 

2 



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE STATEMENT OF INTENTION REGARDING 
BORROWING STATE FUNDS TO FINANCE CONSTRUCTION OF 
MAÑANA LANE SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT          

WHEREAS, the City of Watsonville (the “City”) desires to finance the costs of 

constructing certain public facilities and improvements relating to its water and 

wastewater system, including certain treatment facilities, pipelines and other 

infrastructure (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to finance the construction of the Mañana Lane 

Sewer Replacement Project or portions of the project with moneys (“Project Funds”) 

provided by the State of California, acting by and through the State Water Resources 

Control Board (State Water Board); and 

WHEREAS, the State Water Board may fund the Project Funds with proceeds 

from the sale of obligations the interest upon which is excluded from gross income for 

federal income tax purposes (“the Obligations”); and 

WHEREAS, prior to either the issuance of the Obligations or the approval by the 

State Water Board of the Project Funds the City desires to incur certain capital 

expenditures (the “Expenditures”) with respect to the Project from available moneys of 

the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that those moneys to be advanced on and 

after the date hereof to pay the Expenditures are available only for a temporary period 

and it is necessary to reimburse the City for the Expenditures from the proceeds of the 

Obligations.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Mañana Lane Reimbursement.docx 
ri 2/19/2015 2:57:50 PM AJS ______ MT ______PWU ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.3d

mindy.esqueda
Approved



1. That the City hereby states its intention and reasonably expects to 

reimburse Expenditures paid prior to the issuance of the Obligations or the approval by 

the State Water Board of the Project Funds. 

2. The reasonable expected maximum principal amount of the Project Fund 

is $1,300,000. 

3. This resolution is being adopted no later than 60 days after the date on 

which the City will expend moneys for the construction portion of the Project costs to be 

reimbursed with Project Funds. 

4.  Each City expenditure will be of a type properly chargeable to a capital 

account under general federal income tax principles. 

5. To the best of our knowledge, this City is not aware of the previous 

adoption of official intents by the City that have been made as a matter of course for the 

purpose of reimbursing expenditures and for which tax-exempt obligations have not 

been issued.  

6. This resolution is adopted as official intent of the City in order to comply 

with Treasury Regulation §1.150-2 and any other regulations of the Internal Revenue 

Service relating to the qualification for reimbursement of Project costs. 

7. All the recitals in the Resolution are true and correct and this City so finds, 

determines and represents.  

 
********************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Mañana Lane Reimbursement.docx  
ri 2/19/2015 2:57:50 PM 

2 



(OVER) 

3/15/2011 9:50:44 AM 
O:\FORMS\Commission Application.doc

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO A CITY BOARD OR COMMISSION 

INSTRUCTIONS: 

If you are interested in serving on a City board or commission, complete the following application and 
return it to the City Clerk’s Office, 275 Main Street, Suite 400, (Fourth Floor), Watsonville, CA 95076. 

If you are interested in being considered for more than one board or commission, separate applications 
should be submitted for each appointment you are seeking. 

Upon receipt, your application for appointment will be routed to the Council Member representing the 
District in which the vacancy exists. If a Council Member is interested in nominating you for appointment, 
the Council Member will contact you and discuss the appointment. 

You must be a registered voter in the City of Watsonville to qualify for an appointment. 

Please specify below the commission or board to which you are seeking appointment and provide the 
requested information. 

Thank you for your interest in City government. 

COMMISSION OR BOARD 

NAME 

ADDRESS 

TELEPHONE (HOME) (WORK) ________________  

E-MAIL ADDRESS 

LENGTH OF RESIDENCE IN AREA 

PREVIOUS COMMISSION OR BOARD SERVED (PLEASE SPECIFY): 

ADVISORY BOARD TERM 

CITY COUNCIL 4.4

Student
Typewritten Text
TONY TAPIZ

Student
Typewritten Text
44 YEARS

Student
Typewritten Text
BOARD OF TRUSTEES, WATSONVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY, 2012-2014

Student
Typewritten Text
LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Student
Typewritten Text



 
3/15/2011 9:50:44 AM 
O:\FORMS\Commission Application.doc 

 

EDUCATION: 
INSTITUTION      MAJOR DEGREE YEAR 

 

 

 

 

WORK/VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE: 
ORGANIZATION     ADDRESS POSITION YEAR 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATION: 
Please attach a brief statement indicating why you are interested in serving on the 
advisory body in question. 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
I understand that this application is a public document and its contents will be disclosed 
upon request, and any misrepresentation or deliberate omission of a material fact in this 
application may be justification for refusal or termination of appointment.  
 
The Political Reform Act of 1974 requires all government agencies to adopt a Conflict of 
Interest Code that designates the positions within an agency which make or participate in 
making governmental decisions and  may forseeably have a material effect on any financial 
interest. Members of City boards and commissions, by virtue of their positions, make or 
participate in making decisions which may affect their financial interests and who therefore 
must disclose these interests on the Fair Political Practices Commission Form 700 – 
Statement of Economic Interests of Designated Employees. The Form 700 is a public 
document and its contents will be disclosed upon request. This form is to be filed upon 
appointment and every year thereafter with the Office of the City Clerk on April 1.  
 

CERTIFICATION: 
I acknowledge I have read the above information and certify that the information 
provided by me is true and correct, and I authorize the verification of the information in 
the application in the event I am a finalist for the appointment. 
 
 
 
                                                                   __________________________ 
               (Signature)       (Date) 

Student
Typewritten Text
LOS ANGELES VALLEY COLLEGE      CHICANO STUDIES     NO            1991

Student
Typewritten Text
SANTA MONICA COLLEGE     BILINGUAL/BICULTURAL STUDIES    NO  1989  

Student
Typewritten Text
COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE (PVUSD/SELPA), 294 GREEN VALLEY ROAD,  VICE CHAIR, 2011-2014

Student
Typewritten Text
WATSONVILLE TAEKWONDO BOOSTER CLUB, 798 EAST LAKE STREET, PRESIDENT, 2007-2013

Student
Typewritten Text
JANUARY 9, 2015

Student
Typewritten Text
CABRILLO COLLEGE                           CHICANO STUDIES     NO             1986

Student
Typewritten Text
CEIBA COLLEGE PREP HOME AND SCHOOL CLUB, 280 MAIN STREET, PRESIDENT, 2011-2012

Student
Typewritten Text

Student
Typewritten Text

Student
Typewritten Text
					



January 19, 2015 

 

Council Member – 

 

My name is Anthony Tapiz and I am the father of three teens and the foster parent to one toddler. 

I am also a long-time resident of Watsonville and a graduate of Class 29 of Leadership Santa 

Cruz County. I have thoroughly enjoyed serving my community over my past two years on the 

Library Board, the last as Vice Chair. 

 

Whether it is through involvement in Ceiba Prep, PV Tremblers softball, Watsonville 

Taekwondo, or the PVUSD special education community, my wife Michelle and I have 

dedicated ourselves to creating positive outcomes in this community.  Both of our sons are 

autistic, and in learning to become advocates for kids with special needs, we have come to the 

conclusion that you can NEVER settle for second best.  That’s how I feel when it comes to the 

needs of Watsonville.  With this in mind, I hope to again have the opportunity to work with other 

talented Watsonville residents to produce fun and creative library activities for our community. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. __________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPOINTING MEMBER TO THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE LIBRARY BOARD 

(DISTRICT 3) 

WHEREAS, Section 902 of the Charter of the City of Watsonville authorizes each 

member of the Council to appoint one member to each City board or commission subject 

to approval by resolution of the Council adopted by at least four (4) affirmative votes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That Council Member Hurst hereby nominates Tony Tapiz for appointment

to the Library Board (expires November 2018), representing District 3. 

2. That the Council hereby approves such appointment.

3. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a copy of this resolution to

the newly appointed member and to the Secretary of the Library Board. 

******************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Library Board District 3.docx 
ri 2/17/2015 3:50:54 PM AJS ______ MT ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.4



CITY COUNCIL 4.5







RESOLUTION NO. __________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPOINTING MEMBER TO THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE LIBRARY BOARD 

(DISTRICT 4) 

WHEREAS, Section 902 of the Charter of the City of Watsonville authorizes each 

member of the Council to appoint one member to each City board or commission subject 

to approval by resolution of the Council adopted by at least four (4) affirmative votes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That Council Member Dutra hereby nominates Catherine E. Perez for

appointment to the Library Board (expires November 2018), representing District 4. 

2. That the Council hereby approves such appointment.

3. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a copy of this resolution to

the newly appointed member and to the Secretary of the Library Board. 

******************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Library Board District 4.docx 
ri 2/17/2015 3:58:04 PM AJS ______ MT ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.5



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE NOMINATING MEMBER TO THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ LATINO AFFAIRS COMMISSION 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa Cruz established the 

Latino Affairs Commission and has requested that the City Council of the City of 

Watsonville nominate two (2) at-large members. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That Council Member Rebecca J. Garcia is hereby nominated by Council

to the County of Santa Cruz Latino Affairs Commission. 

2. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a copy of this Resolution

to the person nominated and to the Board of Supervisors of Santa Cruz County. 

********************************************* 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Appt to Latino Affairs Commission.docx 
ri 2/17/2015 3:55:27 PM AJS ______ MT ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.6





RESOLUTION NO. __________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE NOMINATING BOB MARTIN DEL CAMPO FOR 
APPOINTMENT TO THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS ADVISORY COMMISSION 

WHEREAS, Section 2.92.020 of the Santa Cruz County Code allows each City in 

the County to nominate one member to the County of Santa Cruz Hazardous Materials 

Advisory Commission. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That Bob Martin Del Campo is hereby nominated for appointment to the

County of Santa Cruz Hazardous Materials Advisory Commission. 

2. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a copy of this Resolution

to the nominated member and to the Board of Supervisors of Santa Cruz County. 

******************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Appt to Hazmat Commission.docx  
ri 2/19/2015 12:46:57 PM AJS ______ MT ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.7





MT 02/13/2015 10:22 AM Page 1 of 3
P:\MARCELA\City Council\2015\SR-1st amend to Fourth loan agree-revised.docx 

City of Watsonville 

Community Development Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: February 9, 2015 

TO: Marcela Tavantzis, Interim City Manager 

FROM: Ezequiel Vega, Administrative Services Director 

SUBJECT: Joint Resolution Authorizing the First Amendment to the 

City/Successor Agency Fourth Loan Agreement in an additional 

amount not to Exceed $58,000 for Enforceable Obligations, 

Administrative Expenses and Project Related Expenses  

AGENDA ITEM: February 24, 2015 City Council/Successor Agency 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council and the Successor Agency to 

the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville adopt the attached resolution authorizing 

the City Manager to execute the First Amendment to the Fourth Loan Agreement for Enforceable 

Obligations, Administrative Costs and Project Related Expenses increasing the total loan amount  

to $153,000, equating to a $58,000 increase, to become effective only upon approval by the 

Oversight Board and the California Department of Finance.   

DISCUSSION:  ABX1-26, which was enacted by the State legislature on June 27, 2011 and the 

subsequent decision rendered by the California Supreme Court in the Matosantos case, called for 

the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in California as of February 1, 2012.  As a result, 

the Watsonville Redevelopment Agency ceased to exist and the City elected to serve as the 

Successor Agency to its dissolved redevelopment agency (“Successor Agency”).  The dissolution 

legislation established new county-wide funds called Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Funds 

(RPTTF) wherein what was formally called tax increment is deposited by the County.  County 

Auditor-Controllers then distribute to Successor Agencies only that amount needed to meet 

Successor Agency California Department of Finance (DOF) and Oversight Board approved 

enforceable obligations and administrative expenses with any balance remaining being 

distributed to the affected taxing entities. 

AB 1484, adopted in June 2012 as clean-up legislation to ABX1-26, allowed cities to loan funds 

to their successor agencies for enforceable obligations, administrative costs and project related 

expenses.  Collectively, this legislation specified that litigation expenses are not administrative 

expenses and, as such, are thereby considered project related expenses and are thus eligible to be 

funded through City/Successor Agency loans.  DOF is, however, proposing new legislation to be 

included in a trailer bill for the FY 2015-16 State budget that would require litigation to be 

funded through Successor Agency administrative budgets, thereby significantly hampering the 

ability of Successor Agencies to challenge DOF’s interpretation of the dissolution act.  However, 

CITY COUNCIL 4.8

marcela.tavantzis
Approved



MT 02/13/2015 10:22 AM Page 2 of 3 

P:\MARCELA\City Council\2015\SR-1st amend to Fourth loan agree-revised.docx 

at this time, the law still provides that litigation expenses are eligible to be recovered through the 

RPTTF process.  

 

The City and the Successor Agency have previously entered into three loan agreements wherein 

the City has advanced funds to the Successor Agency and these prior loans have been fully 

repaid.  The first of these loans provided an advance of funds necessary in order to meet 

enforceable obligations due during the second ROPS cycle.  The second loan was required in 

order to  fund costs associated with the preparation of a legislatively mandated due diligence 

review that was required to be prepared by independent outside auditors and the third loan was 

required to fund litigation expenses for a case dealing with the due diligence review that is 

currently under jurisdiction of the Appellate Court.    The first and second loans have now been 

fully repaid and full repayment of the third loan is anticipated shortly.  The Fourth Loan 

Agreement, in the principal amount of $95,000, was approved by the City Council and Successor 

Agency on August 26, 2014 by the adoption of Resolution 106-14 (CM) and Resolution 3-14 

(SA) to also fund litigation.  This lawsuit against the DOF (City of Watsonville, et al. v. 

California Department of Finance, et al., Sacramento County Superior Court Case No. 

34-2014-80001910) concerns differing interpretations of what constitutes a loan pursuant to 

redevelopment dissolution law.  This case was heard in the Sacramento County Superior Court 

and the ruling was predominantly favorable to the City in that the judge found that two Public 

Improvement Financing and Reimbursement Agreements relative to the Civic Center Library 

and Parking Structure projects in a combined total principal amount of $4,429,230 million were 

in fact loans and thus are eligible to be repaid under a complex, extended formula stipulated in 

the Dissolution Act.  

However, there were unanticipated legal costs associated with this case in that DOF petitioned 

the Court to find that the loan reinstatement litigation was related to our prior litigation on the 

due diligence review and had asked that the case be assigned to the judge in that case.  Our 

attorneys had to respond to this petition and the Court denied DOF’s petition.  In addition, there 

are other legal expenses associated with having the ruling finalized and seeing the case through 

to fruition.  As such, it is now necessary to increase the Fourth Loan Agreement by an additional 

$58,000, bringing the total principal amount of the loan to $153,000. 

If the City Council and Successor Agency authorize this increase, the matter is then forwarded to 

the Oversight Board for approval.  Assuming the Oversight Board concurs, the First Amendment 

is then forwarded to DOF for approval.  If approved by both the Oversight Board and DOF, the 

First Amended Fourth Loan Agreement can then be included on Successor Agency’s ROPS. This 

then allows the Successor Agency to receive RPTTF funds that would be used to repay both the 

original loan amount (which has already been approved) and the additional amount approved in 

the First Amendment. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  Approving the City/Successor Agency First Amendment to the Fourth 

Loan Agreement by $58,000 thereby increasing the total Fourth Loan Agreement to an amount 

not to exceed $153,000, and contingent upon approval of both the Oversight Board and DOF, 

provides the City the ability to get reimbursed for actual litigation costs currently funded through 

the City’s risk management fund from future allocations of RPTTF received by the Successor 

Agency.  This Loan also includes interest at the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) rate so 

the total amount of funds that can be received from RPTTF becomes $154,000.       

 



MT 02/13/2015 10:22 AM Page 3 of 3 

P:\MARCELA\City Council\2015\SR-1st amend to Fourth loan agree-revised.docx 

ALTERNATIVES:  The City Council and the Successor Agency could elect not to approve the 

First Amendment to the Fourth City/Successor Agency Loan Agreement, but doing so would 

make it impossible for the City to be reimbursed for these increased redevelopment dissolution 

litigation expenses. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  None 

 

 

 

cc: City Attorney/Successor Agency Counsel  



RESOLUTION NO.      (CM) 
RESOLUTION NO.      (SA) 

A JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AND OF THE 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE APPROVING A FIRST 
AMENDMENT TO THE FOURTH LOAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY AND THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY UNDER HEALTH & SAFETY 
CODE SECTION 34173(H) 

WHEREAS, in accord with the provisions of the California Community 

Redevelopment Law (Health and Safety Code Section 33000, et seq. (“CRL”), the City 

Council of the City of Watsonville (“City”) previously established the Redevelopment 

Agency of the City of Watsonville, a public body, corporate and politic (“Agency”) to 

carry out the purposes of and exercise the powers granted to community redevelopment 

agencies under the CRL; and 

WHEREAS, on February 1, 2012, the Agency was dissolved pursuant to 

Assembly Bill 1X26 (Stats. 2011, 1st Ex. Sess., Ch. 5) (“AB 26”), and its rights, powers, 

duties and obligations were transferred to a “successor agency” (as defined by CRL 

Section 34171(j) and Section 34173); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that the City would become the 

Agency’s successor agency (“Successor Agency”) under CRL Section 34173; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to CRL Section 34179, an oversight board (“Oversight 

Board”) was established for the Successor Agency; and 

WHEREAS, CRL Section 34177.3 authorizes the Successor Agency to make 

enforceable obligations related to the winding up of the Agency’s affairs, including for 

the acquisition of legal services; and 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Reso No. ____  (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Amendment to Fourth Loan Agrmt Resolution.docx 
ri 2/17/2015 4:02:11 PM 

1 

AJS ______ MT ______ Finance _______

CITY COUNCIL 4.8



WHEREAS, with the Oversight Board’s approval, CRL section 34173(h) permits 

the City to loan the Successor Agency funds to pay the Successor Agency’s 

administrative costs, enforceable obligations, and project-related expenses; and 

WHEREAS, in accord with CRL Section 34177.3, the Successor Agency created 

various enforceable obligations to conduct the work of winding down the Agency’s 

affairs, including enforceable obligations related to the services of legal counsel needed 

in connection with various litigation matters in which the Successor Agency is involved; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Successor Agency previously entered into an 

agreement entitled “Fourth Loan Agreement for Enforceable Obligations, 

Administrative Costs and Project-Related Expenses” (“Fourth Loan Agreement”) 

providing for a loan (“Fourth Loan”) from the City to the Successor Agency in an 

amount not to exceed Ninety-Five Thousand Dollars ($95,000); and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Successor Agency desire to amend the Fourth 

Loan Agreement to increase the Fourth Loan by Fifty-Eight Thousand Dollars ($58,000) 

(“Fourth Loan Increase”); and 

WHEREAS, to implement the terms of the preceding Recital, the City and the 

Successor Agency have prepared an agreement entitled “First Amendment to Fourth 

Loan Agreement for Enforceable Obligations, Administrative Costs and Project-

Related Expenses” (“First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement”) (a copy of 

which is attached as Exhibit “A”); and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency’s maximum repayment obligation with 

respect to the Fourth Loan Increase under the First Amendment to Fourth Loan 

Reso No.    ___  (CM) 
Reso No. _____ (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Amendment to Fourth Loan Agrmt Resolution.docx 
ri 2/17/2015 4:02:11 PM 

2 



Agreement, inclusive of principal and interest, is limited to Fifty-Eight Thousand Five 

Hundred Dollars ($58,500); and 

WHEREAS, prior to becoming effective, the First Amendment to Fourth Loan 

Agreement must be approved by the Oversight Board and submitted to the State 

Department of Finance (“DOF”) for review in accord with CRL Section 34179(h); and  

WHEREAS, the City and the Successor Agency desire to approve the First 

Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT JOINTLY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AND THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Under the authority of CRL Sections 34173(h) and 34180(h), the 

City and the Successor Agency jointly approve the First Amendment to Fourth Loan 

Agreement, in the form attached as Exhibit “A.” 

Section 2. The City Council and the governing board for the Successor 

Agency direct the City Manager Pro Tempore to execute the First Amendment to Fourth 

Loan Agreement on behalf of the City and on behalf of the Successor Agency. The City 

Manager Pro Tempore is further authorized, with the concurrence of the City Attorney 

and Successor Agency legal counsel, to approve technical, non-substantive 

amendments to the First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement on the City’s and the 

Successor Agency’s behalf and to otherwise carry out the actions authorized by this 

Resolution. 

Section 3. The City Council directs that the Fourth Loan Increase be funded 

from the City’s Risk Management Fund.  The Fourth Loan Increase is to be repaid to the 

Reso No.    ___  (CM) 
Reso No. _____ (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Amendment to Fourth Loan Agrmt Resolution.docx 
ri 2/17/2015 4:02:11 PM 

3 



Risk Management Fund upon the same terms as the Fourth Loan Increase is repaid to 

the City by the Successor Agency, including interest. 

Section 4. The Successor Agency is directed to submit this Resolution and the 

First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement to the Oversight Board for approval in 

accord with CRL Sections 34173(h) and 34180(h).  The approvals and other actions 

authorized by this Resolution will become effective as provided by CRL Section 

34179(h). 

*********************************** 

Reso No.    ___  (CM) 
Reso No. _____ (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Amendment to Fourth Loan Agrmt Resolution.docx 
ri 2/17/2015 4:02:11 PM 

4 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO FOURTH LOAN AGREEMENT FOR 
ENFORCEABLE OBLIGATIONS, ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS AND 

PROJECT-RELATED EXPENSES 

ARTICLE I.  

PARTIES AND EFFECTIVE DATE 

1.1 Parties.  This “First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement for Enforceable 
Obligations, Administrative Costs and Project-Related Expenses” (“First Amendment to 
Fourth Loan Agreement”) is reference dated as of February 24, 2015.  This First Amendment 
to Fourth Loan Agreement is entered into between (1) the City of Watsonville, a California 
charter law city and municipal corporation (“City”) and (2) The Successor Agency to the 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville, formed and existing in accord with Section 
34173 of the California Community Redevelopment Law (“CRL”) (Health & Safety Code 
Section 33000, et seq.) (“Successor Agency”). 

1.2 Effective Date.  This First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement will not 
become effective until the date (“Effective Date”) all of the following have occurred: 

A. This First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement has been approved by 
the City Council as the City’s governing body and by the City Council as the Successor 
Agency’s governing board and has been executed by the City’s and the Successor Agency’s 
authorized officials. 

B. This First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement has been approved by 
the Successor Agency’s oversight board (“Oversight Board”) formed in accord with CRL 
Section 34179. 

C. As provided in CRL Section 34179(h), five (5) business days have elapsed 
since notice of the Oversight Board’s action approving this First Amendment to Fourth Loan 
Agreement was provided to the State Department of Finance (“DOF”), unless the DOF requests 
to review the Oversight Board’s action, in which case this paragraph C will be deemed satisfied 
upon the DOF’s approval of the Oversight Board’s action. 

ARTICLE II.  

RECITALS 

2.1 Under the provisions of the CRL, the City Council of the City of Watsonville 
previously established the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville, a public body, 
corporate and politic (“Agency”), to carry out the purposes of and exercise the powers granted to 
community redevelopment agencies under the CRL. 

2.2 On February 1, 2012, the Agency was dissolved by operation of Assembly 
Bill 1X26 (Stats. 2011, 1st Ex. Sess., Ch. 5) (“AB 26”), and its rights, powers, duties and 

1 

W1470-002 -- 1493771.1 Exhibit "A"

1 of 5



obligations were transferred to a “successor agency” (as defined in CRL Section 34171(j) and 
Section 34173). 

2.3 As provided by AB 26, the City Council took official action electing to become 
the Agency’s successor agency (“Successor Agency”) under CRL Section 34173. 

2.4 On or about June 27, 2012, the provisions of Assembly Bill 1484 (“AB 1484”) 
became law.  AB 1484 modified the CRL and AB 26 in various ways.  As used herein, the term 
“CRL” means Health & Safety Code Section 33000, et seq., as modified by AB 26 and 
AB 1484.  Specific terms used and not otherwise defined in this First Amendment to Third Loan 
Agreement will have the meanings given to those terms in the CRL. 

2.5 In accord with CRL Section 34177.3, the Successor Agency created various 
enforceable obligations to conduct the work of winding down the Agency’s affairs, including 
enforceable obligations related to the services of legal counsel needed in connection with various 
litigation matters (including related appeal work) in which the Successor Agency is involved 
(“Litigation Expenses”). 

2.6 CRL Section 34173(h) permits the City, as the former Agency’s creating 
authority, to loan or grant funds to the Successor Agency to pay for enforceable obligations, 
administrative costs, and project-related expenses. 

2.7 On or about August 26, 2014, the City and the Successor Agency entered into that 
certain “Fourth Loan Agreement for Enforceable Obligations, Administrative Costs and 
Project-Related Expenses” by which the City agreed to loan the Successor Agency the 
principal sum of not to exceed Nine-Five Thousand Dollars ($95,000) (“Fourth Loan”) so that 
the Successor Agency could pay Litigation Expenses.  The Fourth Loan has been or shortly will 
be fully disbursed to the Successor Agency. 

2.8 In order to fund additional Litigation Expenses beyond those covered by the 
Fourth Loan, the Successor Agency has requested that the City loan it an additional amount not 
to exceed Fifty-Eight Thousand Dollars ($58,000) (“Fourth Loan Increase”).  The City is 
willing to amend the Fourth Loan Agreement and to make the Fourth Loan Increase under the 
authority of CRL Section 34173(h) on the terms set forth in this First Amendment to Fourth 
Loan Agreement. 

2.9 On or about August 28, 2012, the City and the Successor Agency entered into that 
certain “Loan Agreement for Enforceable Obligations, Administrative Costs and Project-
Related Expenses (for the Period July 1, 2012 – December 31, 2012)” (“First Loan 
Agreement”).  On or about August 28, 2012, the City and the Successor Agency entered into 
that certain “Loan Agreement for Due Diligence Review Costs (for the Period July 1, 2012 – 
December 31, 2012)” (“Second Loan Agreement”).  On or about September 10, 2013, the City 
and the Successor Agency entered into that certain “Third Loan Agreement for Enforceable 
Obligations, Administrative Costs and Project-Related Expenses” (“Third Loan 
Agreement”) which was subsequently amended by the “First Amendment to the Third Loan 
Agreement” (“Third Loan Amendment”) entered into on or about December 9, 2014. This 
First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement does not modify the First Loan Agreement, Second 

2 

W1470-002 -- 1493771.1 Exhibit "A"

2 of 5



Loan Agreement, Third Loan Agreement or Third Loan Amendment in any respect.  The First 
Loan Agreement, Second Loan Agreement, Third Loan Agreement and Third Loan Amendment 
remain in full force and effect in accordance with their terms. 

ARTICLE III. 

TERMS 

3.1 Amendment of Fourth Loan Agreement.  This First Amendment to Fourth Loan 
Agreement modifies the Fourth Loan Agreement as provided herein.  Except as specifically 
amended by this First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement, the Fourth Loan Agreement is 
unaffected by this First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement and remains in effect in 
accordance with its terms. 

3.2 Fourth Loan Increase.  The City agrees to disburse the Fourth Loan Increase to 
the Successor Agency in periodic installments (each, an “Installment” and, collectively, 
“Installments”) of any amount upon the Successor Agency’s request, so long as the total of all 
Installments does not exceed Fifty-Eight Thousand Dollars ($58,000), inclusive of accrued 
interest.  Each disbursement request must be accompanied by documentation which reasonably 
evidences the amount of Litigation Expenses incurred by the Successor Agency.  The Fourth 
Loan Increase will be disbursed to the Successor Agency to be held in its accounts and will be 
used to pay the Successor Agency’s Litigation Expenses.  The Fourth Loan Increase is not a 
revolving line of credit and no further Installments will be disbursed once the total of all 
disbursements equals Fifty-Eight Thousand Dollars ($ 58,000). 

3.3 Interest and Repayment Terms.  Each Installment will become due and payable in 
full on the March 1 or October 1 (whichever occurs first) following the date of disbursement.  
Each disbursed and outstanding Installment will accrue interest at the rate earned by funds 
deposited by the City into the Local Agency Investment Fund, as it may be adjusted from time-
to-time (“LAIF Rate”), from the date of its disbursement until fully repaid. 

3.4 Limitation on Total Amount Repayable Under This First Amendment to Fourth 
Loan Agreement.  Anything to the contrary in this First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement 
notwithstanding, the maximum aggregate amount, inclusive of principal and interest, that may 
become payable by the Successor Agency under this First Amendment to Fourth Loan 
Agreement is Fifty-Eight Thousand Dollars ($58,000).  The amount of interest accrued and 
payable under Section 3.3 will be reduced or forgiven by the City as needed so that the Successor 
Agency’s total obligation under this First Amendment to Third Loan Agreement does not exceed 
Fifty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($58,000). 

3.5 Inclusion on Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.  

A. The Successor Agency will identify this First Amendment to Fourth Loan 
Agreement as an enforceable obligation under CRL 34173(h) on each Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule (“ROPS”) to be submitted by the Successor Agency to the Department of 
Finance for all fiscal until the Fourth Loan Increase has been fully repaid, including interest.  The 
Successor Agency will request an allocation of property taxes from the “Redevelopment 

3 

W1470-002 -- 1493771.1 Exhibit "A"

3 of 5



Property Tax Trust Fund” (established pursuant to CRL Section 34170.5 and administered by 
the County Auditor-Controller in accord with CRL Sections 34182 and 34183) (“RPTTF”) on 
each ROPS covering any fiscal period in which the Successor Agency has a repayment 
obligation under this First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement.  The Successor Agency will 
continue to make allocation requests on all subsequent ROPS until the Fourth Loan Increase and 
all accrued interest has been fully repaid.  The amount of each allocation request will be equal to 
the sum of the Successor Agency’s repayment obligation arising during the period covered by 
the ROPS plus the remaining balance (if any) of any repayment due during a prior ROPS period 
which was not fully paid. 

B. The Successor Agency will prepare each ROPS as required by the CRL 
and submit it to the Oversight Board and such other governmental agencies as the CRL may 
require from time-to-time.  The Successor Agency will take all other actions as required by the 
CRL or other applicable authority to ensure that the Successor Agency receives an allocation of 
taxes from RPTTF in the amounts necessary to satisfy the Successor Agency’s payment 
obligations under this First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement.   

3.6 Amendment or Modification.  This First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement 
and the Successor Agency’s obligations under it may be amended or modified only in the 
following ways: 

A. By the mutual written agreement of the City and the Successor Agency, 
following all notices, hearings and approvals required by then-applicable provisions of the CRL 
and other legal authority. 

B. As required to conform to future changes in the CRL, other applicable 
legal authority, or pursuant to an order or judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction. 

3.7 No Other Successor Agency Income or Assets Subject to Repayment Obligation.  
No funds or other assets of the Successor Agency other than property tax allocations from the 
RPTTF may be used for the repayment of the Successor Agency’s obligations under this First 
Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement.  

3.8 Remedies for Breach.  If the Successor Agency fails for any reason whatsoever to 
fulfill its obligations under this First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement, the City may, 
without notice or demand, accelerate all payments to become due under this First Amendment to 
Fourth Loan Agreement and declare the entirety of the unpaid Fourth Loan Increase principal 
and accrued interest immediately due and payable. 

[Signatures on following page] 

4 

W1470-002 -- 1493771.1 
Exhibit "A"

4 of 5



[Signatures to First Amendment to Fourth Loan Agreement for 
Enforceable Obligations, Administrative Costs and Project-Related Expenses] 

ATTEST: 

Beatriz Vazquez Flores, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: ______________________ __ 
Alan J. Smith, City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

Beatriz Vazquez Flores, City Clerk as 
Secretary to the Successor Agency 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

CITY 

City of Watsonville, a California charter law city and 
municipal corporation 

By: ________________________________ _ 
Name: Marcela Tavantzis, Interim City Manager 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

The Successor Agency to the Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Watsonville, a public entity 
created and existing under the authority of CRL 
Section 34173 

By: ----------------------------------
Name: Marcela Tavantzis, Interim City Manager 

5 

Wl470-002 -- 1493771.1 

Exhibit "A"

Page 5 of 5



Page 1 of 6
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2015\02-24-15\Climate Action Plan\CAPstaff report.doc\2/9/2015 3:45 PM\SM\dm 

  City of Watsonville 
Community Development Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: February 5, 2015 

TO: Marcela Tavantzis, Interim City Manager 

FROM: Keith Boyle, Acting Community Development Director 
Suzi Merriam, Acting Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Council Consideration of adoption of a Climate Action Plan 
and Carbon Fund for the City of Watsonville. 

AGENDA ITEM: February 24, 2015 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council: 

1. Adopt a Resolution approving the Mitigated Negative Declaration
2. Adopt a Resolution approving the Climate Action Plan
3. Adopt an Ordinance establishing the Carbon Fund Program

PROCEDURE: 
Watsonville Municipal Code Chapter 2.1-201 outlines the procedures for adoption of legislation 
in the City of Watsonville.  The City Council has authority to take final action on adoption of the 
Climate Action Plan and Carbon Fund Ordinance. 

The City created a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) of seven members to assist the 
consultant team and City staff in developing the Climate Action Plan and Carbon Fund.  The 
TAC met regularly for approximately 1 year, at public meetings, and gave significant input in 
crafting both the Climate Action Plan and Carbon Fund. 

The City held two community workshops on September 18, 2013 and May 8, 2014 to inform 
the community of the Climate Action Plan process and to gain feedback from the public on 
both the Climate Action Plan and the Carbon Fund program.  Both meetings were well 
attended and provided the City with valuable information from the community and interested 
stakeholders. 

BACKGROUND/ DISCUSSION: 
Proposal: The City of Watsonville proposes the adoption of a Climate Action Plan to reduce 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions in the City of Watsonville over the next 15 years.  The 

CITY COUNCIL 6.1a

deborah.muniz
Approved

marcela.tavantzis
Approved



Page 2 of 6 

 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2015\02-24-15\Climate Action Plan\CAPstaff report.doc\2/9/2015 3:45 PM\SM\dm 

 

Climate Action Plan furthers the goals of the General Plan by providing pedestrian and bicycle 
friendly neighborhoods, increased transportation options, improved energy efficiency, reduced 
waste and increased recycling, and protection of open space.  The adoption of the Climate 
Action Plan and Carbon Fund are timely as Governor Brown has recently announced the goal 
to increase the use of renewable energy to 50% in the next 15 years.   
 
The Climate Action Plan includes GHG inventories from 2005 (the baseline year for 
compliance with AB32) and 2010 (most recent inventory), policies to reduce GHG emissions to 
meet state targets, and a section on adapting to climate change, as past emissions will 
continue to affect the City for years to come. 
 
The City is also proposing the adoption of a Carbon Fund Ordinance that will provide additional 
funding for GHG reduction measures that are outlined in the Climate Action Plan.  A proposed 
Carbon Fee would be applied to development projects and would be based on a percentage of 
the building permit fee.  It is estimated that the Carbon Fund may raise approximately $80,000 
per year for GHG reduction measures. 
 
Background:  The State of California has been a national leader in adopting regulation to 
reduce GHG emissions at the state level since 2002, with the adoption of regulations to reduce 
vehicle emissions.  In 2005, Executive Order S-3-05 (http://gov.ca.gov/news.php?id=1861) set 
the first statewide emission reduction target goals, which set an initial target of reducing GHG 
emissions to 1990 levels by the year 2020, and reducing those emissions to 80% below 1990 
levels by the year 2050.  The baseline year was modified to 2005 rather than 1990 because 
gaining GHG information as far back as 1990 proved impractical. 
 
AB32, the Global Warming Solutions Act, was passed in 2006 that further refined Executive 
Order S-3-05 and gave authority to the California Air Resources Board to establish 
mechanisms to achieve the reductions mandated by S-3-05.   
 
On January 5, 2015, Governor Jerry Brown called for the increase in the use of renewable 
energy to 50 percent in the next 15 years to fight against climate change. 
 
The City of Watsonville was awarded a Strategic Growth Council Sustainable Communities 
Planning Grant in January, 2013, in order to develop a local plan to reduce the City’s GHG 
emissions by 2020, 2030, and 2050 in line with the requirements of AB32.  The grant was 
awarded to the City for the creation of a Climate Action Plan and Carbon Offset Program for 
the City.   
 
TECHNICAL ANALYSIS 
 
Climate Action Plan  
The purpose of the Climate Action Plan is to provide a blueprint for future growth and 
development in the City that focuses on sustainable goals, policies and measures for smart 
growth.  These policies include pedestrian and bicycle friendly neighborhoods, increased 
transportation options, improved energy efficiency, reduced waste and increased recycling, 

http://gov.ca.gov/news.php?id=1861


Page 3 of 6 

 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2015\02-24-15\Climate Action Plan\CAPstaff report.doc\2/9/2015 3:45 PM\SM\dm 

 

protection of open space, and metrics to quantify the estimated GHG reduction savings of such 
policies. 

Sectors Identified: 

The City considered GHG reductions from the following sectors: 

4. Residential energy:  electricity and natural gas consumption in all residential 
buildings. 

5. Commercial/industrial energy:  electricity and natural gas consumption in all non-
residential buildings. 

6. Transportation and mobile sources:  fuel consumption of on-road vehicles used on 
local roads, off-road equipment, freight trains, and aircraft using the Municipal 
Airport. 

7. Wastewater treatment:  emissions from processing wastes and the resulting effluent 
at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

8. Solid waste:  methane emissions from the City’s landfill, and methane  
 emissions from solid waste generated within the City limits and sent to the landfill. 

GHG Inventory: 

In order to begin the process of creating the Climate Action Plan, the City had to determine 
what our GHG emissions levels were.   

The Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) conducted GHG inventories for 
the City of Watsonville for 2005 and 2010, to provide a baseline year and an update to give the 
City an idea of what emissions we have generated since the economic downturn (inventories 
included as Attachments 1 and 2). 

In 2005, the City’s GHG emissions totaled 219,773 metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalents.  
The total emissions in 2010 were 187,959 metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalents.  This 
shows a 14% reduction in emissions since 2005, and was largely due to the economic 
downturn and decreased commercial and industrial activity in the City.   

The Climate Action Plan outlines policies to reduce the GHG emissions to the following: 

 2020:  186,807 metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalents  

 2030:  164,830 metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalents 

 2050:  50,548  metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalents 
 

Creation of Policies: 

In order to reach reduction targets, the Climate Action Plan outlines existing, new, and 
supporting actions that the City should take in the energy, transportation, green building, solid 
waste, and water and wastewater sectors in the short and long term. 

These include a wide range of programs and policies that include increased participation in the 
Green Business Program, voluntary lawn replacement/removal programs, implementation of a 
formal bike lane and bike infrastructure program, and promotion of renewable energy such as 
solar panels and tankless water heaters. 

The policies included in the Climate Action Plan address reductions that can be made in the 
next 5-15 years.  The Technical Advisory Committee, as well as the consultant team, 



Page 4 of 6 

 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2015\02-24-15\Climate Action Plan\CAPstaff report.doc\2/9/2015 3:45 PM\SM\dm 

 

understood that technologies will change substantially between today and 2030, and additional 
policies may be adopted at that time to address reductions needed to meet the 2050 goals.  

Adapting to a Changing Climate: 

The Climate Action Plan includes steps to address the unavoidable impacts of climate change 
that will occur even with the adoption of GHG reduction measures.  Even if all carbon 
emissions were stopped today, some of the effects are likely to continue decades into the 
future. 

The City faces a rise in sea level, a rise in temperature, and changes in annual rainfall and 
rainfall patterns.  The City will see more high temperature days, increased salt-water intrusion 
on the local aquifer, and may see more drought conditions and severe storms.   

The City already has many measures in place to reduce our use of water, to increase the tree 
canopy, and to build safer and more energy efficient buildings; however, it is important to plan 
for decreased water availability, extreme weather patterns, and more land within the 100-year 
floodplain. 

Tracking GHG Reductions: 

The Climate Action Plan includes an outline for the City to track progress in reducing GHG 
emissions.  The Climate Action Plan will be updated every 5 years, with a new GHG inventory 
to be conducted in 2016.  GHG inventories will be conducted every 5 years through 2031. 

Carbon Offset Program 

In order to help offset the costs of implementing the policies outlined in the Climate Action Plan 
and to incentivize the use of renewable energy, the City is proposing the creation of a Carbon 
Fund.   The Carbon Fund will encourage the installation of solar photovoltaic systems on new 
and existing buildings in the City while at the same time providing a continuous funding 
mechanism for GHG reduction measures identified in the Climate Action Plan.  The Carbon 
Fund follows Governor Brown’s challenge to increase energy use to 50% in the next 15 years. 
Currently less than 25% of California’s retail electricity comes from renewable energy. 

The Carbon Impact Fee would be applied to all development projects with the exception of 
single family residential alterations, temporary buildings, and non-habitable buildings.  It is 
anticipated that the Carbon Fund will generate approximately $80,000 per year.  A few 
examples of how the fee will be calculated for different construction projects are outlined in the 
table below.  Keep in mind that all projects are eligible for a refund of the Carbon Fee by 
installing solar panels or other renewable energy devices in the construction. 

 

Project Construction 
Valuation 

Building Permit Fee Carbon Fee 

Commercial Addition $309,771 $5,010 $1,670 

Residential Addition $160,085 $1,326 $442 

New Commercial 
Building 

$1,153,548 $6,720 $3,360 

 



Page 5 of 6 

 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2015\02-24-15\Climate Action Plan\CAPstaff report.doc\2/9/2015 3:45 PM\SM\dm 

 

The Technical Advisory Committee, consultants, and City staff believe that taking this bold 
step in incentivizing the installation of renewable energy in development projects will have a 
double benefit of providing funds to implement the policies in the Climate Action Plan but also 
provide a monetary incentive for private developers to install renewable energy in construction 
projects.  The Carbon Fund Ordinance is unique, and many jurisdictions are looking to the City 
of Watsonville as a leader in Climate Change policy.  It is likely that once implemented here, 
the Carbon Fund will be implemented in other jurisdictions.  This is a bold way for the City to 
meet Governor Brown’s challenge to increase the use of renewable energy. 

For more information on the Carbon Fund, see Attachment 3. 

Environmental Review: 
An initial study was prepared for the Climate Action Plan and Carbon Fund, and circulated for 
a 30-day period on October 6, 2014.  Environmental factors potentially affected include 
greenhouse gas emissions and air quality. 
 
The policies contained in the Climate Action Plan will improve air quality in the City of 
Watsonville and reduce GHG emissions.   
 
REPORT FROM PLANNING COMMISSION: 
The Climate Action Plan and Carbon Fund were considered by the Planning Commission on 
November 4, 2014.  The Planning Commission adopted a Resolution recommending that the 
City Council approve both the Climate Action Plan and Carbon Fund (see Attachment 7).  
 
CONCLUSION/ RECOMMENDATION: 
The Climate Action Plan provides a clear path to enable the City of Watsonville to reduce its 
greenhouse gas emissions in compliance with state regulations by the years 2020, 2030, and 
2050.  In addition, the Carbon Fund will create a continual funding stream to implement the 
GHG reducing policies outlined in the Climate Action Plan, while incentivizing the installation of 
renewable energy in private development.  The Carbon Fund directly addresses Governor 
Brown’s challenge to increase the use of renewable energy to 50% by 2030. 
 
The Climate Action Plan is a comprehensive document that includes ways to track projects to 
determine compliance with the Plan, time periods for review and updates to the Plan, and 
policies to assist in adapting to a changing climate.  
 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council adopt the Climate Action Plan 
and the Carbon Fund Ordinance. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
The Climate Action Plan will indirectly benefit the downtown area as it includes policies to 
improve the walkability of the City, including the downtown area.  Further, the Carbon Fund 
Ordinance will bring in additional money that will fund programs that reduce carbon emissions 
that may otherwise require financing from the General Fund. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The adoption of the Climate Action Plan will have a positive impact on City finances with the 
adoption of the Carbon Fund, as all programs are voluntary.  The Carbon Fund will provide a 



Page 6 of 6 

 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2015\02-24-15\Climate Action Plan\CAPstaff report.doc\2/9/2015 3:45 PM\SM\dm 

 

continual funding stream to pay for implementation of the voluntary policies and programs 
outlined in the Climate Action Plan.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The City Council may request that modifications be made to the Climate Action Plan and/or 
Carbon Fund. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 2005 GHG Emissions Inventory 
2. 2010 GHG Emissions Inventory 
3. Carbon Fund FAQ 
4. Minutes from selected Technical Advisory Committee meetings 
5. Planning Commission Staff Report 11/4/14 
6. Excerpt of Minutes from 11/4/14 Planning Commission Hearing 
7. Planning Commission Resolutions on Climate Action Plan, Carbon Fund, and Mitigated 

Negative Declaration 
 
cc: City Attorney 



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 1 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 2 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 3 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 4 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 5 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 6 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 7 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 8 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 9 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 10 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 11 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 12 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 13 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 14 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 15 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 16 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 17 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 18 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 19 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 20 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 21 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 22 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 23 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 24 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 25 of 26



ATTACHMENT 1
Page 26 of 26



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 1 of 9



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 2 of 9



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 3 of 9



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 4 of 9



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 5 of 9



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 6 of 9



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 7 of 9



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 8 of 9



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 9 of 9



 
 

WATSONVILLE CARBON FUND PROGRAM  
FACT SHEET 
June 16, 2014 

  

 1 

What is the Carbon Fund Program? 
The proposed Watsonville Carbon Fund Program, to be adopted by ordinance, is a mechanism to 
incentivize energy efficient buildings, on-site renewable energy technologies and fund greenhouse gas 
reduction projects city-wide. The Carbon Fund Program will add a Carbon Impact Fee to all new 
development. Applicants of development projects can be refunded a portion or all of their Carbon Impact 
Fee if they reduce their development’s average annual electricity demand through on-site renewable 
energy and/or energy efficiency. The Carbon Impact Fees collected will be routed to a Carbon Fund from 
which the City will fund only greenhouse gas reducing projects in the City.   
 
Who does the Carbon Fund Program impact? 
The Carbon Fund Program impacts all new proposed development including  
 

 New construction: all non-residential and residential  
 Additions: all non-residential and residential 
 Alterations: all non-residential and multi-family residential 

 
Single family residential alterations are exempt from the Program and will not be assessed the Carbon 
Impact Fee. 
 
How will the Carbon Impact Fee be assessed? 
The Carbon Impact Fee is calculated as a percent of the overall development project’s valuation, 
depending on whether it is new construction or an addition/alteration.   
 

Type of Development Carbon Impact Fee 
(percent of building 

permit fee) 
New non-residential and residential construction 50% 
Non-residential and residential additions 30% 
Non-residential and multi-family alterations 30% 

 
Applicants will pay the Carbon Impact Fee at the same time as other development and permit Fees, after 
submitting plans and appropriate documentation for plan review.  No separate payment is required.  
 
How can the Carbon Impact Fee be refunded? 
Voluntary compliance with the Carbon Fund program may be achieved by installing an on-site 
renewable energy system and providing documentation that demonstrates the system will offset either 
40% or 80% of the project’s average annual electricity demand.  Applicants who achieve voluntary 
compliance will be refunded either 50% or 100% of the Carbon Impact Fee after submission and 
approval of the Carbon Fund Program Voluntary Compliance Worksheet and proper documentation and 
installation of an on-site renewable energy generation system that has been inspected and approved. 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 1 of 2



 
 

WATSONVILLE CARBON FUND PROGRAM  
FACT SHEET 
June 16, 2014 

  

 2 

 
Type of Development Eligible for refund 
New non-residential and residential construction Yes 
Non-residential and residential additions Yes 
Non-residential and multi-family alterations Yes 

 
Single family alterations are exempt from the program and do not pay the Carbon Impact Fee. 
 
When does the Carbon Fund Program and collection of Carbon Impact Fees go into effect? 
The Carbon Fund Ordinance will be taken to the City Council for consideration in 2014.  The Impact Fee 
will go into effect 6 months after adoption of the Ordinance. 
 
Where will I find the Carbon Fund Program ordinance and Worksheet? 
Information about the Carbon Fund Program, the ordinance and the voluntary compliance worksheet 
will be located at the Watsonville Community Development office and website:  
http://cityofwatsonville.org 
 
How will funds collected by the Carbon Fund be used?   
As outlined in the ordinance, the Carbon Fund must be used for projects that reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions, as follows: 
 

 Projects proposed by Public Works, Planning, and other departments are eligible to use funds 
 Projects proposed must have a direct or indirect greenhouse gas emissions reduction identified 
 Projects proposed should be aligned with the priorities identified in the Climate Action Plan 

 
How will projects be selected and funds disbursed for projects? 
Any projects proposing to utilize money from the Carbon Fund must be approved by City Council. 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 2 of 2



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 1 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 2 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 3 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 4 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 5 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 6 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 7 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 8 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 9 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 10 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 11 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 12 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 13 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 14 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 15 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 16 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 17 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 18 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 19 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 20 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 21 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 22 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 23 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 24 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 25 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 26 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 27 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 28 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 29 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 30 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 31 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 32 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 33 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 34 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 35 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 36 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 37 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 38 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 39 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 40 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 41 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 42 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 43 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 44 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 45 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 46 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 47 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 48 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 49 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 50 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 51 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 52 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 53 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 54 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 55 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 56 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 57 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 58 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 59 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 60 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 61 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 62 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 63 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 64 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 65 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 66 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 67 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 68 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 69 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 70 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 71 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 72 of 73



ATTACHMENT 4
Page 73 of 73



ATTACHMENT 5
Page 1 of 5



ATTACHMENT 5
Page 2 of 5



ATTACHMENT 5
Page 3 of 5



ATTACHMENT 5
Page 4 of 5



ATTACHMENT 5
Page 5 of 5



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2015\01.13.15\Climate Action Plan\Attachment 6 110414 excerpt minutes.doc 

 

 
EXCERPT OF M I N U T E S 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
275 MAIN STREET, 4th FLOOR, WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 

  
 Tuesday, November 4, 2014 6:06 P.M. 
 
5.3 A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER  RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

ON ADOPTION OF A CLIMATE ACTION PLAN AND CARBON FUND PROGRAM 
FOR THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE. 

 
a) Staff Presentation  

 
The staff report was given by Senior Planner Suzi Merriam.  She introduced 
Betty Seto from KEMA, James Barsminantov and Tiffany Wise-West from Eco-
Shift Consulting.  She stated that they have all been working together for over a 
year to create a Climate Action Plan (CAP) and Carbon Fund (CF) for the City.  
The goal of the CAP is to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in Watsonville over 
the next 15-20 years following the policies outlined in the 2030 General Plan. In 
addition to the CAP, the City is proposing the adoption of a Carbon Fund 
Ordinance that would provide additional funding for greenhouse gas reduction 
measures that are outlined in the CAP.  A carbon fee is being proposed which 
would be applied to development projects based on a percentage of the building 
permit fee.   It is estimated that the Carbon Fund could bring in up to $80,000 per 
year for greenhouse gas reduction measures.    She explained that the City 
received a grant in 2013 to create a CAP and CF.  The City created a Technical 
Advisory Committee composed of 7 members.  The TAC assisted the City and 
the consultants for over a year in drafting a CAP and CF.  Two community 
workshops were held on September 18, 2013 and May 8, 2014.  They received 
valuable feedback at these workshops.  

 
b) Applicant Presentation  

 
Ms. Seto gave an overview of the CAP. She spoke about the project components 
that provide a vision for community-wide greenhouse gas reductions.  The Public 
Works and Community Development Departments will be responsible for 
implementing the CAP.  The State requires a greenhouse gas inventory update 
every 5 years. 
 
Mr. Barsminantov gave an overview of the CF.  An extensive exhausted search 
was conducted on what other municipalities in the country including England are 
doing. The CF will impact all new proposed development; however, single family 
residential alterations are exempt. The Ordinance will be effective 6 months after 
adoption by City Council. 
 

c) Public Hearing 
 

Chairperson Corley opened the Public Hearing, and hearing no public comments, 
closed the Public Hearing. 

ATTACHMENT 6
Page 1 of 3



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2015\01.13.15\Climate Action Plan\Attachment 6 110414 excerpt minutes.doc 

 

 
d) Commission Discussion 
 

Commissioner Jenkins asked why the focus was only on development since 
greenhouse gases come from other things such as transportation, manufacturing 
and food processing. 
 
Ms. Merriam replied that the CAP addresses all sectors.  This fee is the most  
reliable and cost effective way to create an ongoing funding stream. 
 
Mr. Boyle stated the City is taking the lead on this, no other city in the country is  
doing this. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked what will be done with the $80,000. 
 
Mr. Boyle stated the fund will be controlled locally. The policies are defined by  
the CAP and a committee will make yearly recommendations to City Council. 

 
Ms. Merriam stated creating community gardens, bike and trail paths, climate 
outreach and education through the Public Works Department are just some of 
the types of projects that can be funded by the CF.  The CF can be carried over 
from year to year.  She emphasized that no other City in the County has done 
this. 
 
Commissioner Corley asked if the CF can also fund low flow toilets and back 
yard rain barrels. 
 
Ms. Merriam replied “yes” and also lawn replacement programs and other types 
of retrofits. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked if there any examples of other communities in 
California or in the United States that have a similar funding mechanism for these 
types of activities.  
 
Mr. Barsminantov replied the City of South Hampton in England has a similar 
type of program that has a fee on proposed developments. 
 
Ms. Seto stated Boulder, Colorado has a carbon tax that they use to fund their 
programs which is a different type of funding mechanism. 
 
Ms. Merriam stated the City has other Impact Fees that are similar to this. 
 
Commissioner Danna stated that his only concern is that the country is coming 
off from a recession and development is important There are other fees that 
developers are faced with.  
 
Mr. Barsminantov replied after extensive research, the City’s fees are either in 
line or lower than neighboring jurisdictions.  The original fee was much higher but 
was lowered to half the amount after receiving input from the TAC.  They feel this 
fee will not discourage development. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked if the CAP is subject to review every 5 years. 
 

ATTACHMENT 6
Page 2 of 3



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2015\01.13.15\Climate Action Plan\Attachment 6 110414 excerpt minutes.doc 

 

Ms. Merriam replied “yes” and it can be brought back for modification.  She 
thanked the TAC, consultants and the public who attended the workshops.  They 
all worked very hard to make a successful program. 
 
Commissioner Castillo thanked staff and the TAC for their hard work. 
 

e) Motion: 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Castillo, seconded by Commissioner Jenkins, 
and carried by the following vote to adopt a resolution recommending that the 
City Council 1) Adopt a Resolution approving the Mitigated Negative Declaration; 
2) Adopt a Resolution approving the Climate Action Plan; and 3) Adopt an 
Ordinance establishing the Carbon Fund Program: 

 
AYES:  COMMISSIONERS:  Castillo, Danna, Jenkins, Sarmiento, Corley 
NOES:  COMMISSIONERS:  None  
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:    Gonzalez, Gomez-Contreras 
 

6.0 REPORT OF SECRETARY 
 
 Acting Secretary Keith Boyle reported that the December 2nd Planning Commission 

meeting will be longer since there are several items.  The Police Department is still 
conducting their investigation of the recent death of a patron from the “Villager Bar.”  The 
Appleton Grill will be on the agenda for the December 2nd meeting. Several items will be 
forthcoming to the Planning Commission in 2015 including 3 hotels and several 
apartment building projects.  Marcela’s first day back to work was today and she is doing 
well. 

 
7.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 

Chairperson Corley adjourned the meeting at 7:45 p.m.  The next Planning Commission 
meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, December 2, 2014 at 4:30 p.m. in the City Council 
Chambers. 
 

 
___________________________  _________________________ 
Keith Boyle, Acting Secretary   Marty Corley, Chairperson 
Planning Commission    Planning Commission 
 

ATTACHMENT 6
Page 3 of 3



ATTACHMENT 7
Page 1 of 6

ATTACHMENT 7
Page 1 of 6



ATTACHMENT 7
Page 2 of 6

ATTACHMENT 7
Page 2 of 6



ATTACHMENT 7
Page 3 of 6

ATTACHMENT 7
Page 3 of 6



ATTACHMENT 7
Page 4 of 6

ATTACHMENT 7
Page 4 of 6



ATTACHMENT 7
Page 5 of 6

ATTACHMENT 7
Page 5 of 6



ATTACHMENT 7
Page 6 of 6

ATTACHMENT 7
Page 6 of 6



RESOLUTION NO. __________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE ADOPTING THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE CLIMATE 
ACTION PLAN 

WHEREAS, State regulations call for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions 

to 2005 levels by 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Watsonville was awarded a Sustainable Communities 

Planning Grant in 2013 to develop a Climate Action Plan to identify policies to reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Watsonville worked with a consultant team and Technical 

Advisory Committee to develop policies to address climate change in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Watsonville has developed a Climate Action Plan that 

includes policies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions to levels outlined by the State of 

California, as well as policies to address climate change; and 

WHEREAS, on or about November 4, 2014, the Planning Commission adopted 

Resolution No. 22-14 (PC) recommending that the City Council adopt a Resolution 

approving the Climate Action Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the appropriate public noticing procedures have been followed and a 

public hearing was held according to Section 14-10.900 of the Watsonville Municipal 

Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered all written and verbal evidence 

regarding the Climate Action Plan; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\011315\Climate Action Plan.docx 
ri 1/7/2015 5:04:34 PM          AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.1e



That the City Council hereby approves the City of Watsonville Climate Action Plan 

attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 
******************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\011315\Climate Action Plan.docx  
ri 1/7/2015 5:04:34 PM 

2 



 

 

   

 

City of Watsonville Climate Action Plan 
 

Draft for Planning Commission Review 
 

Updated: June 2, 2014 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

 

Acknowledgements 

City of Watsonville 

City Council 

Felipe Hernandez, Mayor Pro Tempore 

Karina Cervantez, Mayor 

Lowell Hurst, City Council Member 

Eduardo Montesino, City Council Member 

Daniel Dodge, City Council Member 

Trina Coffman-Gomez, City Council Member 

Dr. Nancy A. Bilicich, City Council Member 

Technical Advisory Committee 

Karina Cervantez, Watsonville City Council 

Marty Corley, Couch Distributing and Watsonville Planning Commission 

Angelica Gonzalez, Watsonville Resident 

Chase Kalijian, Driscoll’s 

Jonathan Pilch, Watsonville Wetlands Watch 

 

City Staff 

Suzi Merriam, Senior Planner 

Keith Boyle, Principal Planner 

Robert Ketley, Senior Utilities Engineer 

Gabriel Gordo, Solid Waste Division Manager 

Marcela Tavantzis, Assistant City Manager 

 

Consultants 

DNV GL – Energy 

Amy Jewel 

Betty Seto 

Jim Leahy 

Nate Kinsey 

Brad Haydel 

 

EcoShift 

James Barsimantov 

Tiffany Wise-West 

 

 
Copyright © 2013, KEMA Services, Inc. 

This document, and the information contained herein, is the exclusive, confidential and proprietary property of 

KEMA Services, Inc. and is protected under the trade secret and copyright laws of the United States and other 

international laws, treaties and conventions. No part of this work may be disclosed to any third party or used, 

reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying and 

recording, or by any information storage or retrieval system, without first receiving the express written permission 

of KEMA Services, Inc. Except as otherwise noted, all trademarks appearing herein are proprietary to KEMA 

Services, Inc. 



  

 

  1 

Table of Contents 
 

Acknowledgements ....................................................................................................................................... ii 

1. Executive Summary .............................................................................................................................. 3 

1.1 Summary of Findings ................................................................................................................. 3 

1.2 2005 and 2010 Greenhouse Gas Inventories, Future Emission Projections, and Reduction 

Targets ................................................................................................................................ 3 

1.2.1 Emission Reductions by 2020 and 2030 ..................................................................................... 5 

1.3 Climate Adaptation ..................................................................................................................... 9 

1.4 Next Steps ................................................................................................................................. 11 

2. Introduction ......................................................................................................................................... 13 

2.1 Brief Introduction to Climate Change ...................................................................................... 13 

2.2 Regulatory Framework and Current Drivers for a CAP ........................................................... 13 

2.2.1 Executive Order S-3-05 ............................................................................................................. 14 

2.2.2 Global Warming Solutions Act (Assembly Bill 32) .................................................................. 14 

2.2.3 Assembly Bill 1493, the Pavley Bill ......................................................................................... 15 

2.2.4 Senate Bill 375 .......................................................................................................................... 15 

2.2.5 California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) ........................................................................ 15 

2.2.6 California Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) ..................................................................... 15 

2.3 Watsonville’s Vision and Overall Objectives for the CAP ...................................................... 16 

3. Summary of GHG Emissions Inventories and Emissions Targets ...................................................... 17 

3.1 Summary of 2005 Baseline GHG Inventory and 2010 GHG Inventory Update ...................... 17 

3.1.1 2005 and 2010 Inventory Details .............................................................................................. 19 

3.2 GHG Forecasts ......................................................................................................................... 22 

3.3 Emission Targets and Reduction Needed to Reach the Targets ............................................... 23 

4. GHG Reduction Policies and Programs .............................................................................................. 25 

4.1 Description of Existing and New Actions, Categorized by Emission Sectors ......................... 25 

4.2 Energy ....................................................................................................................................... 26 

4.2.1 Existing Actions ........................................................................................................................ 27 

4.2.2 New Actions .............................................................................................................................. 27 

4.2.3 Supporting Actions .................................................................................................................... 30 

4.2.4 Summary of GHG Reductions from Energy ............................................................................. 30 

4.3 Transportation ........................................................................................................................... 31 

4.3.1 Existing Actions ........................................................................................................................ 32 

4.3.2 New Actions .............................................................................................................................. 34 

4.3.3 Supporting Actions .................................................................................................................... 35 

4.3.4 Summary of GHG Reductions from Transportation ................................................................. 35 

4.4 Water and Wastewater .............................................................................................................. 37 

4.4.1 Existing Actions ........................................................................................................................ 37 

4.4.2 New Actions .............................................................................................................................. 38 

4.4.3 Supporting Actions .................................................................................................................... 39 

4.4.4 Summary of GHG Reductions from Water and Wastewater ..................................................... 41 

4.5 Solid Waste ............................................................................................................................... 42 

4.5.1 Existing Actions ........................................................................................................................ 43 

4.5.2 New Actions .............................................................................................................................. 43 

4.5.3 Supporting Actions .................................................................................................................... 43 



  

 

  2 

4.5.4 Summary of GHG Reductions from Solid Waste ..................................................................... 44 

4.6 Green Buildings, Green Business, and Local Food .................................................................. 45 

4.6.1 Existing Actions ........................................................................................................................ 46 

4.6.2 New Actions .............................................................................................................................. 47 

4.6.3 Summary of GHG Reductions from Green Buildings, Green Business, and Local Foods ....... 48 

4.7 Summary of All Expected GHG Reductions by 2020 and 2030 .............................................. 49 

5. Climate Adaptation ............................................................................................................................. 52 

5.1 Expected Climate Change Impacts ........................................................................................... 53 

5.1.1 Secondary Impacts .................................................................................................................... 54 

5.2 Current policies and programs that address climate change impacts ....................................... 60 

5.3 Future priorities ........................................................................................................................ 61 

6. Implementation and Tracking ............................................................................................................. 66 

6.1 Near-term and long-term actions .............................................................................................. 66 

6.2 Implementation - roles and responsibilities .............................................................................. 67 

6.2.1 Tracking Tool for GHG Reduction Actions .............................................................................. 68 

6.2.2 Implementation of Climate Adaptation Priorities ..................................................................... 68 

6.3 Updates to GHG emission inventories and the CAP document ............................................... 69 

7. Appendices .......................................................................................................................................... 71 

Appendix A: References ..................................................................................................................... 71 

Appendix B: Full text of 2005 baseline GHG inventory .................................................................... 74 

Appendix C: Summary of 2010 GHG inventory update ..................................................................... 75 

Appendix D: Details of methodologies for calculating GHG reductions............................................ 76 

D1. Energy ............................................................................................................................................... 76 

D2. Transportation ................................................................................................................................... 77 

D3. Water and Wastewater ...................................................................................................................... 79 

D4. Solid Waste ....................................................................................................................................... 80 

D5. Green Building and Green Business ................................................................................................. 81 

 

  



  

 

  3 

The CAP will enable 

Watsonville to realize its 

vision as a livable, 

walkable, sustainable 

community. The City of 

Watsonville strives to serve 

as a model for other 

municipalities throughout 

California and beyond. 

 

1. Executive Summary 

The city of Watsonville has a history of environmental stewardship, with decades of experience working 

to conserve natural resources, protect ecological areas, and increase public awareness of environmental 

issues. As a reflection of these values, the Watsonville VISTA 2030 General Plan, a blueprint and 

roadmap for future growth and development in the city, focuses on sustainable goals, policies and 

implementation measures related to smart growth and 

preservation of valuable agricultural areas. The city of 

Watsonville’s Climate Action Plan (CAP) serves to reinforce 

these and other policy commitments, such as encouraging 

pedestrian- and bicycle-friendly neighborhoods, increased 

transportation options, improved energy efficiency, reduced 

waste and increased recycling, and protection of open space, 

and also quantifies the estimated greenhouse gas (GHG) 

reduction savings of such programs.  

In addition, this CAP assists Watsonville to prepare for the 

potential impacts of climate change and protect public health, 

safety and critical infrastructure. The CAP identifies and 

prioritizes policies and programs that both reduce GHG 

emissions and increase the ability of the city to adapt to future 

climate impacts.  

The ultimate goal of the CAP is to produce a comprehensive plan and program that will enable the city of 

Watsonville to realize its vision as a livable, walkable, sustainable community with a focus on in-fill 

development that is more appealing to residents, workers, and visitors, and preserves open space, 

farmland and critical environmental areas. The city of Watsonville strives to achieve these goals and serve 

as a model for other municipalities and communities throughout California and beyond. 

1.1 Summary of Findings 

1.2 2005 and 2010 Greenhouse Gas Inventories, Future Emission 

Projections, and Reduction Targets 

Watsonville’s community greenhouse gas emissions inventory utilizes 2005 as its baseline year, and 

tracks greenhouse gas emissions every five years. Together, the results of the 2005 and 2010 inventories 

show trends in emissions over time, which are used to guide the development of emission reduction 

targets and overall reduction strategies in this CAP.  



  

 

  4 

In 2005, total emissions from the city of Watsonville equaled 219,773 metric tons (MT) of carbon dioxide 

equivalents (CO2e).
1
 The total emissions in 2010 were 187,959 MT CO2e, a decrease of 14% from 2005 

emissions. A summary of the inventory totals by sector is shown in Figure 1. 

Figure 1: Summary of 2005 and 2010 GHG Emissions by Sector 

 
 

Growth in population, housing, and jobs is expected in the city of Watsonville, and reduction levels must 

be set against expected growth by 2020 and 2030, and not the current emission levels. The GHG forecast 

is used to understand future emissions in the “business-as-usual” scenario, which assumes no additional 

action is taken to reduce GHG emissions. GHG emissions are forecasted to 2020, 2030, and 2050. 

Forecasts are based on the most recent data available, including the emissions level of the 2010 inventory, 

and also the growth projections that are included in the Watsonville VISTA 2030 General Plan Update.  

The city of Watsonville is committed to achieving the 2020 target set by the State of California in AB 32, 

namely, to achieve 1990 levels by 2020. Based on state guidance, the 2020 target is calculated as 15% 

                                                      
1
 CO2e is a normalized unit of measurement used in GHG inventories, in which various different GHG emissions 

(such as carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), and nitrous oxide (N2O)) are combined into one unit.  



  

 

  5 

Watsonville is on track 

to meet the 2020 and 

2030 targets, and will 

start the path of a 

reduced emissions 

trajectory to achieve the 

2050 reduction target. 

 

below 2005 levels by 2020. The city will continue on the trajectory to reach the 2050 reduction target by 

adopting a mid-term target of 25% below 2005 emissions by 2030. These targets are illustrated along with 

the forecasted growth in emissions in Figure 2. 

Figure 2: Future GHG Emissions Growth and Reduction Targets 

 

 

 

1.2.1 Emission Reductions by 2020 and 2030 

The city of Watsonville has an extensive set of policies and programs 

designed to increase sustainability and local resilience through water 

and energy conservation, increasing renewable energy, supporting 

alternative transportation, and encouraging residents, businesses, and 

other organizations to “go green.”  The actions that Watsonville is 

taking to achieve GHG reductions are categorized by emission sector; 

for each sector, there are supporting actions, existing actions, and new 

actions. The majority of actions are based on voluntary programs in 

which residents or businesses participate by choice. A summary of the 

reductions in each sector are listed in Table 1. 

 



  

 

  6 

Table 1: Summary of City Emission Reductions by Type of Action and Sector 

Sector Type of 

Action 

Description GHG 

Reductions by 

2020 

GHG 

Reductions by 

2030 

Energy Existing Citywide Street Tree Plan 116 386 

Energy Watch Programs and other Utility Energy Efficiency Programs 2,389 2,734 

Solar PV Installed To Date 229 229 

New New Renewable Energy Installation Through Incentives and Outreach 545 2,108 

Outreach to Businesses to Increase Participation in Energy Watch / PG&E programs 433 1,982 

Partner with School Districts to Encourage Solar on Schools 0 264 

Community Choice  Aggregation Program 1,390 5,542 

Promote Smart Meter Based EMS 289 991 

Supporting Home Energy Assistance Program Not quantified Not quantified 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 5,390 14,236 

Transportation Existing Provide bicycle and pedestrian amenities 473 753 

Implement safe routes to schools program 369 1,845 

Support car-sharing and regional ridesharing 375 1,682 

Implement neighborhood traffic calming projects 189 430 

Promote traffic signal synchronization and other intelligent transportation system (ITS) 

technologies 

 

579 3,306 

New Implement formal bike lane and bike infrastructure program 574 1,957 

Work with METRO and other transportation agencies in conjunction with local land use 

and parking policies to increase local public transit ridership by 5% by 2020 and 20% by 

2030. 

15 61 

Supporting Promote electric vehicle infrastructure Not quantified  Not quantified 

Establish distribution points for alternative fuels within Watsonville for general use by the 

public. 

Promote infill development along transit corridors and in the downtown area (2030 GP) 

Not quantified 

 

Not quantified 

Not quantified 

 

Not quantified 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 2,575 10,035 



  

 

  7 

Sector Type of 

Action 

Description GHG 

Reductions by 

2020 

GHG 

Reductions by 

2030 

Water and 

Wastewater 

Existing Utility water conservation programs 246 949 

Outdoor water landscaping ordinance (applies to new landscaped areas over 2,500 square 

feet) 

0.25 0.60 

New Voluntary program to encourage greywater systems - "Laundry to Landscape" 0 1 

Voluntary Native Plant Landscaping & Voluntary Lawn Removal Programs 0 5 

Supporting Wastewater treatment plant - recycled water storage Not quantified Not quantified 

City-operated water conservation and outreach programs, including free water audits Not quantified Not quantified 

Recommended guidelines for improving stormwater runoff provided in a voluntary 

program. 

Not quantified Not quantified 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 246 955 

Solid Waste Existing City-wide curbside recycling program for residential and non-residential community 

members 

183 223 

City-wide residential curbside yard waste pickup 186 232 

New Curbside green waste pickup for non-residential community members 0 117 

Curbside food waste pickup for residential and non-residential community members 0 669 

Supporting Free compost bins and training to residents Not quantified Not quantified 

Plastic and single-use carryout bag restrictions Not quantified Not quantified 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 369 1,241 

Green 

Buildings, 

Green 

Business, 

and Local 

Food 

Existing Existing Green Building Ordinance and Compliance with New State Requirements 147 258 

Encourage Participation in the Green Business Program 53 106 

Establish Community Gardens 8 15 

New Net Zero Fee for New Construction 3 8 

Monthly Food Swap 0 3 

Increase Participation in the Green Business Program 611 2,052 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 821 2,441 

Total of All Existing Actions: 5,541 13,149 

Total of All New Actions 3,859 15,759 

GRAND TOTAL OF ALL REDUCTIONS: 9,401 28,908 



  

 

  8 

A number of state-level policies will also lead to GHG reductions in the city of Watsonville; a summary 

of the reductions to be achieved within the city of Watsonville due to State-level policies is provided in 

Figure 3. 

 

Figure 3: Emission Reductions in Watsonville in 2020 and 2030 due to State Policies
2
  

 

Figure 4 shows a summary of the business-as-usual forecast, the reduction targets, and the 2020 and 2030 

emission levels expected in the city of Watsonville after all City-level reductions and state-level 

reductions that occur within Watsonville are included. With the incorporation of all reduction measures, 

Watsonville is on track to meet the 2020 and 2030 targets, and will start the path of a reduced emissions 

trajectory to achieve the 2050 reduction target. 

                                                      
2
 For more details about these state-level policies, please see section 2.2: Regulatory Framework and Current 

Drivers for a CAP. 



  

 

  9 

Even if all carbon 

emissions were 

stopped today, some 

of these effects are 

likely to continue 

decades into the 

future. 

Figure 4: GHG Forecast, Reduction Targets, and Watsonville’s Expected GHG Emission Levels  

 
 

1.3 Climate Adaptation 

California is already experiencing the effects of climate change. Even if 

all carbon emissions were stopped today, some of these effects are likely 

to continue decades into the future. Climate adaptation planning refers to 

being pro-active and taking steps to address the unavoidable impacts of 

climate change. Adaptation efforts are intended to increase the 

community’s resiliency in the face of current and future risks from 

extreme events and natural disasters and from changes in weather 

patterns. Resilience includes not only the ability to withstand dangerous 

situations, but also to recover quickly from major events, such as storms, 

floods, or fire.  

Climate adaptation planning requires an ongoing, iterative process that reconsiders risks and the strategies 

to address potential impacts on a regular basis. This CAP provides an overview of the potential effects of 

climate change on the city, the current policies in place to help mitigate the impacts, and potential 

strategies for further consideration. To understand which areas are potentially deficient of strategies to 

protect against the impacts of climate change, the level of risk associated with the hazards was assessed in 

order to identify appropriate additional actions for the city to take. To do this, a risk ranking for each of 

the potential impacts was performed.  

Reduction targets 

City emissions 

with CAP 

reductions 

GHG Emissions 

Forecast 



  

 

  10 

 Heat wave 

 Drought 

 Long-term power outages  

 Severe Storms 

 

The risk ranking (Figure 5) was developed based on the probability of an event occurring over the next 

40 years versus the estimated magnitude of the consequences associated with the event. For our purposes, 

consequences are based on the vulnerability of property and human life and the impacts an event would 

have on property and human life. 

Based on the assessment of the current policies in place and the risk associated with impacts of concern, 

impacts that likely require additional attention include: 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 5: Risk Ranking, 2010 – 2050 

(Risk = Probability x Consequence) 

M
ag

n
it

u
d

e 
o

f 
C

o
n

se
q

u
e

n
ce

 

H
ig

h
   

- Heat waves 
- Long-term power 

outages  

- Flooding  
- Salt-water 

intrusion 
 

M
o

d
e

ra
te

 

  

- Changes in 
seasonal patterns  

- Loss of natural 
habitat / 
ecosystems  

- Severe storms   

Lo
w

 

      

- Drought 

  

Low Moderate High Extremely High 

  Probability of Occurrence 

Legend 
Recommended 
Action Based on 
Level of Risk 

No Action Monitor 
Evaluate 
Mitigation 
Strategies 

Develop and 
Implement 
Strategies 

 

Flooding and salt-water intrusion are also on-going concerns of the city, but both of these hazards are 

well-known and addressed by existing plans, policies, and initiatives. The assessment provided in this 



  

 

  11 

CAP is meant to serve as an initial assessment of potential risks and provide the groundwork for ongoing 

adaptation planning. In going forward it is recommended that the city:  

 Conduct a community-wide assessment of environmental, health, socioeconomic, and equity 

vulnerabilities, and full assessment of potential climate change impacts, their severity and the 

potential timing of those impacts.  

 Continue to evaluate and implement the near term actions that address future heat waves, drought, 

power system reliability and severe storms. 

 Continue to implement the mitigation measures identified in the City of Watsonville Local 

Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 

1.4 Next Steps  

This CAP presents a bold vision for the future, and includes a collection of new and existing actions 

designed to reduce emissions and also increase local resiliency. All of the new actions presented in this 

plan are worthy, high-priority programs that would lead to GHG reductions as well as other social and 

environmental benefits. Like many cities, the city of Watsonville has limited resources; in addition, the 

City is considered a Disadvantaged Community, with a large percentage of the population falling below 

the critical poverty level. Therefore, it is critical that Watsonville prioritize implementation of actions due 

to budget and staff constraints. Therefore, this CAP uses a scoring system to understand which actions 

could be implemented in the near term (defined as 2014 – 2020) and which could be implemented in the 

longer term (defined as after 2020).  

However, while the actions are presented as near-term and long-term actions, circumstances rapidly 

change; some long-term actions could be implemented in the near-term and vice versa. For example, 

funding availability is one key reason that an action might be considered long-term, but if funding were to 

become available, the action would be implemented in the near-term. 

The CAP will be implemented by City staff in an ongoing process that includes additional research, 

initiation of projects selected for immediate implementation, and monitoring of results. The CAP is a 

living document that will be updated on a regular basis. The city of Watsonville has assigned 

responsibility for overall implementation of the reduction strategies as shown in Table 2. 

Table 2: Implementation Responsibilities 

Sector Department 

Energy Public Works 

Transportation Public Works & Utilities Department, 

Community Development Department 
Water and Wastewater Public Works & Utilities Department 

Solid Waste Public Works & Utilities Department 

Green Buildings and Local Food Community Development Department  

Green Business Public Works & Utilities Department  
 



  

 

  12 

The city commits to ongoing tracking and monitoring of progress in order to determine if we are on track 

to meet our reduction targets. Each of the following items will be updated on a regular basis: GHG 

inventory updates; CAP progress reports, and full updates of the CAP itself.   

GHG Inventory Updates: The Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) is 

committed to supporting all the cities in the AMBAG jurisdictional area with GHG inventories and 

climate action planning. The 2005 and 2010 inventories were both completed by AMBAG, and future 

inventories will also be completed by AMBAG on a regular basis, and every 5 years at a minimum. The 

next full inventory update will be for calendar year 2015. 

CAP Progress Reports: A progress report will be issued every 2 years. This report will summarize 

progress made towards implementing the CAP measures, including estimates of the GHG reductions 

associated with each implemented measure, where possible, and a summary of any additional goals or 

indicators associated with each action. If the findings in the Progress Report reveal that Watsonville is not 

on track to meet the overall GHG reduction targets, then the CAP may be revised with new or updated 

programs, or more aggressive programs designed to achieve higher reductions. 

Full Update of CAP: A complete update of the CAP should occur if the Progress Report indicates that 

the city is not on track to meet its goals. The full update would include a summary of baseline and all 

additional GHG inventories with emissions trends; an update of the emissions growth forecast and 

reduction targets; and a summary of all new and existing actions, and how they are expected to reduce 

emissions by the target years. If Watsonville is not on track to meet targets, the CAP should include new 

actions or more aggressive actions to increase expected GHG reductions.  



  

 

  13 

Image from the Washington Department of Ecology Website: 

http://www.ecy.wa.gov/climatechange/whatis.htm 

 

Figure 6: The Greenhouse Effect 

2. Introduction  

2.1 Brief Introduction to Climate Change 

Greenhouse gases (GHGs) are gases in 

the atmosphere that trap heat from 

radiated sunlight and warm our 

planet, which is known as the 

greenhouse effect. Atmospheric 

scientists and others have reached a 

broad international consensus that 

elevated levels of GHGs in the 

atmosphere are changing the global 

climate. 

Human-caused GHG emissions 

have increased greatly since large-

scale industrialization began 

approximately 150 years ago. Most 

human-caused GHG emissions are 

from the combustion of fossil fuels 

for transportation and for energy 

use, including heating of buildings, 

electricity generation, and industrial 

processes.  The most common GHG emissions include carbon dioxide (CO2) methane (CH4), nitrous 

oxide (N2O), and three man-made gasses.
3
 The largest contributor to climate change is carbon dioxide 

emissions, followed by methane and nitrous oxide. 

Several impacts of climate change have already been observed in California and more impacts are likely 

in the future. Some of the impacts that may affect Watsonville in particular include sea level rise and 

increased high tides (and associated flooding); increased temperatures; and increased rainstorms and 

severe weather events. Other major expected impacts in California include disruption of ecosystems, 

habitats, and agricultural activities. Current and expected impacts to Watsonville related to climate change 

are explained more in Chapter 5 below.  

2.2 Regulatory Framework and Current Drivers for a CAP 

The State of California has been a leader in developing and implementing policies and regulations to 

directly address the risk of severe climate change. The key statewide legislation aimed to reduce GHG 

emissions are outlined in the table below.  

                                                      
3
 The three man-made GHGs are: hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PFCs), and sulfur hexafluoride 

(SF6). 

http://www.ecy.wa.gov/climatechange/whatis.htm


  

 

  14 

 

2.2.1 Executive Order S-3-05 

Executive Order S-3-05, issued by Governor Schwarzenegger in 2005 and more recently reaffirmed by 

Governor Jerry Brown, set the first statewide emission reduction target goals and also sets a schedule for 

the reporting of both the measured impacts of climate change upon California’s natural environment and 

the emissions reduction efforts undertaken by state, regional, and local groups. Executive Order S-3-05 

establishes an initial target of reducing GHG emissions back to 1990 levels by 2020, and an additional 

target of 80% below 1990 levels by 2050.  

2.2.2 Global Warming Solutions Act (Assembly Bill 32) 

In September 2006, the California legislature passed Assembly Bill (AB) 32, which created the first 

legislated regulation to set the goal of reducing GHG emissions back to 1990 levels by 2020. AB 32 finds 

and declares that “global warming poses a serious threat to economic well-being, public health, natural 

resources and the environment of California.” The legislation granted authority to the California Air 

Resources Board (ARB) to establish multiple mechanisms (regulatory, reporting, voluntary and market) to 

achieve quantifiable reductions in GHG emissions to meet the statewide goal. The ARB developed the AB 

32 Scoping Plan to outline the key strategies that the state will enact to reach the reduction goal; the 

Scoping Plan is currently being updated.  

The Discussion Draft of the Updated Scoping Plan
4
 finds that California is on its way to meet the 2020 

reduction target, although more action is needed in all sectors to reach additional targets beyond 2020. 

                                                      
4
 The Discussion Draft can be downloaded from the following webpage: 

http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/2013_update/discussion_draft.pdf 

The original Scoping Plan can be downloaded from the following webpage: 

http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/document/adopted_scoping_plan.pdf 

State Regulatory Framework Description 

Executive Order S-3-05 (2005) Requires reporting of impacts of climate change 

and set the first statewide reduction target goals. 

AB32- Global Warming Solutions Act 

(2006) 

Set goal to reduce GHG emissions to 1990 levels 

AB1493- The Pavley Bill (2002) Requires reductions in vehicle emissions 

SB375-Sustainable Communities (2009) Ties city/regional planning with transportation 

planning to reduce GHG emissions 

CEQA- California Environmental 

Quality Act 

Modified in 2010 with standards to review the 

impact of GHG emissions at the project level 

RPS- California Renewable Portfolios 

Standard (2002) 

Power companies must provide 33% of retail sales 

from renewable sources by 2020 

http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/2013_update/discussion_draft.pdf
http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/document/adopted_scoping_plan.pdf


  

 

  15 

Some of the future actions included in the Discussion Draft are part of this CAP, such as: expanded use of 

renewable energy; a commitment to net zero homes and businesses; continued use of low-carbon 

transportation fuels; more integrated land use planning and development; and increased recycling and 

composting of solid waste. 

2.2.3 Assembly Bill 1493, the Pavley Bill 

In 2002, the California legislature enacted AB 1493 (aka “the Pavley Bill”), which directs the ARB to 

adopt standards that will achieve "the maximum feasible and cost-effective reduction of GHG emissions 

from motor vehicles," taking into account environmental, social, technological, and economic factors. In 

September 2009, the ARB adopted amendments to the “Pavley” regulations to reduce GHG emissions in 

new passenger vehicles from 2009 through 2016. 

2.2.4 Senate Bill 375 

Senate Bill (SB) 375 enhances California's ability to reach its AB 32 goals by promoting good planning 

with the goal of more sustainable communities. The bill seeks to align regional transportation planning 

efforts with regional GHG reduction targets and land use and housing allocations. SB 375 requires ARB 

to develop regional GHG emission reduction targets for passenger vehicles. ARB is to establish targets 

for 2020 and 2035 for each region covered by one of the State's 18 metropolitan planning organizations 

(MPOs). The city of Watsonville is located in the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments 

(AMBAG) MPO and the adopted target for the AMBAG region is to achieve 2005 per capita GHG 

emissions from passenger vehicles and light trucks by 2020, and a 5% decrease from 2005 per capita 

GHG emissions from passenger vehicles and light trucks by 2035. SB 375 also requires MPOs to adopt a 

strategy designed to reach their region’s goals. 

2.2.5 California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires public agencies to review the environmental 

impacts of proposed projects, including General Plans, Specific Plans and specific kinds of development 

projects. In February 2010, the California Office of Administrative Law approved the recommended 

amendments to the State CEQA Guidelines for addressing GHG emissions.  The amendments were 

developed to provide guidance to public agencies regarding the analysis, mitigation, and effects of GHG 

emissions in draft CEQA documents.   

2.2.6 California Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) 

California’s Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) was originally established by legislation enacted in 

2002. Subsequent amendments to the law now require California’s investor-owned electric utilities 

(including the Pacific Gas & Electric Company, the utility that serves Watsonville) to have 33 percent of 

their retail sales sourced from eligible renewable resources in 2020 and all subsequent years. Renewable 

resources include wind, solar, geothermal, wave, and small hydroelectric power.  

 



  

 

  16 

 

The Watsonville CAP reinforces the 

policy commitments in the VISTA 2030 

General Plan, such as encouraging 

pedestrian- and bicycle-friendly 

neighborhoods, increased transportation 

options, improved energy efficiency, 

reduced waste and increased recycling, 

and protection of open space. 

2.3 Watsonville’s Vision and Overall Objectives for the CAP 

The city of Watsonville has a history of environmental stewardship, with decades of experience working 

to conserve natural resources, protect ecological areas, and increase public awareness of environmental 

issues. As a reflection of these values, the Watsonville VISTA 2030 General Plan, a blueprint and 

roadmap for future growth and development in the city focuses on sustainable goals, policies and 

implementation measures related to smart growth and preservation of valuable agricultural areas. The city 

of Watsonville CAP serves to reinforce these 

and other policy commitments, such as 

encouraging pedestrian- and bicycle-friendly 

neighborhoods, increased transportation 

options, improved energy efficiency, reduced 

waste and increased recycling, and protection 

of open space, and also quantifies the estimated 

greenhouse gas reduction savings of such 

programs.  

This CAP is also consistent with State CEQA 

Guidelines Section 15183.5, which allows 

jurisdictions to analyze and mitigate the 

significant effects of GHGs at a programmatic 

level, by adopting a plan for the reduction of 

GHG emissions. Later, as individual projects are proposed, project-specific environmental documents 

may tier from and/or incorporate by reference that existing programmatic review in their cumulative 

impacts analysis. Project-specific environmental documents prepared for projects consistent with the 

General Plan and CAP may rely on the programmatic analysis of GHGs contained in the EIR for the 

Watsonville VISTA 2030 General Plan and CAP. 

In addition to the regulatory requirements inherent in a “qualified” plan for the reduction of greenhouse 

gas emissions, the CAP assists the city of Watsonville to prepare for the potential impacts of climate 

change and protect public health, safety and critical infrastructure. The CAP identifies and prioritizes 

policies and programs that both reduce GHG emissions and increase the ability of Watsonville to adapt to 

future climate impacts.  

  



  

 

  17 

3. Summary of GHG Emissions Inventories and Emissions 

Targets  

To develop a CAP, the first step is to identify sources and activities causing emissions in the community, 

and the second step is to measure a baseline of those GHG emissions. The greenhouse gas inventory 

completes both of these initial steps and provides an estimate of the key sources of emissions resulting 

from activities in the city, such as energy use, transportation, and the disposal of solid waste in landfills. 

Also, the inventory process requires the selection of a base year with which to compare current emissions. 

Watsonville’s community greenhouse gas emissions inventory utilizes 2005 as its baseline year, and 

tracks greenhouse gas emissions every five years. Together, the results of the 2005 and 2010 inventories 

show trends in emissions over time, which are used to guide the development of emission reduction 

targets and overall reduction strategies in this CAP.  

AMBAG completed the 2005 and 2010 greenhouse gas inventories for the city of Watsonville with 

assistance from ICLEI – Local Governments for Sustainability and Pacific Gas & Electric Company 

(PG&E). Both inventories use the approach and methods provided by the Community Greenhouse Gas 

Emissions Protocol (Community Protocol)
5
. The full inventory report for the 2005 inventory baseline is 

included in Appendix B; the inventory report for the 2010 is not yet completed, but the final results of the 

inventory are completed and are included in Appendix C. The inventory results are summarized in this 

chapter of the CAP. A forecast of emissions to 2020 is also provided, as well as future GHG reduction 

targets, and a summary of the GHG reductions needed to achieve the targets. 

3.1 Summary of 2005 Baseline GHG Inventory and 2010 GHG 

Inventory Update 

The key sectors included in both the 2005 and 2010 inventories are as follows:  

 Residential Energy: Electricity and natural gas consumption in all residential buildings 

 Commercial/Industrial Energy: Electricity and natural gas consumption in all nonresidential 

buildings
6
 

 Transportation and Mobile Sources: Fuel consumption of on-road vehicles used on local roads,
7 

off-road equipment, freight trains, and aircraft using the municipal airport.  

 Wastewater Treatment: Emissions from processing wastes and the resulting effluent at the 

wastewater treatment plant. 

                                                      
5
 http://www.icleiusa.org/tools/ghg-protocol/community-protocol 

6
 One major electricity generation facility was excluded from the 2005 and 2010 inventories, in part because the city 

had little to no influence over this facility, and also because the facility closed in 2010 and results of the inventories 

would have been largely dominated by this closed power plant. 
7
 Highway travel in the city of Watsonville was omitted due to lack of data and lack of control over these emissions. 



  

 

  18 

Watsonville saw a 14% 

decrease in emissions between 

2005 and 2010. 

 

 Solid Waste: Methane emissions from the city’s landfill, and methane emissions from solid waste 

generated within the city limits and sent to the landfill.  

While the city has more control over the emissions from 

city-owned facilities and the city fleet, emissions from 

government operations are considered to be a subset of the 

nonresidential emissions in the community. For example, 

data on commercial energy use by the community includes 

energy consumed by municipal buildings, and community 

vehicle-miles-traveled estimates include miles driven by 

municipal fleet vehicles.  

In 2005, total emissions from the city of Watsonville equaled 219,773 metric tons (MT) of carbon dioxide 

equivalents (CO2e).
8
 The total emissions in 2010 were 187,959 MT CO2e, a decrease of 14% from 2005 

emissions. A summary of the inventory totals by sector is shown in Figure 7. 

Figure 7: Summary of 2005 and 2010 GHG Emissions by Sector 

 

                                                      
8
 CO2e is a normalized unit of measurement used in GHG inventories, in which various different GHG emissions 

(such as CO2, CH4, and N2O) are combined into one unit.  

85,605 83,973

82,340

51,546

39,085

39,903

12,309

8,517

434

4,019

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

2005 2010

M
TC

O
2
e 

/ 
ye

ar

Year

Transportation and Mobile Sources Commercial/Industrial

Residential Solid Waste

Wastewater Treatment



  

 

  19 

The single largest emissions 

source in the City is on-road 

transportation, followed by the 

Commercial/Industrial sector. 

 

As evident from Figure 7, the annual emissions decreased between 2005 and 2010 in all sectors except 

Residential and Wastewater. Between 2005 and 2010, Watsonville made major changes to the wastewater 

treatment plant, which explains the increase in wastewater-related emissions. The small increase in 

Residential sector emissions of 2% is similar to the population increase between 2005 and 2010 of 

approximately 3%.
9
  

The most significant decrease was in the Commercial/Industrial sector, at a reduction of 30,794 MT 

CO2e. While the exact causes of this decrease in the Commercial/Industrial sector are unknown, part of 

the decrease may be attributed to lowered economic activity due to the economic recession that occurred 

between 2005 and 2010. Transportation emissions declined slightly by 2%, and emissions in the Solid 

Waste sector decreased by 31%. 

3.1.1 2005 and 2010 Inventory Details 

The emissions in the 2005 and 2010 inventories are shown as coming from either sources or activities. 

 

 A source is any physical process inside the city’s boundaries that releases GHG emissions, and 

includes combustion of natural gas in buildings, or combustion of fuel in vehicles.  

 An activity is the use of energy, materials, and/or services by members of the community that 

result in GHG emissions, whether or not the emissions are created inside the city’s boundaries. 

One key activity is the use of electricity; although electricity is used within the city, the emissions 

from the electricity power plants are emitted outside of the city’s boundaries. 

 

Emissions from both sources and activities are important, and both are included in the 2005 and 2010 

inventories. The focus on these inventories is the emissions from both sources and activities over which 

the city of Watsonville has a significant level of control or influence.  

 

As noted above, total emissions in 2005 equaled 219,773 

MTCO2e. This level of emissions serves as the baseline 

against which to compare future reductions. The sector 

with the highest emissions in 2005 was transportation 

and other mobile sources: this sector comprised 39% of 

total emissions in 2005, followed by energy use in the 

commercial and industrial sector, which comprised 37% 

of emissions. A summary of 2005 emissions is shown in 

Figure 8.  

Within the Residential sector, emissions are due to both 

electricity use and natural gas consumption, and the 

same is true for the Commercial/Industrial sector. Within the Transportation sector, the largest source of 

emissions is on-road vehicles, but some emissions are also generated by off-road equipment, freight trains 

operating in the city limits, and fuel dispensed at the municipal airport. Off-road equipment typically 

                                                      
9
 2005 residential population was 49,571 while 2010 population was 51,199. 



  

 

  20 

includes construction equipment, forklifts and other commercial/industrial equipment, as well as 

landscaping equipment such as lawn mowers or leaf blowers.  

 

Figure 8: 2005 GHG Emissions by Sector 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 9: 2010 GHG Emissions by Sector 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

  21 

As noted in Figure 7, the 2010 inventory saw a significant decrease in emissions compared to 2005 

levels. Table 3 shows a detailed breakdown of the data that was used to calculate emissions for each 

sector. As noted above, emissions in the Commercial/Industrial sector saw a large decline. Drilling down 

into the Commercial/Industrial sector, one major reduction in activity and resulting emissions was in the 

electricity sector. Natural gas consumption within the commercial/industrial sector was only reduced by 

1%, while electricity consumption in the commercial industrial sector declined by 48%. Emissions in the 

solid waste sector decreased by 31%, in part due to improvements in landfill gas recovery at the City 

landfill.  

Table 3: Activity Data and Emissions Details of the 2005 and 2010 Inventories 

Source or Activity 2005 Activity Data 

Quantity and Unit 

2010 Activity Data 

Quantity and Unit 

2005 

Emissions 

(MTCO2e) 

2010 

Emissions 

(MTCO2e) 

Percentage 

change from 

2005  to 

2010 

Emissions 

Residential Use of 

Electricity 

55,981,010 kWh 59,947,206  kWh 12,524 12,143 -3% 

Commercial/Industrial 

Use of Electricity 

237,467,768 kWh 156,208,492 kWh 63,465 32,836 -48% 

Residential Stationary 

Combustion 

4,996,734 therms 5,249,041 therms 26,561 27,759 5% 

Commercial Stationary 

Combustion 

3,550,930 therms 3,526,173 therms 18,875 18,710 -1% 

On-road Vehicle 

Travel 

366,270 vehicle 

miles traveled daily 

376,835 vehicle miles 

traveled daily 

69,555 66,622 -4% 

Off-road Vehicle 

Emissions 

n/a n/a 13,644 15,024 10% 

Municipal Airport 259,731 gallons of 

fuel dispensed 

255,516 gallons of 

fuel dispensed 

2,263 2,270 0% 

Freight Rail 1,400 gallons of 

diesel 

560 gallons of diesel 142 57 -60% 

Potable Water 

Treatment and 

Distribution
10

 

n/a n/a 900 900 NA 

                                                      
10

 Potable water treatment emissions are estimated based on energy use intensity data provided by city of Watsonville Staff; these 

emissions have not been added to the summed Total because they are already captured in the Electricity and Stationary Fuel 

Combustion Categories above, but are shown for informational purposes only. 



  

 

  22 

Source or Activity 2005 Activity Data 

Quantity and Unit 

2010 Activity Data 

Quantity and Unit 

2005 

Emissions 

(MTCO2e) 

2010 

Emissions 

(MTCO2e) 

Percentage 

change from 

2005  to 

2010 

Emissions 

Wastewater Treatment 176,000 cubic feet 

of collected biogas 

per day; 60,000 

persons served by 

the plant 

174,100 cubic feet of 

collected biogas /day; 

66,000 persons served 

by the plant 

1,275 4,019 215% 

Generation of Solid 

Waste 

46,518 tons 

landfilled,  

148 million cubic 

feet of landfill gas 

collected 

41,373 tons landfilled,  

331.15 million 

standard cubic feet of 

landfill gas collected 

12,309 8,517 -31% 

Total Community-Wide Emissions: 219,773 187,959 -14% 

 

3.2 GHG Forecasts 

Growth in population, housing, and jobs is expected in the city of Watsonville, and reduction levels must 

be set against expected growth by 2020 and 2030, and not the current emission levels. The GHG forecast 

is used to understand future emissions in the “business-as-usual” scenario, which assumes no additional 

action is taken to reduce GHG emissions. GHG emissions are forecasted to 2020, 2030, and 2050. 

Forecasts are based on the most recent data available, which is the emissions level of the 2010 inventory, 

and are also based on growth projections that are included in the city of Watsonville VISTA 2030 General 

Plan. A summary of the forecast is shown in Table 4 and also in Figure 10. Details of the methodology 

and assumptions used for the GHG forecast are included along with the GHG results in Appendix D. 

Table 4: 2005/2010 GHG Emissions and Future Business-As-Usual Forecasts 

Source or Activity Historic Emissions Forecasted Emissions 

2005  2010  2020 2030 2050  

Electricity Consumption* 75,989 44,980 51,486 60,061 77,212 

Stationary Fuel Combustion* 45,436 46,489 53,190 62,049 79,768 

Transportation and Mobile Sources  85,606 83,973 95,456 110,377 140,218 

Solid Waste 12,309 8,517 9,653 11,120 14,054 

Wastewater Treatment  434 4,019 4,555 5,247 6,632 

Total Community-Wide Emissions 219,773 187,959 214,340 248,855 317,884 

* Note: Electricity consumption and stationary fuel combustion comprise the Residential Energy and 

Commercial/Industrial Energy sectors of the 2005 and 2010 inventories. 

  



  

 

  23 

Figure 10: Business-As-Usual Emissions Growth in Emissions 

 

3.3 Emission Targets and Reduction Needed to Reach the Targets 

The city of Watsonville is committed to achieving the 2020 target set by the State of California in AB 32, 

namely, to achieve 1990 levels by 2020. Based on state guidance, the 2020 target is calculated as 15% 

below 2005 levels by 2020. Furthermore, the city will continue on the trajectory to reach the 2050 

reduction target by adopting a mid-term target of 25% below 2005 emissions by 2030. These targets are 

illustrated along with the forecasted growth in emissions in Figure 11.  

In order to reach the 2020 and 2030 reduction targets, the following total emission reductions are needed:  

 By 2020: 45,622 MTCO2e 

 By 2030: 86,893 MTCO2e 

The next chapter of this CAP describes how these targets will be met, and what existing and new policies 

and programs the city will implement to meet these goals. 

  



  

 

  24 

 

Figure 11: Business-As-Usual Emissions Growth and GHG Reduction Targets 

 

 



  

 

  25 

4. GHG Reduction Policies and Programs 

4.1 Description of Existing and New Actions, Categorized by Emission 

Sectors 

The city of Watsonville has an extensive set of policies and programs designed to increase sustainability 

and local resilience through water and energy conservation, increasing renewable energy, supporting 

alternative transportation, and encouraging residents, businesses, and other organizations to “go green.”  

The actions that Watsonville is taking to achieve GHG reductions are described below by emission sector; 

for each sector, there are supporting actions, existing actions, and new actions. 

 Existing actions are policies currently in place that are actively being implemented by the city of 

Watsonville. Since no decisions need to be made about these actions, only the GHG reductions 

are calculated for these actions. 

 New actions represent new policies and programs that Watsonville might implement. Because 

there are 13 recommended new actions in this plan, they are analyzed in terms of cost, GHG 

reductions, and the feasibility of implementation. These actions are also scored on a scale of 1-10 

to assist in determining when these new actions might be implemented. More information about 

the scoring and implementation timeline of the new actions is found in Section 6.1. 

 Supporting actions are important actions that help facilitate the other actions. The reductions 

from these actions have not been quantified due to lack of data, lack of a reasonable 

methodology, and/or to avoid double-counting emission reductions. 

A summary of potential emission reductions achievable in Watsonville is shown in Figure 12. The 

energy and transportation sectors provide the largest opportunity for GHG reductions in Watsonville.  

Figure 12: Potential GHG Reductions in Watsonville by 2020 and 2030 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

  26 

Municipal Actions that Support GHG Reductions in 

the Energy Sector 
 

1. Retrofit LED streetlights 

2. Retrofits in municipal buildings to increase energy 

efficiency, and a “lights out at night” program for 

municipal buildings 

3. Install PV panels on municipal buildings  

4. Continue to pursue LEED or other green building 

certification of existing municipal facilities and any 

new facilities. (Note: No new facilities are 

currently expected to be constructed by 2030.) 

5. Partner with local stakeholders to implement pilot 

projects that support development of emerging 

alternative technology 

The energy and 

transportation sectors 

provide the largest 

opportunities for GHG 

reductions in Watsonville. 

 

All actions are described by sector below, and each sector also 

includes a summary table showing the GHG reductions expected by 

2020 and 2030 from the new and existing actions. The city is 

working to reduce its own carbon footprint in relation to the sectors, 

and a description of these municipal actions is also provided. 

Municipal actions are considered critical to GHG reductions and 

help to influence the community because Watsonville is leading by 

example. Appendix A provides a list of references used to create 

the list of actions, and Appendix D provides information on how 

the emission reductions for each action are calculated. 

 

 

4.2 Energy  

While some Watsonville residents and businesses generate electricity on-site through solar photovoltaic 

(PV) panels, the majority of electricity is purchased from PG&E, the utility that also provides natural gas. 

Emissions associated with consumption of electricity and natural gas account for approximately 49% of 

Watsonville’s 2010 GHG emissions inventory. A little more than half of this is from commercial and 

industrial uses, and a little less than half is from residential buildings.  

 

Typically, the best strategies for reducing 

emissions related to energy consumption 

start with conservation (reducing demand) 

and energy efficiency, then assessing 

opportunities to add renewable energy 

generation capacity. Examples of energy 

efficiency and conservation programs 

include incentives and rebates for updating 

older buildings and equipment with newer, 

more efficient technologies. Renewable 

sources of energy are becoming more 

available and affordable through tax 

incentives and technological advances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

  27 

4.2.1 Existing Actions 

Citywide Street Tree Plan 

 
Based on Watsonville’s Urban Greening Plan, the public 

streetscapes in Watsonville have enormous potential to 

incorporate more street trees.  Currently, the city’s total 

tree canopy coverage is approximately 7.8% with 

approximately 1,500 existing street trees.  This tree cover 

can reasonably be increased to a goal of 40% canopy 

cover with an additional 1,350 acres of tree canopy, or 

46,600 tree plantings, by 2030.  Trees also provide shade 

and additional aesthetic benefits to Watsonville’s 

neighborhoods. 

 

Energy Watch programs and other utility energy efficiency programs 

Energy Watch is a partnership between AMBAG and PG&E that has 

supported the completion of Watsonville’s Draft Energy Action Strategies 

and coordinated a standardized greenhouse gas inventory. The partnership 

also provides energy workshops and further technical assistance for 

residential and small business customers to become more energy efficient. 

Other energy efficiency programs available from the utility and other 

organizations includes a wide range of activities, such as direct install, 

weatherization of existing homes, and retail energy efficiency initiatives.   

Solar PV power installed to date 

PV panels are easy to install on many types of existing buildings or properties, and provide emissions-free 

electricity. PV technology uses semiconductors to produce electricity when hit by sunlight. In a PV 

system, these semiconductors are manufactured as solar cells, which are then assembled on to a structural 

panel. Panels can then be assembled into larger groups, or arrays, and can vary in size to provide the 

appropriate electricity demand. Watsonville currently has several solar PV systems in place at city 

facilities with over 529 kW of capacity installed. PV systems are located at City Hall, the Municipal 

Services Center, the Water Resource Center, and the Operations Building. The City also has ambitious 

plans for expansion. This action includes all solar PV installed to date. 

4.2.2 New Actions 

New renewable energy installation through incentives and outreach  

This action includes future solar installations (beyond what has been 

installed to date) and is based on four sub-actions to increase solar 

adoption: 1) reduce or remove permit fees for solar PV and solar hot 

water heaters 2) increase other incentives for renewable energy 



  

 

  28 

installation 3) collaborative outreach to businesses and residents regarding financing options for 

renewable energy, including Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) programs, and 4) bulk 

purchasing/preferred pricing for local residents and businesses for PV panels or solar hot water heaters. 

In California, the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) helps remove barriers to solar 

permitting by providing information and strategies to improve local permitting processes. Watsonville 

could adopt some of these strategies to streamline solar permitting, including: posting requirements 

online; implementing an expedited permit process; enabling online permit submission; and eliminating 

excessive inspections. 

PACE financing for energy efficient projects 

PACE is an innovative mechanism currently available to 

commercial property owners to finance energy efficiency and 

renewable energy upgrades to buildings. By eliminating upfront 

costs, providing low-cost long-term financing and making it easy 

for building owners to transfer repayment obligations to a new 

owner upon sale, PACE overcomes challenges that have hindered 

adoption of energy efficiency and related projects. PACE is 

currently available in Watsonville, but interest rates remain high. 

These rates are expected to decrease as more parties become familiar with the program. 

By implementing a bulk purchasing program, economies of scale enable installers to purchase panels for 

less and save on the total cost of installation. The particular approach chosen by Watsonville will vary 

depending on the total number of participants and how the projects are structured, but larger projects 

generally attract more bids, which increases competition and drive prices down. 

Solar and Tankless Water Heaters 

There are no known solar water heating systems currently installed in Watsonville, but this technology 

could be a viable method to reduce energy use throughout the city. Solar water heaters are designed to 

provide emissions-free heating for household water, space heating, and swimming pools, and can replace 

either electric or natural gas fired heating systems. Although these systems involve a higher initial cost 

than conventional water heaters, they are most often cost effective over the life of the system since the 

fuel they use is free and abundant. Investing in solar water heaters also tends to increase the resale value 

of homes, and averages an annual 6% to 25% tax-free rate-of-return on investment. This action assumes 

that Watsonville will educate residents and businesses about the benefits of these systems. Using tankless 

water heaters is another option that would save energy in 

comparison to conventional water heaters. 

Outreach to businesses to increase participation in 

Energy Watch / PG&E programs 

PG&E offers an array of energy efficiency services, 

including rebates and incentives, energy analyses, training 

and education. For example, Energy Upgrade California 

offers incentives to single-family homes who take a “whole 



  

 

  29 

house” approach by combining several energy efficiency improvements at once. PG&E’s Automated 

Benchmarking Service (ABS), allows customers to track and assess a building’s energy performance. 

This action assumes that the city will conduct additional outreach regarding the programs available to 

inform residents and businesses of their options for upgrades.  

Partner with school districts to encourage solar on schools 

The Pajaro Valley Unified School District (PVUSD) enrolls over 20,000 students across Watsonville, 

Aptos and the surrounding communities. PVUSD has plans to install solar on some schools, and the city 

of Watsonville will continue to coordinate with PVUSD to further encourage solar installations on 

schools. Since California’s schools spend an estimated $700 million each year on energy expenses, both 

energy efficiency and solar power poses a significant opportunity for schools.  

Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) Program  

Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) is a system which allows cities and counties to aggregate the 

buying power of individual customers in order to secure renewable energy supply contracts. Currently, 

nearly one million Americans receive service from CCAs. In California, AB 117 mandates that customers 

be automatically enrolled in the CCA that is formed in their area. Customers who wish to continue with 

the investor-owned utility company may choose to opt out of the CCA. 

Marin County created the first active CCA in California, and offers both a 50% renewable energy option 

and 100% renewable energy option to their customers, reinvesting net income back into community 

programs, primarily energy efficiency work in existing buildings. A CCA is currently being considered in 

Watsonville, with three counties (including Santa Cruz County) currently participating in a feasibility 

study in 2014. This action assumes that the three counties move forward with a CCA, and that 

Watsonville will join the CCA once it is formed.  

Promote smart meter based Energy 

Management Systems (EMS) 

 Energy management systems (EMS) are 

computer-aided tools used by building managers 

to monitor, measure, and optimize the 

performance of a facility’s energy endpoints, 

from heating, ventilation, and air conditioning 

(HVAC) and lighting, to refrigerators and more. 

The primary function of an EMS is to 

automatically turn off equipment when it is not 

needed. The systems also provide metering, sub-

metering and control functions that allow facility 

managers to gather data and insight that allows them to make more informed decisions about energy 

activities across their sites. Energy management systems can be managed from remote locations, and are 

capable of maintaining different schedules for different pieces of equipment with unique schedules for 

each day of the week. 

Image from the California Energy Commission 

website: http://www.energy.ca.gov/enhancedautomation/ 

http://www.energy.ca.gov/enhancedautomation/


  

 

  30 

4.2.3 Supporting Actions  

Home Energy Assistance Program (HEAP) 

Central Coast Energy Services (CCES),
11

 a local nonprofit organization, implements a number of 

successful energy and water conservation programs, including HEAP, which provides payment assistance 

with home energy bills, weatherization services for eligible applicants, and a water demand reduction 

program for homes and businesses. Both renters and homeowners can take advantage of HEAP services 

to reduce energy costs through heating and gas appliance efficiency inspections, installation of energy 

conservation measures, and free low-flow toilets, faucet aerators and low-flow showerheads.  

4.2.4 Summary of GHG Reductions from Energy 

Table 5 provides a summary of the reductions to be achieved by the actions in the energy sector. The 

three most aggressive actions relating to this sector are to incentivize renewable energy installation, 

increase participation in Energy Watch and other PG&E programs, and continued participation in the 

feasibility study and eventual adoption of a Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) Program. While the 

first two of these actions require substantial marketing and outreach by City staff or other partners to 

increase participation rates, the potential energy reductions and associated GHG reductions are 

significant. The share of emission reductions that each action is expected to achieve by 2020 and 2030 is 

shown in Figure 13. 

Table 5: Summary of GHG Reductions for Energy 

Type of Action Name GHG 

Reductions by 

2020 

GHG 

Reductions by 

2030 

Existing Citywide Street Tree Plan 116 386 

Energy Watch Programs and other Utility Energy Efficiency 

Programs 

2,389 2,734 

Solar PV Installed To Date 229 229 

New New Renewable Energy Installation Through Incentives and 

Outreach 

545 2,108 

Outreach to Businesses to Increase Participation in Energy 

Watch / PG&E programs 

433 1,982 

Partner with School Districts to Encourage Solar on Schools 0 264 

CCA Program 1,390 5,542 

Promote Smart Meter Based EMS 289 991 

Supporting Home Energy Assistance Program Not quantified Not quantified 

TOTAL REDUCTIONS: 5,390 14,236 

                                                      
11

 http://www.energyservices.org/   

http://www.energyservices.org/


  

 

  31 

Municipal Actions that Support GHG 

Reductions in the Transportation Sector 

 

1. Replace conventionally-fuelled 

vehicles with vehicles that have the 

lowest lifetime GHG impacts.  

2. Optimize truck routes to reduce fuel 

usage 

3. Expand use of biodiesel, especially as 

local supplies of biodiesel expand 

4. Reducing fleet size and/or incorporate 

car sharing in the municipal fleet 

5. Subsidize employee bus or transit 

ridership and incentivize other modes 

such as walking, bicycling and 

carpooling 

6. Implement flexible work schedule to 

allow work-from-home 

 

Figure 13: Potential GHG Reductions in the Energy Sector by 2020 and 2030 

 

4.3 Transportation  

The combustion of gasoline and diesel related to 

transportation is the largest source of greenhouse gas 

emissions for the city of Watsonville. The CAP builds upon 

the policies of the Watsonville General Plan to increase 

transportation options and integrate land uses and 

transportation to improve accessibility and livability goals.   

The Santa Cruz County Transportation Commission 

estimates that 2-3 percent of the daily trips taken in the 

Watsonville area are via transit – either fixed route buses or 

demand responsive paratransit.
12

 Public transportation is 

provided by the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District 

(METRO).   

There has been significant regional transportation planning 

efforts by both the Santa Cruz County Regional 

Transportation Commission (RTC) and AMBAG to set 

                                                      
12

 Watsonville VISA 2030. (page 6-13) 



  

 

  32 

priorities for major transportation infrastructure projects, such as highways, roads, bus transit, paratransit, 

rail and alternative transportation facilities. For instance, in 2012, the RTC completed a purchase of the 

Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line for freight and passenger rail service, preservation and future transportation 

use.  

The city of Watsonville will continue to work with regional agencies to leverage funding, technical 

assistance and to play a leadership role in the county and regional transportation working groups to 

promote programs and policies that reduce vehicle-miles-traveled within city limits and regionally.  

4.3.1 Existing Actions 

Provide bicycle and pedestrian amenities  

Per the 2012 City of Watsonville Trails & 

Bicycle Master Plan, the city will continue to 

support bicycle and pedestrian amenities such as 

bicycle parking, sidewalk improvements, and 

other pedestrian network improvements. 

Watsonville’s zoning code already establishes 

requirements for bike racks at new development 

and encourages enclosed bicycle parking at 

shopping centers, civic centers and businesses. 

The Watsonville Vista 2030 General Plan 

includes smart growth strategies that encourage 

higher density infill development along transit 

corridors and within the historic downtown area. 

Pedestrian networks such as trails and improved sidewalks can minimize physical barriers (e.g., walls, 

landscaping) and better connect people to their destination without using a car. Therefore, the city will 

continue to improve sidewalks for walking and maintain trails by removing and controlling the growth of 

weeds and invasive, non-native plant species. Approximately 7 miles of nature trails provide easy public 

access to the Watsonville Wetlands system. By 2030, the system is projected to have 15 miles of trails. 

Pedestrian safety and convenience will continue to be priority both in the urban and natural environments.  

 

Implement safe routes to schools program  

The Santa Cruz County Safe Routes to Schools 

program seeks to bring together schools, parents, non-

profits, city staff and public health officials to reduce 

traffic congestion, greenhouse gases and childhood 

obesity. The city of Watsonville will continue to 

coordinate with PVUSD to support pedestrian and 

bicycle infrastructure improvements around schools 



  

 

  33 

(e.g., improving crosswalks, adding pedestrian yield signs, curb ramps/extensions, etc.).  

Watsonville will also work with PVUSD to conduct outreach to students and their families with a goal to 

increase participation to 5% of students in 2020 and 25% by 2030. One idea is to market directly to high 

school students to encourage them to walk or bike to school.  For younger students, the marketing and 

outreach may be directed more towards parental awareness of existing programs.  

 

Support car-sharing and regional ridesharing 

Car-sharing and ridesharing are strategies to increase the number of people per vehicle to reduce the 

number of cars on the road. Car-sharing allows people to have on-demand access to a shared fleet of 

vehicles on an as-needed basis. Watsonville will support policies for a new car-sharing program with car-

share companies, with an initial focus on the downtown area near the transit center, with a city-wide goal 

of 5 shared cars by 2020 and 20 shared cars citywide 

by 2030. 

 Furthermore, RTC implements the Commute 

Solutions program (http://commutesolutions.org) to 

serve as the regional rideshare agency, which 

includes an instant online carpool matching service. 

The city will continue to prominently market the 

Commute Solutions program to employers, residents, 

students and other travelers.  The program provides 

financial incentives for forming new carpools, and 

information about tax benefits associated with vanpools. Watsonville will also promote and sponsor 

events such as “ridesharing month.”  

 

Implement neighborhood traffic calming projects 

To encourage people to walk or bike instead of driving, the city of Watsonville will continue to 

proactively manage neighborhood traffic to reduce noise, hazards, vehicular speeds, and vehicular 

volumes. Traffic management strategies include marked cross-walks, median islands, curb extensions and 

speed humps, as well as streetscape improvements and landscaping.  

 

Promote traffic signal synchronization and other intelligent transportation system (ITS) technologies 

Traffic signal synchronization is an important strategy for increasing the efficiency of Watsonville’s 

transportation infrastructure, and reducing GHG emissions associated with “stop-and-go” traffic. 

Implemented as part of an overall Transportation Systems Management (TSM) program, Watsonville will 

improve traffic flow to reduce idling and eliminate bottlenecks.  

http://commutesolutions.org/


  

 

  34 

Other intelligent transportation system (ITS) technologies will continue to be considered for re-route 

congested traffic, metering on-ramps and providing real-time traffic information to improve traffic flow 

within Watsonville. The city will continue to synchronize traffic signals and consider “real-time” traffic 

management for key roadways, such as Airport Boulevard, Green Valley Road, Freedom Boulevard, 

Main Street and other roads identified as part of regional transportation improvement plans. 

4.3.2 New Actions 

Implement formal bike lane and bike infrastructure program 

As mentioned in the 2012 City of Watsonville Trails & 

Bicycle Master Plan, the mild climate and  topography 

make biking an ideal mode of transportation for many 

community members. The Trails & Bicycle Master Plan 

outlines a proposed network of bike lanes, along with 

infrastructure such as bike lockers, racks, and repair shops. 

A formal bike lane and bike infrastructure program would 

go beyond current efforts described in the “existing actions” 

section above, and would outline a timeline for the build-out 

of the proposed new bike lanes (both on-street and trails) 

and ensure the timely implementation of the Trails & 

Bicycle Master Plan. The bike lane and infrastructure 

program should be used to leverage local, County, regional 

and statewide funding and grant programs.  

 

Work with METRO and other transportation agencies in conjunction with local land use and parking 

policies to increase local public transit ridership by 5% by 2020 and 20% by 2030.  

To increase transit use within the Watsonville area and 

surrounding areas, the city of Watsonville will continue 

to work with METRO to reduce waiting times and 

transfers, improve bus stop amenities (e.g., shelters), 

institute real-time arrival information and improve 

connections to Santa Cruz and other areas. In particular, 

Watsonville will increase outreach to residents, 

employees and visitors to provide information and 

resources for utilizing transit. Actions include 

prominently placing transit resources, schedules and maps (i.e., http://commutesolutions.org) on the city 

website.   

To further support these efforts, land use patterns outlined in Watsonville’s 2030 General Plan include 

high-density residential development in expansion areas, and mixed-use residential and commercial 

buildings along transit corridors. These policies, which locate people near transit corridors, will result in 

improved opportunities for local residents, employees and visitors to utilize transit.  

http://commutesolutions.org/


  

 

  35 

As part of an overall Transportation Demand Management program, the city of Watsonville will seek to 

increase transportation options for commute and other trip purposes and support transit ridership. Specific 

actions include: 

 Providing incentives to employers, hospitals and high trip generating facilities for reduced 

parking requirements, reduced development fees and development intensity bonuses to encourage 

walking. 

 Reducing minimum parking requirements in areas with good alternatives and clustered parking. 

 Encourage parking “cash out” and “commuter check” programs. 

4.3.3 Supporting Actions 

Other supporting actions are focused on alternative fueled vehicles within the city of Watsonville.  

Establish distribution points for alternative fuels within Watsonville for general use by the public. 

Locally produced biodiesel fuel reduces greenhouse gas emissions by displacing conventional fossil-fuel 

based diesel. In 2013, North Star Biofuels, located on the west side of town, began producing biodiesel 

from animal fats and distributing the fuel on a wholesale basis. To further support the use of alternative 

fuels, Watsonville will support and encourage retail distribution of alternative fuels for the general public. 

Other alternative fuels include compressed natural gas (CNG), and E85 (85% blend of ethanol).   

Promote electric vehicle infrastructure  

Watsonville will continue to support and develop electric 

vehicle charging infrastructure. In 2012, a new electric vehicle 

charging station was installed downtown on Main Street, and 

contributes to a network of charging stations throughout the 

region. Plug-in electric vehicles reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions because electricity produces fewer emissions per 

mile than gasoline or diesel.  

Solar-powered charging stations should be considered at 

municipal locations, PVUSD and major employers. The city of 

Watsonville will also adopt building codes that support plug-in 

electric vehicle charging. 

4.3.4 Summary of GHG Reductions from Transportation 

Table 6 provides a summary of the reductions to be achieved by the actions in this sector. For 

Watsonville, the highest impact actions are related to promoting and developing infrastructure to support 

walking and biking around town. Many of Watsonville’s policies and programs already commit to 

reducing vehicle miles traveled through biking, walking, ridesharing and transit. More efforts will be 

made to leverage and promote regional commute alternative programs, and work with regional transit 

Image from the Santa Cruz Sentinel 

Website:  
http://www.santacruzsentinel.com/portlet/article/

html/render_gallery.jsp?articleId=20851527&site

Id=6&startImage=3 

 

http://www.santacruzsentinel.com/portlet/article/html/render_gallery.jsp?articleId=20851527&siteId=6&startImage=3
http://www.santacruzsentinel.com/portlet/article/html/render_gallery.jsp?articleId=20851527&siteId=6&startImage=3
http://www.santacruzsentinel.com/portlet/article/html/render_gallery.jsp?articleId=20851527&siteId=6&startImage=3


  

 

  36 

agencies to improve service. The share of emission reductions that each action is expected to achieve by 

2020 and 2030 is shown in 

Figure 14. 

Table 6: Summary of GHG Reductions for Transportation 

Type of 

Action 

Name GHG 

Reductions by 

2020 

GHG 

Reductions by 

2030 

Existing Implement safe routes to schools program 369 1,845 

Provide bicycle and pedestrian amenities 473 753 

Support car-sharing and regional ridesharing 375 1,682 

Implement neighborhood traffic calming projects 189 430 

Promote traffic signal synchronization and other intelligent 

transportation system (ITS) technologies 

579 3,306 

New Implement formal bike lane and bike infrastructure program 574 1,957 

Work with METRO and other transportation agencies in 

conjunction with local land use and parking policies to increase 

local public transit ridership by 5% by 2020 and 20% by 2030. 

15 61 

Supporting Promote electric vehicle infrastructure Not quantified  Not quantified 

Establish distribution points for alternative fuels within 

Watsonville for general use by the public. 

Not quantified Not quantified 

TOTAL REDUCTIONS: 2,575 10,035 

 

Figure 14: Potential GHG Reductions in the Transportation Sector by 2020 and 2030 



  

 

  37 

Municipal Actions that Support GHG 

Reductions in the  

Water & Wastewater Sector 
 

1. Partner with the Pajaro Valley Water 

Management Agency on numerous 

projects to increase use of recycled 

water and reduce drawdown of the 

local aquifer. 

2. Increase use of waste methane gas at 

the wastewater treatment plant by 

30%, and combust the methane gas to 

generate renewable energy at the 

plant. 

3. Install irrigation control systems along 

with drought tolerant landscaping at 

City properties to conserve water, and 

install water-efficient fixtures inside 

City buildings. 

4. Develop new policies to ensure all 

City buildings are retrofitted with 

water efficient fixtures where feasible, 

and that all new landscaping is 

drought-tolerant. 

 

4.4 Water and Wastewater  

The Water and Wastewater sector is an important 

means to reduce GHG emissions through conservation 

and efficiency measures. The energy-water nexus 

creates a significant source of GHG emissions due to 

the energy needed pump, treat and distribute water to a 

variety of end users, as well as the energy needed to 

treat wastewater. Within the water and wastewater 

systems come many opportunities to identify and 

evaluate inefficiencies and take the necessary steps to 

implement more sustainable means of design, operation 

and functional use.  

The city of Watsonville is a few miles east of the 

Central California Coast and within the pristine Pajaro 

Valley Basin, where water quality and conservation is a 

major regional priority. The sensitive ecological lands 

are recognized as one of the area’s most important 

resources and an asset requiring an integrated approach 

to conservation and preservation for its long term 

viability. In order to continue to support the region’s 

economy and inherent environmental characteristics 

that have helped to shape and define it, the city and its 

community members have dedicated themselves to use 

water in a more sustainable manner.  



  

 

  38 

Watsonville has developed and implemented water conservation rebate programs, a water efficient 

landscape ordinance, outreach and education programs for stormwater runoff mitigation & efficiency 

audits, and landscape design guidelines. Watsonville continues to 

partner with its residents and businesses to promote conservation 

projects and voluntary programs to improve the overall efficiency 

of water use. 

4.4.1 Existing Actions 

Utility Water Conservation Programs  

The city took the initiative to develop two rebate programs to 

incentivize the community to conserve water through fixture and 

appliance efficiency upgrades. The City partners with Central 

Coast Energy Services, a group that replaces old toilets with 

newer high efficiency toilets (HET) that have at least a 1.28 gallon 

per flush (gpf) water use rate or lower. Over 3,300 toilets have 

been retrofitted, and each retrofit saves 750 gallons of water per 

year.  

Watsonville also provides $100 rebates for upgrading old laundry washing machines with new Energy 

Star-rated washing machines. On average, these new machines save roughly 38% more water when 

compared to older machines, as well as saving more energy. The washer rebate program started in 2003 

and has since issued over 2,500 rebates. 

While the washing machine rebate program may continue, it is likely the toilet rebate program will be 

discontinued, as many toilets have already been replaced, and a large portion of the toilets currently 

installed within the city of Watsonville are assumed to be water efficient. However, this action assumes 

that other rebate and incentive programs will be in place until 2030. 

Outdoor Water Landscaping Ordinance – New 

landscaped areas over 2,500 square feet 

The size of landscaped areas and the type of 

plants used can dramatically impact the amount 

of potable water used for landscape irrigation. 

The city has adopted the California Model 

Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance 

developed by the state. The framework of the 

ordinance helps reduce water consumption and 

water loss, which typically occurs as a result of 

water dependent planting design, inefficient 

irrigation systems, evapotranspiration and other 

factors.  

The city requires new landscape areas of over 

2,500 square feet to comply with the standards. These standards include water conservation use 



  

 

  39 

calculations, limitations on turf, high water use plants and water features, landscape and irrigation design 

principles, and soil management, although some exemptions are available. It is assumed that roughly five 

new developments a year will fall under the compliance requirements of this ordinance; at each site, an 

average 40 percent of total water use is assumed to be outdoor water consumption and it is estimated that 

nearly 50 percent water savings can be realized through the ordinance requirements, when compared to 

that of a conventionally designed landscape.  

4.4.2 New Actions 

Voluntary program to encourage 

greywater systems - "Laundry to 

Landscape" 

In an effort to further promote 

innovative approaches to conserve 

potable water resources, Watsonville 

aims to develop a greywater system incentive program and assist in education and outreach for these 

systems. The “Laundry to Landscape” system can be highly technical or a do-it-yourself approach to 

water reuse systems. The implementation of a less technological system will help keep costs down, 

reduce energy use associated with water pumping, and still provide the residential user with a good 

supply of recycled water for landscape irrigation. Additionally, the systems will reduce the need for 

municipal water delivery, providing even more cost and energy savings community wide.  

Low-tech strategies can distribute greywater to plants further away from the building on level ground or 

even at a minor uphill grade, due to the slight pressurization provided by the washing machine’s internal 

pump. Design kits are widely available and additional equipment needed can be found at local hardware 

stores. Total system costs including labor can range from $700 - $2,000, depending on the quality and 

quantity of additional material components and tools purchased, as well as the variance in wage scales for 

labor.  

Voluntary Native Plant Landscaping & Voluntary Lawn Removal Programs 

As part of the City of Watsonville Urban Greening Plan, 

which was formally adopted by City Council in 

November 2012, Watsonville developed and published 

the Landscaping Guidelines and Policies. These 

voluntary landscaping guidelines are applicable to City-

owned and privately-owned areas and introduce 

sustainable practices to landscaping; specifically, the 

guidelines include implementation strategies, design 

aesthetics, and maintenance of planting and irrigation. 

The guidelines could be consulted during plan review or 

maintenance audits, or may be of interest to anyone 

wishing to learn about sustainable landscaping, including 

homeowners, maintenance personnel, property managers 

and owners. This action assumes that water consumption 



  

 

  40 

will be reduced through voluntary use of the landscaping guidelines, and that 10 properties per year will 

implement the guidelines in some form or fashion. Many of these properties might be smaller in size or 

might be existing landscaped areas, and thus would not subject to the Mandatory Outdoor Water 

Landscaping Ordinance, which applies to new landscaped areas 2,500 square feet or greater in area. 

The voluntary lawn removal program would work in concert with the native plant landscaping principles 

and these should be considered co-dependent actions.  

4.4.3 Supporting Actions 

Wastewater Treatment Plant – Recycled Water Storage  

A key example of the commitment to water sustainability is the Wastewater treatment plant developed in 

partnership by the city of Watsonville and the Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency (PVWMA). The 

treatment plant was built on City property and is operated by City personnel and ties into the recycled 

water distribution system that is owned by the PVWMA. In order to reduce the need of potable water 

consumption for agriculture, the city is increasing its recycled water storage through a grant-funded 

project to build two new water storage tanks, which will store recycled water at night so it may be used 

when demand is high in the daytime. This helps to offset peak demand energy costs associated with 

treatment and promotes a more resilient water delivery infrastructure. In general, the recycled water plant 

reduces the need for fresh water pumping, and limits the amount of salt water intrusion.  

Additional City-operated water conservation and outreach programs  

Watsonville has a long standing commitment to water conservation practices throughout the community 

and operates a variety of assistance and education focused programs to promote sustainable water use 

principles. The city facilitates rebate programs (described in the “existing actions” section above), free 

audit consultations and outreach efforts aimed to inform and provide educational resources that reach all 

of its diverse demographic population. The following includes a list of some of these additional programs 

and a short description of each, as referenced in the Watsonville 2010 Urban Water Management Plan: 

 Water Survey Programs for Commercial, Single-family Residential and Multi-family Residential 

Customers. Includes indoor and outdoor water use surveys and audits to identify top water users 

and provide recommendations for water use reduction.  

 System Water Audits, Leak Detection, and Repair. The city conducts routine water audits, leak 

protection and necessary repairs on the distribution system.  

 Public Information Programs. Since 1995, the city has provided water conservation information 

to the public through various resource channels, including items such as bilingual tips and 

brochures with City utility bills; advertisements; door-to-door campaigns; and online resources. 

The city also runs school educational programs and has a Water Conservation Coordinator who 

works directly with the public.  

 Conservation Pricing. Watsonville has an inclining multi-block water tiered rate structure aimed 

to increase water conservation through price incentives.  

 Water Waste Prohibition. Pursuant to Municipal Code Ordinance 884-92(CM), the Customer 

Services Division handles all reports of prohibited water waste notices, such as poorly adjusted 

irrigation system operation.  



  

 

  41 

 

Recommended guidelines for improving stormwater 

runoff provided in a voluntary program. 

The city’s new Low Impact Development (LID) 

standards require treatment of 85% of stormwater 

event water, and infiltration of 95% of stormwater on 

site. The City also has a Best Management Practice 

Design Guidance document that provides ideas to 

reduce unnecessary stormwater runoff through 

strategies that promote source located water 

infiltration using nature. Many strategies are available 

that mimic predevelopment hydrology rather than 

managing off-site flows. For example, one LID 

commonly referred to as a “Rain Garden” manages the 

soil structure and promotes water infiltration and 

natural treatment.  

 

Other LID design strategies include water capture and storage, which can be accomplished using cisterns 

or rain barrels. Using more permeable and porous paving materials and techniques allows structural 

integrity for streets, walkways and hardscape areas, but affords more infiltration potential onsite. By 

implementing LID principles and practices, water can be managed in a way that reduces the impact of 

built areas and promotes the natural movement of water within an ecosystem or watershed. Applied on a 

broad scale, LID can maintain or restore a watershed's hydrologic and ecological functions and has been 

characterized as a sustainable stormwater practice by the Water Environment Research Foundation. 

 

4.4.4 Summary of GHG Reductions from Water and Wastewater 

Table 7 provides a summary of the reductions to be achieved by the actions in this sector. Many of the 

actions in this section are voluntary and utilize somehow low participation assumptions due to the 

voluntary nature of the programs. Other low participation rates are a result of programs that will be 

affected by diminished participation rates, either due to a program phase out over time, as is the case with 

the toilet rebate program, or that the action will not affect a large number of participants in the 

community, like the Water Landscape Ordinance for new landscapes over 2,500 square feet. The share of 

emission reductions that each action is expected to achieve by 2020 and 2030 is shown in 

.Table 7: Summary of GHG Reductions for Water and Wastewater 

Type of 

Action 

Name GHG Reductions 

by 2020 

GHG 

Reductions by 

2030 

Existing Utility water conservation programs 246 949 

Outdoor water landscaping ordinance (applies to 

new landscaped areas over 2,500 square feet) 

0.25 0.60 

New Voluntary program to encourage greywater 0 1 



  

 

  42 

systems - "Laundry to Landscape" 

Voluntary Native Plant Landscaping & 

Voluntary Lawn Removal Programs 

0 5 

Supporting Wastewater treatment plant - recycled water 

storage 

Not quantified Not quantified 

City-operated water conservation and outreach 

programs 

Not quantified Not quantified 

Recommended guidelines for improving 

stormwater runoff provided in a voluntary 

program. 

Not quantified Not quantified 

TOTAL REDUCTIONS: 246 955 



  

 

  43 

Municipal Actions that Support GHG 

Reductions in the Solid Waste Sector 

 

1. Institute Environmentally Preferable 

Purchasing Policy 

2. Promote zero waste events for any 

city-sponsored event 

3. Compost green waste from city parks 

4. Create goal that 80% of all 

municipally-generated waste be 

diverted by 2020. 

 

Figure 15: Potential GHG Reductions in the Water/Wastewater Sector by 2020 and 2030 

 

4.5 Solid Waste  

Emissions from solid waste disposal and landfill 

accounted for 3% of the community’s GHG baseline 

emissions. These emissions are from the decomposition 

of waste in landfills, which generates methane, a more 

potent greenhouse gas than CO2. Over the years, the 

city has taken steps to implement programs to increase 

recycling and reduce the amount of emissions 

attributable to landfilled waste. Watsonville was one of 

the first cities in the region to initiate automated waste 

collection to improve the overall efficiency of pickup, 

and was one of the first cities in the country to collect 

mixed recyclable materials. The city continues to 

develop and implement programs that promote waste reduction. With a diversion rate of 76%, 

Watsonville has already surpassed the statewide goal of 75% diversion from landfills by 2020. 

While recycling greatly reduces GHG emissions upstream by reducing the amount of virgin material that 

must be extracted or harvested and then manufactured into new products, these types of GHG reductions 

are not included in the Watsonville CAP because they are not only difficult to quantify, but also outside 

the scope of Watsonville’s community-wide GHG inventory.   



  

 

  44 

4.5.1 Existing Actions 

City-wide curbside recycling program for both residents and 

businesses  

 As part of the garbage collection services, the city provides curbside 

pickup of mixed recyclable materials, such as paper, glass, metals, and 

plastics. The recycling program has been mandatory since 2000 and 

greatly reduces the amount of waste that goes to landfill and GHG 

emissions associated with the decomposition of those materials in a 

landfill.  

 

City-wide residential curbside yard waste pickup  

In 2012 the city created a residential curbside yard waste pickup program to further reduce the amount of 

waste going to landfill and help the city meet its waste diversion goals. In 2010 it was estimated that 

about 19% of the waste sent to landfill was landscape or agricultural waste. In Watsonville, it is assumed 

that a substantial portion of landscaping green waste is generated by residents, which is why the program 

was initially offered to residential customers. 

4.5.2 New Actions 

Curbside green waste pickup for businesses  

In the future, Watsonville is planning to provide more recycling and green waste pickup options to 

nonresidential customers, which will likely include a curbside green waste removal program for 

businesses and other institutions.  

Curbside food waste pickup for residents and businesses 

Food waste composting is more complicated than landscaping waste composting, and triggers additional 

sanitary concerns. Watsonville is beginning to discuss the development of food waste and green waste 

composting facilities with other municipalities in the region. While no plans are set at this time, this CAP 

assumes that curbside food waste pickup will be available throughout 

Watsonville by 2030.  

4.5.3 Supporting Actions 

Free compost bins and training for residents  

 Backyard residential composting reduces the amount of food and other 

yard waste being sent to landfills while generating a source of nutrients for 

plants and flowers when used in gardens. Backyard composting also 

reduces the amount of fuel and labor needed to transport waste to a 

compost facility, and is considered the most environmentally-friendly 



  

 

  45 

option for composting. The city provides free composting bins to residents and also offers composting 

classes periodically at the Nature Center.   

 Plastic and single-use carryout bag restrictions, and Styrofoam ban 

On April 24, 2012 the City Council passed an ordinance restricting the use of plastic bags and paper bags 

in the city. Under this ordinance businesses and events can no longer provide plastic carryout bags, and if 

they do they must charge the customer for each bag provided. Styrofoam is also banned; these actions 

reduce the amount of litter in the community and also brings awareness to efforts of the city to reduce the 

amount of landfilled waste.  

4.5.4 Summary of GHG Reductions from Solid Waste 

The GHG emissions reductions associated with the different solid waste programs vary due to the nature 

and makeup of the waste materials. For instance, the mixed materials recycling program reduced the 

amount of materials sent to landfill in 2010 by over 4,324 tons from 2005, resulting over 1,685 metric 

tons of avoided CO2e emissions. The savings from this program have increased and are projected to 

continue to increase through 2020 as more residents and visitors become accustomed to recycling and as 

new programs become available. 

Yard waste and food waste programs reduce GHG emissions by preventing methane. When composted, 

they decompose and produce CO2; however, even with the production of CO2, the composting process 

results in a positive GHG savings over landfilled material. In Watsonville, about 19% of the waste stream 

going to landfill consists of food waste from homes and businesses with very little currently being 

diverted.  Table 8 provides a summary of the reductions to be achieved by the actions in this sector. The 

share of emission reductions that each action is expected to achieve by 2020 and 2030 is shown in Figure 

16. 

Table 8: Summary of GHG Reductions for Solid Waste 

Type of 

Action 

Name GHG 

Reductions by 

2020 

GHG 

Reductions by 

2030 

Existing City-wide curbside recycling program for 

residential and non-residential community 

members 

183 223 

City-wide residential curbside yard waste pickup 186 232 

New Curbside green waste pickup for non-residential 

community members 

0 117 

Curbside food waste pickup for residential and 

non-residential community members 

0 669 

Supporting Free compost bins and training to residents Not quantified Not quantified 

Plastic and single-use carryout bag restrictions Not quantified Not quantified 

TOTAL REDUCTIONS: 369 1,241 

 



  

 

  46 

Municipal Support for GHG Reductions in Green 

Buildings, Green Business, and Local Food 
 

 By adopting a Green Building Ordinance in 2008, 

Watsonville took a leadership position in 

reducing emissions and increasing sustainability 

of new construction. 

 Watsonville is a proud supporter and community 

partner in the Green Business Program, and 

publishes a list of certified green businesses on 

the city website 

 Watsonville also developed a Community Garden 

Program Guide to facilitate and assist community 

groups in the process of starting new community 

gardens. 

Figure 16: Potential GHG Reductions in the Solid Waste Sector by 2020 and 2030 

 

 

4.6 Green Buildings, Green Business, and Local Food 

Green Buildings and Green Business 

actions often include a whole-systems 

approach to sustainability and GHG 

reductions at the building level or the 

organizational level. This sector also 

includes local food production. Reducing 

emissions by increasing the amount of 

locally-grown food is a perfect opportunity 

for Watsonville due to the strong economic 

and cultural connection with agriculture in 

the region. Local, urban food production 

also has many community benefits, such as 

reduced transportation emissions for food 

distribution; health benefits and an 

increased social network for those that 

participate in urban gardening; and 

neighborhood beautification due to increased community gardens (which are often formed in unused, 

vacant lots.)  

Some of the actions in this category include energy reductions, water and wastewater reductions, and 

solid waste reductions, but the reductions from actions in this category are not assumed to overlap with 

the actions in the other categories. 



  

 

  47 

Because the actions in this category all apply to businesses, new construction, and local residents, the city 

does not have opportunities to reduce its own municipal carbon footprint through these actions, and as a 

result there are no municipal GHG reduction measures in this category. However, Watsonville plays a 

critical role in facilitating many of these actions. This category only includes existing and new actions, 

with no supporting actions. 

4.6.1 Existing Actions 

Existing Green Building Ordinance and Compliance with New State Requirements 

 The construction of new buildings and facilities provides a key 

opportunity to increase the sustainability of the building stock by 

taking advantage of energy and water-efficient design techniques and 

building technologies. The city’s mandatory Green Building 

Ordinance was adopted on January 1, 2008, and was one of the earlier 

Green Building Ordinances in California. The Ordinance expired on 

January 1, 2014, and was superseded by a new state ordinance.  

 

The former mandatory Green Building Ordinance required all new 

buildings and most building additions to achieve a base number of 

points on a green building checklist to receive a building permit. A 

project receiving additional points beyond the required minimum could achieve fast track permitting or a 

green building award.  

The new state ordinances that took effect on January 1, 2014 include the updated 2013 Title 24 and 

CALGreen standards, which outline green building requirements for new construction and most additions 

in the state of California. Both of these standards are updated on a regular basis; the previous versions 

were from 2008. The new standards are the most stringent 

standards yet, and require high levels of energy and water 

efficiency. 

Encourage Participation in the Green Business Program 

In Watsonville, there are currently 33 businesses certified as 

“green businesses” through the Monterey Bay Green Business 

Program. The city is an active partner with the Green Business 

Program, providing funding to the program and publicity for 

the certified businesses on the Watsonville website. Each 

certified business participates on a voluntary basis, and must 

be in compliance with all regulations and meet program standards for conserving resources, preventing 

pollution and minimizing waste. In order to become certified, a business must fill out a mandatory 

checklist, and then undergo on-site audits to ensure that the business is meeting the certification 

standards. This action assumes that Watsonville will continue its current role in facilitating and 

supporting the program. 

 



  

 

  48 

Establish Community Gardens 

Watsonville created and published a Community 

Garden Program Guide, which is one element of the 

city’s Urban Greening Plan. The goal of the 

Community Garden Program Guide is to provide a 

framework for creating and managing community 

gardens on City-owned property. The plan explores the 

context of community gardening and recommends how 

the city of Watsonville could work with community 

partners to promote the establishment and operation of 

community gardens. The Community Garden Program 

Guide can be modified and then used for management of community gardens by owners of other public as 

well as private property, such as schools and churches. This action assumes that 11 new community 

gardens will be established by 2020, and 21 new gardens will be established by 2030, and that 10 

households will have a plot at each new garden to grow local foods. Emission reductions from the gardens 

are assumed to come from reduced travel to local supermarkets. 

4.6.2 New Actions 

Carbon Fund Program to Provide Discounts for Energy Efficient Buildings 

The Carbon Fund Program will incentivize projects to achieve energy efficiency levels above the most 

current version of Title 24 by providing a discount on permit fees for energy efficient building projects. 

Projects nearing net zero energy through energy efficiency and on-site electricity generation will be 

charged a reduced fee. Revenues from the program will go towards local carbon mitigation projects and 

will support local economic development goals. 

Monthly Food Swap 

According to the Food Swap Network, a food swap is "a recurring event where members of a community 

share homemade, homegrown, or foraged foods with each other. Swaps allow direct trades to take place 

between attendees, e.g., a loaf of bread for a jar of pickles or a half-dozen backyard eggs." Food swaps 

are growing in popularity throughout the U.S. and in California. For example, the city of Berkeley has an 

event once per week from July through October, and a different set of events in the spring that focus on 

seed swapping. The monthly food swap would be a new event in Watsonville, and is meant to increase 

opportunities for local food production and sharing, possibly as an extension of the weekly Farmer’s 

Market. 

Increase Participation in the Green Business Program  

While one of the existing actions described above is 

Watsonville’s current support of the Green Business Program, 

this action assumes the city will go above and beyond current 

activities, and will continue outreach efforts to encourage 

higher participation rates in the Program. Specifically, this 

action assumes that Watsonville will work independently and 



  

 

  49 

with various partners with the goal to increase participation in the Green Business Certification Program 

to 25% by 2020 and 75% by 2030.  

4.6.3 Summary of GHG Reductions from Green Buildings, Green Business, and 

Local Foods 

Table 9 provides a summary of the reductions to be achieved by the actions in this sector. One of the 

more aggressive actions in this sector is to increase participation in the Green Business Program. While 

this action would require additional marketing and outreach by City staff or other partners to increase 

participation rates, the potential energy, water, and solid waste reductions and associated GHG reductions 

are large due to the substantial business sector in Watsonville.  

Table 9: Summary of GHG Reductions for Green Buildings, Green Business, and Local Food 

Type of 

Action 

Name GHG 

Reductions by 

2020 

GHG 

Reductions by 

2030 

Existing Existing Green Building Ordinance and Compliance 

with New State Requirements 

147 258 

Encourage Participation in the Green Business 

Program 

53 106 

Establish Community Gardens 8 15 

New Net Zero Fee for New Construction 3 8 

Monthly Food Swap 0 3 

Increase Participation in the Green Business Program 611 2,052 

TOTAL REDUCTIONS: 821 2,441 

 

Figure 17: Potential GHG Reductions in the Green Buildings/Green Business Sector by 2020 and 2030 



  

 

  50 

4.7 Summary of All Expected GHG Reductions by 2020 and 2030 

Additional reductions will be achieved in Watsonville due to the impact of state-level policies; a summary 

of these reductions is provided in Table 10. 

Table 10: GHG Reductions in the City of Watsonville due to State-Level Policies
13

 

Name of Policy GHG Reductions in 

Watsonville by 2020 

GHG Reductions in 

Watsonville by 2030 

AB 1493 (Pavley Standards) – applies to all on-road 

transportation emissions 

18,805 21,744 

Low carbon fuel standard – applies to all on-road 

transportation emissions 

6,873 7,947 

Renewables Portfolio Standard – applies to all emissions 

from PG&E electricity 

10,812 12,376 

All new construction zero net energy – applies to new 

construction built after 2020 (electricity and natural gas 

emissions) 

Not applicable 14,731 

GRAND TOTAL OF ALL REDUCTIONS 36,490 56,798 

 

Table 11 shows a summary of all expected GHG reductions in Watsonville by 2020 and by 2030 from 

City-level policies. As evident from the descriptions in this chapter, the city has made many efforts to 

reduce its own carbon footprint by actions such as installing solar panels, electric vehicle chargers, 

composting waste from city parks, completing energy and water retrofits in city buildings, and many 

other projects. The estimated reduction from these activities is 530 MTCO2e per year by 2020 and 

670MTCO2e per year by 2030. This represents a reduction of 7% below 2010 baseline levels by 2030, 

and these reductions are part of the total community-wide emission reductions shown in Table 11. 

With all of the expected reductions from state and local actions, the city of Watsonville is on track to meet 

both the 2020 and 2030 reduction targets and will start the path of a reduced emissions trajectory in order 

to achieve the 2050 reduction target.   

 

 

 

                                                      
13

 Please see Section 2.2: Regulatory Framework and Current Drivers for a CAP for detailed explanations of these 

policies and how they reduce GHG emissions. 



  

 

  51 

Table 11: Summary of GHG Reductions  

Sector Type of 

Action 

Description GHG 

Reductions 

By 2020 

GHG 

Reductions 

by 2030 

Energy Existing Citywide Street Tree Plan 116 386 

Energy Watch Programs and other Utility Energy Efficiency Programs 2,389 2,734 

Solar PV Installed To Date 229 229 

New New Renewable Energy Installation Through Incentives and Outreach 545 2,108 

Outreach to Businesses to Increase Participation in Energy Watch / PG&E programs 433 1,982 

Partner with School Districts to Encourage Solar on Schools 0 264 

CCA Program 1,390 5,542 

Promote Smart Meter Based EMS 289 991 

Supporting Home Energy Assistance Program Not quantified Not quantified 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 5,390 14,236 

Transportation Existing Provide bicycle and pedestrian amenities 473 753 

Implement safe routes to schools program 369 1,845 

Support car-sharing and regional ridesharing 375 1,682 

Implement neighborhood traffic calming projects 189 430 

Promote traffic signal synchronization and other intelligent transportation system (ITS) 

technologies 

579 3,306 

New Implement formal bike lane and bike infrastructure program 574 1,957 

Work with METRO and other transportation agencies in conjunction with local land use and 

parking policies to increase local public transit ridership by 5% by 2020 and 20% by 2030. 

15 61 

Supporting Promote electric vehicle infrastructure Not quantified  Not quantified 

Establish distribution points for alternative fuels within Watsonville for general use by the public. 

Promote infill development along transit corridors and in the downtown 

 

Not quantified 

Not quantified 

Not quantified 

Not quantified 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 2,575 10,035 



  

 

  52 

Sector Type of 

Action 

Description GHG 

Reductions 

By 2020 

GHG 

Reductions 

by 2030 

Water and 

Wastewater 

Existing Utility water conservation programs 246 949 

Outdoor water landscaping ordinance (applies to new landscaped areas over 2,500 square feet) 0.25 0.60 

New Voluntary program to encourage greywater systems - "Laundry to Landscape" 0 1 

Voluntary Native Plant Landscaping & Voluntary Lawn Removal Programs 0 5 

Supporting Wastewater treatment plant - recycled water storage Not quantified Not quantified 

City-operated water conservation and outreach programs, including free water audits Not quantified Not quantified 

Recommended guidelines for improving stormwater runoff provided in a voluntary program. Not quantified Not quantified 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 246 955 

Solid Waste Existing City-wide curbside recycling program for residential and non-residential community members 183 223 

City-wide residential curbside yard waste pickup 186 232 

New Curbside green waste pickup for non-residential community members 0 117 

Curbside food waste pickup for residential and non-residential community members 0 669 

Supporting Free compost bins and training to residents Not quantified Not quantified 

Plastic and single-use carryout bag restrictions Not quantified Not quantified 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 369 1,241 

Green 

Buildings, 

Green Business, 

and Local Food 

Existing Existing Green Building Ordinance and Compliance with New State Requirements 147 258 

Encourage Participation in the Green Business Program 53 106 

Establish Community Gardens 8 15 

New Net Zero Fee for New Construction 3 8 

Monthly Food Swap 0 3 

Increase Participation in the Green Business Program 611 2,052 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 821 2,441 

Total of All Existing Actions: 5,541 13,149 

Total of All New Actions 3,859 15,759 

GRAND TOTAL OF ALL REDUCTIONS: 9,401 28,908 



  

 

  53 

 

We must acknowledge that 

California is already experiencing 

the effects of climate change. It is 

important that Watsonville be 

prepared and have strategies in 

place to manage future climate 

impacts. 

5. Climate Adaptation  

While this CAP includes aggressive strategies to curb 

GHG emissions, we must acknowledge that California 

is already experiencing the effects of climate change. 

Even if all carbon emissions were stopped today, some 

of these effects are likely to continue decades into the 

future. 

Climate adaptation planning refers to being pro-active 

and taking steps to address the unavoidable impacts of 

climate change. Adaptation efforts are intended to 

increase the community’s resiliency in the face of 

current and future risks from extreme events and natural 

disasters and from changes in weather patterns. 

Resilience includes not only the ability to withstand dangerous situations, but also to recover quickly 

from major events, such as storms, floods, or fire.  

Many adaptation strategies have benefits beyond improving resilience. Some strategies increase social 

networks and improve community cohesion while others also act as GHG mitigation strategies. It is 

important that Watsonville be prepared and have strategies in place to manage future climate impacts.   

Planning Framework 

The California Adaptation Planning Guide (CAPG)
14

 was used as the basis for this assessment. It was 

developed through a cooperative effort between the California Natural Resources Agency, and the 

California Emergency Management Agency to provide local and regional stakeholders a step-by-step 

process for conducting a vulnerability assessment. There are two main steps involved in planning for 

adaptation, each of which includes various components:  

─ Step 1 - Understand What Climate Change Effects will Impact the Community: Determining 

what climate change means locally and what hazards are likely to be intensified due to 

climate change; understanding what community assets are vulnerable to the effect of climate 

change; and determining the potential impacts, their severity and the potential timing of those 

impacts.  

─ Step 2 - Develop Adaptation Strategies: Understanding what is currently being done locally 

and regionally to address the impacts and determining which impacts can be addressed 

through existing strategies; evaluating new strategies to address the impacts, and then 

prioritizing strategies based on vulnerable assets and needs; identifying resources and funding 

to implement the strategies.   

                                                      
14

 The CAPG can be downloaded from the following webpage: 

http://resources.ca.gov/climate_adaptation/local_government/adaptation_planning_guide.html 

http://resources.ca.gov/climate_adaptation/local_government/adaptation_planning_guide.html


  

 

  54 

Climate adaptation planning requires an ongoing, iterative process that reconsiders risks and the strategies 

to address potential impacts on a regular basis. This plan provides an overview of the potential effects of 

climate change that may impact the city and the current policies in place to help mitigate the impacts. 

This plan also identifies which effects may not be adequately addressed at this time and sets forth 

suggestions for future actions. This plan is meant to serve as an initial assessment of potential risks and 

provide the groundwork for ongoing adaptation planning.   

5.1 Expected Climate Change Impacts 

The impacts of climate change are divided into two groups – Primary Impacts and Secondary Impacts. 

Primary impacts are directly caused by climate change and include increases or changes in average 

temperature, annual precipitation, sea level rise, and severe storms. A number of these impacts are likely 

to affect the city of Watsonville.  

Primary Impacts that are of concern to the city are:  

1. Sea Level Rise: Sea level rise can affect the community in a variety of ways. Significant rises in 

sea level may amplify the impacts of hazards such as flooding and salt water intrusion.  

2. Rise in Temperature: According to Cal-Adapt,
15

 an online resource provided by the state of 

California to assist local governments in adaptation planning, the temperature in the Watsonville 

area is expected to rise by 3.2 – 5.5 degrees Fahrenheit (F) by the end of the century. Although 

Watsonville has a fairly mild climate, a rise in temperature by 3 to 5 degrees F could have 

significant impacts on local ecosystems, fire hazards, water quality, and human health.  

3. Changes in Annual Precipitation: Decreases in precipitation can lead to drought, increase the 

possibilities of wildfire, and affect local water quality and resources.  

4. Changes in Precipitation Patterns: More intense storms can inundate stormwater management 

systems causing problems with flooding, lead to landslides, and impact ecosystems.    

There are also Secondary Impacts associated with climate change. Secondary Impacts are those hazards 

caused by the Primary Impacts and directly impact, damage or disrupt human health, ecosystems, the 

environment, buildings and infrastructure, social services, and economic activity. When the Primary 

Impacts occur, it is the Secondary Impacts that directly affect people’s lives, the local economy and the 

overall health of our community. 

The Watsonville Local Hazard Mitigation Plan
16

 (LHMP) provides a good basis for understanding 

potential hazards that the city is likely to face and provides an overall assessment of the vulnerability of 

city assets to the hazards. Potential hazards range from weather related events to other naturally occurring 

events to human induced events (e.g. terrorist acts) and system failures (e.g. breach of levees). As it 

relates to climate change, the main hazards noted in the LHMP are: flood, fires, landslides, drought, and 

                                                      
15

 http://cal-adapt.org/tools/factsheet/ 
16

 Lipoma, Emily Margaret. City of Watsonville Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, June 2012 

http://cal-adapt.org/tools/factsheet/


  

 

  55 

tornadoes, which are all secondary impacts of climate change. The most likely secondary impacts to occur 

are described in more detail below. 

5.1.1 Secondary Impacts 

Flooding. Flooding continues to be a major concern for the city. While much is being done to protect the 

city from future floods, the effects of climate change such as sea level rise and the associated hazards 

such as extreme high tides, and more intense rainstorms are likely to add to the severity of flooding 

events.   

Flooding is not new to Watsonville. The city is located in a low-lying area near several waterways. The 

history and future potential for flooding is thoroughly described in the Watsonville Local Hazard 

Mitigation Plan, which also notes that the long-term impact of sea level rise due to climate change will 

increase the frequency and severity of flooding, especially in areas that are already located in a flood 

plain. In addition, some areas that are currently not vulnerable to floods may become vulnerable to 

flooding.   

Several critical facilities are located within the 100-year flood zone including the Civic Plaza, Police 

headquarters and Fire Station 1. There are also a number of homes and businesses as well as bridges that 

may be impacted by a 100-year storm event. The vulnerabilities are further described in the Local Hazard 

Mitigation Plan. Figure 19 on the next page shows the current inundation zone and the predicted future 

inundation zone with the impact of sea level rise. It is important to note that in the map, much of the 

southern portion of Watsonville is already located in the flood zone (see the areas in dark blue). Current 

climate models predict that California may see up to a 55 inch rise in sea level within this century. The 

additional areas shown in yellow are those areas that are expected to become part of the 100-year flood 

zone if sea level were to rise by 55 inches by 2100 or possibly sooner. Such a flood is currently rare, and 

the 100-year flood is considered a “worst case scenario” flood for the City of Watsonville.  

  

Image of flooding from the City of Watsonville website 



  

 

  56 

 

Figure 18: The 100-Year Flood Zone in Watsonville 

 



  

 

  57 

Heat waves.  The primary impact causing heat waves is changed temperatures. According to Cal-

Adapt.org, the average annual temperature may increase 5.5 degrees F by 2080 under a “high emissions 

scenario.” Cal-Adapt.org data also indicates that an extreme heat day for the Watsonville area is defined 

as a day that meets or exceeds a high temperature of 87 degrees F.
17

 On average, this has occurred about 4 

days per year during the baseline period of 1961-1990. Figure 19 shows the expected increase in extreme 

heat days per year under a high emissions scenario; by 2100, the model predicts up to 85 extreme heat 

days per year under the high emissions scenario. Figure 20 shows the expected increase in extreme heat 

days per year under a low emissions scenario. Even under the low emissions scenario, the model predicts 

up to 73 extreme heat days per year, although the number of extreme heat days would be more sporadic 

under the low emissions scenario. 

 

 

Figure 19: Number of Extreme Heat Days by Year, High Emissions Scenario 

 
 

                                                      
17

 Note that “extreme heat days” are considered relative and are based on historical temperatures 

experienced in any region. Thus, a coastal area such as Watsonville has a threshold of 87 degrees for 

extreme heat, while an inland area such as Fresno has a higher threshold of 104 degrees since inland areas 

already experience high temperatures and are accustomed to these higher temperatures. 

 



  

 

  58 

Figure 20: Number of Extreme Heat Days by Year, Low Emissions Scenario 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Heat waves generally impact the low-income population, the elderly, the very young, those who live 

alone, and those who are immobile. Heat waves also place excessive strain on power and water system 

infrastructure as well as agriculture. The higher temperatures increase the demand for cooling and 

hydration.  

 

Salt-water intrusion. Salt water intrusion occurs when ground water has been withdrawn to levels below 

the salt water line, allowing salt water to penetrate the freshwater aquifer making the water no longer 

suitable for irrigation or drinking. An extended period of drought may exacerbate this situation. Fresh 

groundwater levels also vary with seasonal and climatic changes and depend on rainwater to recharge the 

basin and maintain equilibrium. Increased pumping causes the groundwater level to drop even further. 

Sea-level rise makes the problem more difficult to manage.   

The Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency (PVWMA) is acutely aware of the problems associated 

with saltwater intrusion and has been working in partnership with the City of Watsonville and other 

agencies since the 1980’s to investigate and address the issue; however, this will continue to be an issue 

impacting local agriculture and domestic water use as climate change advances.  

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 21 illustrates the issues being faced.  



  

 

  59 

 

The Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency (PVWMA) is acutely aware of the problems associated 

with saltwater intrusion and has been working in partnership with the City of Watsonville and other 

agencies since the 1980’s to investigate and address the issue; however, this will continue to be an issue 

impacting local agriculture and domestic water use as climate change advances.  

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 21: Saltwater Intrusion Equilibrium
18

 

 

Loss of natural habitat / ecosystems. The local economy relies on fresh water, fertile soil, and biologic 

diversity for pollination, climate stabilization and recreational activities. Increases in wildfire, decreased 

precipitation and a hotter, drier climate could significantly affect local ecosystems including the sloughs 

                                                      
18

 Parajo Valley Water Management Agency, “Revised Basin Management Plan,” February 2002  



  

 

  60 

and creeks which are a significant natural resource for the city, helping to promote and sustain daily 

recreational activity for residents and visitors alike. 

Long-term power outages.  As temperatures rise, so will the demand for cooling and electricity. As 

demand increases so does the strain on transmission and distribution systems. Key transmission corridors 

throughout the state are also vulnerable to wildfires which are increasing in frequency and duration due to 

climate change. Because of this confluence of issues, the community may be susceptible to system-wide 

outages and without a safe reliable source of electricity, the lower income and elderly populations become 

more vulnerable to the effects of heat waves while local businesses struggle to effectively operate. 

Increasing local distributed generation assets and working with the electric utility to enhance system 

reliability can reduce these risks.  

Drought. As climate change affects precipitation patterns, it will also affect the occurrence of drought. 

Precipitation will likely increase or decrease as the climate changes, but in either case will be more 

compressed into mid-winter months creating drier than normal conditions in the spring and fall. Droughts 

are anticipated to occur at a higher frequency of one drought per decade, whereas historically, droughts 

occurred every 18 – 20 years.
19

 However, the Watsonville City Water District has determined that in the 

event of a drought, the city can provide reliable water supplies during the single driest year and multiple 

dry year events, because most of the water is taken from groundwater sources, which are less susceptible 

to drought.
20

 

Severe storms. Significant storms impact the area every 3-4 years. Periods of heavy rainfall are common 

in the fall and winter months. The flooding associated with these events is a major concern, as it leads to 

property damage as a result of flooding by water saturated by sediment and can lead to instability, 

collapse, and failure of structures. Major rain events are likely to increase in frequency in the future due to 

climate change; however, any damage due to tornadoes is likely to remain relatively minor as tornadoes 

tend to be infrequent and less severe.    

Changes in seasonal patterns. Climate change is likely to alter seasonal patterns such as average 

temperature, timing of seasons, and the degree of cooling that occurs at night. The results of these 

changes are likely to affect agriculture, which may see changes in timing and type of threats from pests, 

as well as changes to water supplies and the crop species that are appropriate for the local climate.  

Lastly, it should be noted that while the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan provides a good assessment of 

potential hazards and their impacts to the city from a historical viewpoint, historical data cannot be relied 

upon solely for understanding the impacts of climate change. Preparing for the effects of climate change 

requires a hard look forward, and an understanding of the latest science, climate projections and risks 

associated with those projections. 

                                                      
19

 “Simulation of Climate Change in San Francisco Bay Basins, California: Case Studies in the Russian River Valley 

and Santa Cruz Mountains”, Flint, L.E., and A.L. Flint, U.S. Geological Survey, 2012 
20

 Watsonville Draft Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 



  

 

  61 

5.2 Current policies and programs that address climate change impacts 

As part of developing this plan, a review of current City policies show that many already contribute as 

climate adaptation strategies. Some of the specific policies that support climate adaptation planning 

include:  

 Citywide Street Tree Program – provides additional shading throughout the community to help 

mitigate the effects of increased temperatures by planting trees along city streets. This measure 

also helps reduce the expected future impact of urban heat island effect as temperatures increase.  

 Green Building Ordinance/CALGreen Requirements – Green buildings are less energy intensive 

buildings. They typically are designed outside of flood-zones, manage stormwater runoff 

properly, and have better envelope (roof, wall, windows and doors) construction. Well insulated 

buildings are better equipped to maintain occupant comfort during periods of extreme heat. Some 

green buildings may have their own energy source, such as solar PV panels. 

The city’ Watsonville VISTA 2030 General Plan – the General Plan provides overall guidance to the city 

in relation to development patterns and policy development. Key aspects of the General Plan that support 

climate adaptation effort are: the protection of agricultural lands; increasing transportation options; and 

the development of pedestrian-friendly neighborhoods. Each of these contributes to a community that is 

more self-reliant and better able to endure disaster.    

Table 12 provides a listing of policies that exist that will help address the impacts of climate change.  

 

Table 12: Existing Strategies for Climate Adaptation 

Existing Strategies that Address Climate 

Change Impacts 
Secondary Impact(s) Addressed 

F
lo

o
d

in
g

 /
 E

x
tr

e
m

e 

H
ig

h
 T

id
e
 

H
ea

t 
W

a
v

e 

S
a

lt
 W

a
te

r
 I

n
tr

u
si

o
n

 

L
o

ss
 o

f 
H

a
b

it
a

t 
/ 

E
co

sy
st

em
s 

P
o

w
er

 O
u

ta
g

e 
 

D
ro

u
g

h
t 

S
ev

er
e 

S
to

rm
s 

C
h

a
n

g
e 

in
 S

ea
so

n
a

l 

P
a

tt
er

n
s 

 

Coastal land use plan - limits development or 

annexation of land in the coastal zone 
x   x     

Ongoing projects with other agencies to reduce 

flooding from the Pajaro River and increase flood 

protection of levees 

x      x  

Flood early warning system in coordination with 

other agencies 
x        

Erosion control standards to reduce erosion 

during flooding 
x   x   x  

Storm Drain Development Standards and 

ongoing management of the storm drain system  
x      x  



  

 

  62 

Existing Strategies that Address Climate 

Change Impacts 
Secondary Impact(s) Addressed 

F
lo

o
d

in
g

 /
 E

x
tr

e
m

e 

H
ig

h
 T

id
e
 

H
ea

t 
W

a
v

e 

S
a

lt
 W

a
te

r
 I

n
tr

u
si

o
n

 

L
o

ss
 o

f 
H

a
b

it
a

t 
/ 

E
co

sy
st

em
s 

P
o

w
er

 O
u

ta
g

e 
 

D
ro

u
g

h
t 

S
ev

er
e 

S
to

rm
s 

C
h

a
n

g
e 

in
 S

ea
so

n
a

l 

P
a

tt
er

n
s 

 

Numerous water conservation strategies to 

reduce demand for groundwater including 

landscaping guidelines, utility rebates, water 

audits, etc 

  x   x   

City Council’s intention to not increase 

groundwater pumping  
  x   x   

Saltwater intrusion strategies in coordination 

with the Pajaro Valley Water Management 

Agency  

  x   x   

Ongoing conservation and protection efforts for 

the sloughs and lower Pajaro River in 

coordination with other agencies 

x   x    x 

Voluntary green roof design criteria to encourage 

green roofs  
 x      x 

Increased shade through the Citywide Street Tree 

Plan  
 x       

Green Building Ordinance to encourage more 

efficient buildings (past ordinance) 
x x   x   x 

Carbon Fund Program to encourage more 

efficient buildings  
 x   x   x 

Emergency Response Plan and Team that 

regularly considers emergency response and does 

drills to prepare for potential disasters 

x x   x  x  

Increase and improve trails and bicycle routes     x    x 

Continue to preserve and protect wetlands and 

open space 
x   x    x 

Compact development strategies, and 

preservation of surrounding agricultural land 
x   x     

Ongoing environmental education programs  x x x     

Totals 10 6 4 6 3 3 4 6 

 

5.3 Future priorities 

While it is clear that there are already a number of policies in place to help address the impacts of climate 

change, there are also some areas where the policies currently in place appear insufficient for addressing 

the impacts. For example, in relation to severe storms, the policies currently in place to help address this 

impact are focused on emergency response and storm water management; however, strategies to improve 

the resiliency of buildings, transportation systems and electric infrastructure against more severe storms 

and wind-driven rain need further consideration.  



  

 

  63 

However, it should be noted that impacts that have fewer policies in place to address the impact does not 

necessarily indicate a deficiency. It may be that the policies in place to address those impacts are more 

robust or mature. For example, there were 10 policies identified that help address flooding, and only 4 

that address salt-water intrusion; however, PVWMA has been working with a number of agencies and 

authorities since the 1980’s to address the issue, and this issue continues to be a priority of the agency.  

Of all the impacts, flooding and salt-water intrusion in the city’s water service area are currently well 

addressed. The impacts that require additional attention or further consideration based on the policy audit 

include: 

 Heat waves 

 Loss of natural habitat / ecosystems 

 Long-term power outages 

 Drought 

 Severe storms 

 Changes in seasonal patterns 

To understand which areas are potentially deficient of strategies to protect against the impacts of climate 

change, the level of risk associated with the hazards was assessed in order to identify appropriate 

additional actions for the city to take. To do this, a risk ranking for each of the secondary impacts noted 

above was performed.  

The risk ranking ( 

 

  



  

 

  64 

Figure 22) was developed based on the probability of an event occurring over the next 40 years versus 

the estimated magnitude of the consequences associated the event. For our purposes consequences are 

based on the vulnerability of certain assets and the impacts an event would have on those assets. 

 

  



  

 

  65 

Figure 22: Risk Ranking, 2010 – 2050 

 (Risk = Probability x Consequence) 

M
ag

n
it

u
d

e
 o

f 
C

o
n

se
q

u
e

n
ce

 

H
ig

h
 

  

- Heat waves 
- Long-term power 

outages  

- Flooding  
- Salt-water intrusion 

 

M
o

d
e

ra
te

 

  

- Changes in seasonal 
patterns  

- Loss of natural 
habitat / ecosystems  

- Severe storms   

Lo
w

 

      

- Drought 

  

Low Moderate High Extremely High 

  

Probability of Occurrence 

Legend 

Recommended Action 
Based on Level of Risk 

No Action Monitor 
Evaluate Mitigation 

Strategies 

Develop and 
Implement 
Strategies 

 

Based on the assessment of the current policies in place and whether they are adequate or not, and the risk 

associated with impacts of concern, impacts that likely require additional attention include: 

 Heat wave 

 Long-term power outages  

 Severe Storms 

 Drought 

As mentioned, flooding and salt-water intrusion impacts are currently well addressed by the city.  

To address these issues, a number of additional strategies were identified to help prepare for and mitigate 

these impacts. A listing of these strategies is provided in Table 13, Table 14, and Table 15. The tables 

provide the potential strategies, what impacts they address, and propose a timeframe for the strategies to 



  

 

  66 

be adopted. For our purposes, strategies are categorized into short-term (1-2 years), medium-term (2-5 

years) and long-term (5+ years) actions.  

Table 13: Potential Short-Term Strategies Based on Impacts Mitigated (1-2 Year Timeframe) 

Strategy Impacts Addressed Responsible Party 

Implement recommended mitigation measures 

in the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

Heat waves,  

Drought,  

Severe storms, and Flooding 

Public Works 

Focus on passive cooling building technologies Heat waves,  

Power outages 

CDD- Building 

Develop a heat response plan, which may 

include designating cooling centers and a plan 

for transporting people to the centers when 

needed. 

Heat waves,  

Power outages 

Public Works/ Risk 

Emergency Operations 

Center Staff 

Continue working with the PVWMA to 

increase water recycling storage, if possible, 

and other efforts such as possibly increasing 

use of surface water 

Drought,  

Salt-water intrusion, and  

Changes in seasonal patterns 

Public Works 

Pursue planning and financial support for the 

improvement of flood conditions along 

Corralitos and Salispuedes Creeks, the Pajaro 

River, and other areas of the drainage basin 

impacting Watsonville in coordination with 

Santa Cruz Water Conservation District Zone 7. 

Severe storms, Flooding, and 

Changes in seasonal patterns 

Public Works 

Secure funding for levee engineering upgrades 

and coordinate with County Zone 7 to establish 

levees as a top priority for action. 

Severe storms, flooding, and 

Changes in seasonal patterns 

 

Review and update evacuation plans and 

emergency operation plans for major floods 

Severe storms, and Flooding Risk Management 

Conduct a communitywide assessment and 

develop a program to address health, 

socioeconomic, and equity vulnerabilities.  

Multiple Public Works to 

conduct assessment  

    



  

 

  67 

Table 14: Potential Medium-Term Strategies Based on Impacts Mitigated (2-5 Year Timeframe) 

Strategy Impacts Addressed Responsible Party 

Cool paving guidelines Heat waves,  

Power outages 

CDD 

Identify and protect locations where native species 

may shift or lose habitat due to climate change 

impacts, on a project-level basis. 

Changes in seasonal patterns,  

Loss of habitat / ecosystems  

Public Works/CDD 

Limit development and monitor conditions of 

development and grading permits near natural 

channels and wetlands to prevent sedimentation. 

Loss of habitat / ecosystems, 

Flooding 

CDD 

Collaborate with agencies managing public lands to 

identify, develop, or maintain corridors and linkages 

between undeveloped areas. Restore wetlands where 

possible and appropriate. 

Changes in seasonal patterns,  

Loss of habitat / ecosystems  

Public Works 

Review and update regulations related to flood plain 

development. Continue to regulate development in 

flood plains to optimize preservation of open space 

Severe Storms, Flooding, and 

Changes in seasonal patterns 

CDD 

Provide incentives for repetitive loss and other 

flood-prone property owners to retrofit homes to be 

safe from flooding 

Severe Storms, Flooding, and 

Changes in seasonal patterns 

CDD/Engineering 

Review and update environmental education efforts 

to educate the public about adaptation 

Multiple Public Works 

Incorporate climate change adaptation 

considerations into the city’s decision-making 

process, particularly around infrastructure and 

operations 

Multiple CDD/ Public Works 

   

Table 15: Potential Long-Term Strategies Based on Impacts Mitigated (5+ Year Timeframe) 

Strategy Impacts Addressed Responsible Party 

Use purchase of development (PDR) or 

conservation easements to protect climate-

vulnerable habitats on a project-level basis. 

Changes in seasonal patterns,  

Loss of habitat / ecosystem 

migration 

Public Works 

Require new development to conform to the Flood 

Damage Prevention Ordinance and the guidelines of 

the National Flood Insurance Program. 

Severe Storms, and Flooding Public 

Works/Engineering 

CDD 

   

In addition to the strategies listed in the tables above, the city is exploring strategies to further address 

flooding and salt water intrusion, such as: 

- Additional promotion of voluntary stormwater management and low impact development 

practices (particularly in areas where storm sewers may be impaired by high water). (Short-term) 

- Requiring new development to pay for, or extend, all necessary storm drains to serve the project 

site. (Short-term) 

- And medium-term actions supporting additional water conservation efforts, such as a rebate or 

incentive for greywater systems.  



  

 

  68 

6. Implementation and Tracking 

Implementation and tracking are key aspects of this CAP. To reach the reduction targets in 2020, 2030, 

and beyond, the city is dedicated to ongoing tracking of results, and implementing existing and new 

strategies to reduce GHG emissions and to increase resiliency.  

6.1 Near-term and long-term actions  

A number of new actions are presented in this CAP, and all of the new actions are worthy, high-priority 

programs that would lead to GHG reductions as well as other social and environmental benefits. Like all 

cities, the city of Watsonville has limited resources, and needs to prioritize implementation of actions due 

to budget and staff constraints. Therefore, this CAP uses a scoring system to understand which new 

actions could be implemented in the near term (defined as 2014 – 2020) and which could be implemented 

in the longer term (defined as after 2020).  

However, while the actions are presented as near-term and long-term actions, circumstances rapidly 

change; some long-term actions could be implemented in the near-term and vice versa. For example, 

funding availability is one key reason that an action might be considered long-term, but if funding were to 

become available, the action would be implemented in the near-term. 

The scoring system used to determine which actions are considered near-term and long-term considers the 

following criteria.  

 Environmental benefits: Reductions in vehicle miles traveled; water use; and total estimated 

GHG reductions 

 Costs: Upfront and first cost to the city; and whether or not an ongoing funding source is needed 

 Ease of Implementation: Level of staff effort needed; level of community support; and whether 

or not political support is needed 

 Additional benefits: Whether the action supports resiliency and climate adaptation; additional 

environmental benefits (such as improved air quality); and additional social benefits. 

Each new action received a score on a scale of 1 to 10, with 1 being least favorable and 10 being the most 

favorable. Actions that received a score of over 5 are considered near-term actions, while those receiving 

a score of 1 – 5 are placed in the long-term category. 

  



  

 

  69 

 

Table 16: Near term actions (assumed to be implemented prior to 2020) 

Sector Description Points 

Energy 

 

CCA Program 7 

New Renewable Energy Installation Through Incentives and Outreach 6 

Outreach to Businesses to Increase Participation in Energy Watch / PG&E 

programs 

6 

Promote Smart Meter Based EMS 7 

Transportation Implement formal bike lane and bike infrastructure program 7 

Work with METRO and other transportation agencies in conjunction with local 

land use and parking policies to increase local public transit ridership by 5% by 

2020 and 20% by 2030. 

6 

Green 

Building/ 

Green Business 

Increase Participation in the Green Business Program 7 

Net Zero Fee for New Construction 6 

 

Table 17: List of long term actions (assumed to be implemented after 2020)  

Sector Description Points 

Energy Partner with School Districts to Encourage Solar on Schools 5 

Water and 

Wastewater 

Voluntary program to encourage greywater systems - "Laundry to Landscape" 5 

Voluntary Native Plant Landscaping & Voluntary Lawn Removal Programs 4 

Solid Waste Curbside green waste pickup for non-residential community members 2 

Curbside food waste pickup for residential and non-residential community 

members 

2 

Green Building/ 

Green Business 

Monthly Food Swap 4 

  

6.2 Implementation - roles and responsibilities 

The CAP will be implemented by City staff in an ongoing process that includes additional research, 

initiation of projects selected for immediate implementation, and monitoring of results. The CAP is a 

living document that will be updated on a regular basis. The city of Watsonville has assigned 

responsibility for overall implementation as shown in Table 18. 

  



  

 

  70 

Table 18: Implementation Responsibilities 

Sector Department 

Energy Community Development Department 

Transportation Public Works & Utilities Department , Community 

Development Department 

Water and Wastewater Public Works & Utilities Department 

Solid Waste Community Development Department  

Green Buildings, Green Business, and Local Food Public Works & Utilities Department  

 

6.2.1 Tracking Tool for GHG Reduction Actions  

The city will work with AMBAG to determine the most appropriate tracking tool for each of the GHG 

reduction actions. AMBAG has remained a committed partner in working with member jurisdictions on 

GHG inventories and climate action plans through the Energy Watch Program. 

6.2.2 Implementation of Climate Adaptation Priorities 

Climate adaptation planning requires an ongoing, iterative process that reconsiders risks and the strategies 

to address potential impacts on a regular basis. Section 5 provided an overview of the potential effects of 

climate change on the city, the current policies in place to help mitigate the impacts, and potential 

strategies for further consideration. The city is conducting a community-wide assessment of 

environmental, health, socioeconomic, and equity vulnerabilities, and full assessment of potential climate 

change impacts, their severity and the potential timing of those impacts.  

Based on the assessment of the current policies in place and the risk associated with impacts of concern, 

impacts that likely require additional attention include: 

 Heat wave 

 Drought 

 Long-term power outages  

 Severe Storms 

Flooding and salt-water intrusion are also on-going concerns of the city, but both of these hazards are 

well-known and addressed by existing plans, policies, and initiatives. 

The assessment provided in this CAP is meant to serve as an initial assessment of potential risks and 

provide the groundwork for ongoing adaptation planning. In the future it is recommended that the city 

move forward with the following high priority short-term actions: 

 Continue to evaluate and implement the near term actions that address future heat waves, drought, 

power system reliability and severe storms. 

 Continue to implement the mitigation measures identified in the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 



  

 

  71 

6.3 Updates to GHG emission inventories and the CAP document 

A CAP update schedule is provided in Table 19. The schedule includes three key activities that should 

occur on a regular basis: GHG inventory updates; CAP progress reports, and full updates of the CAP 

itself.   

GHG Inventory Updates 

AMBAG is committed to supporting all the cities in the AMBAG jurisdictional area with GHG 

inventories and climate action planning. The 2005 and 2010 inventories were both completed by 

AMBAG, and future inventories will also be completed by AMBAG on a regular basis, and every 5 years 

at a minimum. The next full inventory update will be for calendar year 2015; since complete data will not 

be available for all of 2015 until after the year has ended, the next full inventory will be conducted 

sometime in 2016. 

CAP Progress Reports 

A progress report will be issued every 2 years. This report will summarize progress made towards 

implementing the CAP measures, including estimates of the GHG reductions associated with each 

implemented measure, where possible, and a summary of any additional goals or indicators associated 

with each action.  

If the findings in the Progress Report reveal that Watsonville is not on track to meet the overall GHG 

reduction targets, then the CAP may need revision.  

Full Update of CAP 

A complete update of the CAP should occur if the Progress Report indicates that the city is not on track to 

meet its goals. The full update would include a summary of baseline and all additional GHG inventories 

with emissions trends; an update of the BAU emissions growth forecast and reduction targets; and a 

summary of all new and existing actions and how they are expected to reduce emissions by the target 

years. If Watsonville is not on track to meet targets, the CAP should include new actions or more 

aggressive actions to increase expected GHG reductions. If Watsonville does meet the 2020 target, the 

CAP should be updated after 2020 to ensure that the 2030 target and other future targets are met. 

Table 19: CAP Update Schedule 

Year Item(s) to be Updated 

2014 CAP Adopted 

2016 2015 GHG inventory 

 

First CAP Progress Report 

2018 Second CAP Progress Report 

2020 Full update of CAP 

2021 2020 GHG inventory 



  

 

  72 

Year Item(s) to be Updated 

2022, 2024, 2026, 2028 CAP Progress Reports 

2026 2025 GHG inventory 

2030 Full update of CAP 

2031 2030 GHG inventory 

 

 

  



  

 

  73 

7. Appendices 

Appendix A: References 

City of Watsonville Urban Greening Plan: Landscaping Guidelines and Policies. October 2012. Accessed 

online December 6, 2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-

plan/landscape-guidelines-policies 

 

Green Roof Design Criteria. March 2012. Accessed online December 30, 

2013:.http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-plan/green-roof-design 

 

Street Tree Planting Plan. March 2012. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-plan/street-trees-program 

 

Agenda, City of Watsonville, Regular City Council Meeting. March 2013. Accessed online December 30, 

2013: 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/download/City_Council/City_Council_Documents/2013/032613/Agenda.pdf 

 

Monterey Bay Regional Energy Plan. March 2008. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://www.ambag.org/programs/EnergyWatch/documents/RegionalEnergyPlan%202008.pdf 

 

Central Coast Energy Services(CCES) Programs. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://www.energyservices.org/ 

 

AMBAG Energy Watch Supporting Documents for: Draft Energy Action Strategies for Inclusion in: The 

City of Watsonville’s Draft Climate Action Plan. Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments. 

March 2013. Modeled by Chris Sentieri, AMBAG Energy Watch. Presented by Suzi  Aratin, Senior 

Planner, City of Watsonville. 

Watsonville’s Green Building Program. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/permits-plans/building-division/green-building-program 

Conserving Energy & Making a Difference – Energy Efficient Street Lighting. Accessed online 

December 30, 2013:  http://cityofwatsonville.org/city-of-watsonville/conserving-energy-making-a-

difference-energy-efficient-street-lighting 

Conserving Energy & Making a Difference – Reduction in Energy Usage. Accessed online December 30, 

2013:  http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works/conserving-energy-making-a-difference-reduction-in-

energy-usage 

Conserving Energy & Making a Difference – Solar Panels. Accessed online December 30, 2013:  

http://cityofwatsonville.org/city-of-watsonville/conserving-energy-making-a-difference-solar-panels 

Watsonville Vista 2030 General Plan and Draft Environmental Impact Report. January 2013.  Accessed 

online December 30, 2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/permits-plans/major-projects 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-plan/landscape-guidelines-policies
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-plan/landscape-guidelines-policies
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-plan/street-trees-program
http://cityofwatsonville.org/download/City_Council/City_Council_Documents/2013/032613/Agenda.pdf
http://www.ambag.org/programs/EnergyWatch/documents/RegionalEnergyPlan%202008.pdf
http://www.energyservices.org/
http://cityofwatsonville.org/permits-plans/building-division/green-building-program
http://cityofwatsonville.org/city-of-watsonville/conserving-energy-making-a-difference-energy-efficient-street-lighting
http://cityofwatsonville.org/city-of-watsonville/conserving-energy-making-a-difference-energy-efficient-street-lighting
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works/conserving-energy-making-a-difference-reduction-in-energy-usage
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works/conserving-energy-making-a-difference-reduction-in-energy-usage
http://cityofwatsonville.org/permits-plans/major-projects


  

 

  74 

Conservation Outreach and Education Program. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/conservation_outreach_and_education_program 

City Major Engineering Projects. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/projects/projects  

FY 2011 WaterSMART Water and Energy Efficiency Grants: City of Watsonville, Corralitos Creek 

Water Supply and Fisheries Enhancement Project. March 2011. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://www.doi.gov/news/pressreleases/upload/FY11_WEEG_NewsRelease_051711_Project-

Descriptions-FINAL.pdf 

Listing of Green Businesses: Monterey Bay Area Green Business Program. Accessed online December 

30, 2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/business-

recycling-program/listing-of-green-businesses 

Garbage, Recycling & Waste Reduction. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction 

Single Bag Use Ordinance. Accessed online December 30, 2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-

works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/single-use-bag-reduction-ordinance 

Curbside Recycling Program. Accessed online December 30, 2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-

works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/recycling-services 

Business Recycling Program. Accessed online December 30, 2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-

works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/business-recycling-program 

Composting. Accessed online December 30, 2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-

utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/composting  

Household Hazardous Waste. Accessed online December 30, 2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-

works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/hazardous-waste  

No Drugs Down the Drain. Accessed online December 30, 2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-

works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/hazardous-waste/no-drugs-down-the-drain 

How to Recycle Used Motor Oil & Filters – How to Recycle your Tires. Accessed online December 30, 

2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/used-motor-

oiltires 

City of Watsonville Community Gardens Program Guide. May 2012. Accessed online December 30, 

2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-plan/community-gardens 

Trails and Bicycle Master Plan for the Watsonville Scenic Trails Network. November 2012. Accessed 

online December 30, 2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-plan/draft-

trails-and-bicycle-master-plan 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/conservation_outreach_and_education_program
http://www.doi.gov/news/pressreleases/upload/FY11_WEEG_NewsRelease_051711_Project-Descriptions-FINAL.pdf
http://www.doi.gov/news/pressreleases/upload/FY11_WEEG_NewsRelease_051711_Project-Descriptions-FINAL.pdf
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/recycling-services
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/recycling-services
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/business-recycling-program
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/business-recycling-program
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/composting
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/composting
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/hazardous-waste
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/hazardous-waste
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/hazardous-waste/no-drugs-down-the-drain
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/garbage-recycling-waste-reduction/hazardous-waste/no-drugs-down-the-drain
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-plan/community-gardens
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-plan/draft-trails-and-bicycle-master-plan
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-plan/draft-trails-and-bicycle-master-plan


  

 

  75 

Envisioning the Monterey Bay Area: A Blueprint for Sustainable Growth and Smart Infrastructure. 

Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments. June 2011. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://www.ambag.org/sites/default/files/documents/6-2011_Blueprint_Document_Compressed.pdf 

Final Supplemental Environmental Impact Report. 2010 Monterey Bay Area Metropolitan Transportation 

Plan. Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments. May 2010. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://ambag.org/pdf/2010_%20MTP_FSEIR.pdf 

Monterey Bay Area Mobility 2035: The Long Range Metropolitan Transportation Plan for the Monterey 

Bay Area. June 2010. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://ambag.org/programs/met_transp_plann/reports/mtp_amend_1%20&%202.pdf 

City of Watsonville Receives Funding for Safe Routes to School. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/city-of-watsonville/city-of-watsonville-receives-funding-for-safe-routes-to-

school 

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission: Next Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). 

Accessed online 2013: http://www.sccrtc.org/funding-planning/long-range-plans/rtp/ 

City of Watsonville Wetlands Trails Master Plan. May 2003. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://www.californiawetlands.net/upfiles/4230/trailsplan.pdf 

City of Watsonville 2010 Urban Water Management Plan. June 2011. Accessed online December 

30,2013: 

http://www.water.ca.gov/urbanwatermanagement/2010uwmps/Watsonville,%20City%20of/UWMP%202

010%20FINAL.pdf 

Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency: Revised Basin Management Plan. February 2002. Accessed 

online December 2013: http://www.pvwma.dst.ca.us/about-

pvwma/assets/bmp_2000/2002_BMP_Complete_Document.pdf 

Wastewater Treatment Plant . June 2012. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/wastewater-treatment-plant 

Landscape Guidelines and Policies. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-plan/landscape-guidelines-policies 

Storm Water/Storm Drain System. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/sewer-storm-drains  

Toilet & Washing Machine Rebate Programs. Accessed online December 30, 2013: 

http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/rebates 

Water Conservation. Accessed online December 30, 2013: http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-

utilities/water/water-conservation  

http://www.ambag.org/sites/default/files/documents/6-2011_Blueprint_Document_Compressed.pdf
http://ambag.org/pdf/2010_%20MTP_FSEIR.pdf
http://ambag.org/programs/met_transp_plann/reports/mtp_amend_1%20&%202.pdf
http://cityofwatsonville.org/city-of-watsonville/city-of-watsonville-receives-funding-for-safe-routes-to-school
http://cityofwatsonville.org/city-of-watsonville/city-of-watsonville-receives-funding-for-safe-routes-to-school
http://www.californiawetlands.net/upfiles/4230/trailsplan.pdf
http://www.water.ca.gov/urbanwatermanagement/2010uwmps/Watsonville,%20City%20of/UWMP%202010%20FINAL.pdf
http://www.water.ca.gov/urbanwatermanagement/2010uwmps/Watsonville,%20City%20of/UWMP%202010%20FINAL.pdf
http://www.pvwma.dst.ca.us/about-pvwma/assets/bmp_2000/2002_BMP_Complete_Document.pdf
http://www.pvwma.dst.ca.us/about-pvwma/assets/bmp_2000/2002_BMP_Complete_Document.pdf
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/wastewater-treatment-plant
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/urban-greening-plan/landscape-guidelines-policies
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/sewer-storm-drains
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/rebates
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/water/water-conservation
http://cityofwatsonville.org/public-works-utilities/water/water-conservation


  

 

  76 

Appendix B: Full text of 2005 baseline GHG inventory 

 

  



  

 

  77 

Appendix C: Summary of 2010 GHG inventory update 

 

  



  

 

  78 

Appendix D: Details of methodologies for calculating GHG reductions 

In general, emission reductions were quantified by determining activity data reductions for each category. 

An example of an activity data reduction is a decrease in electricity use (energy), vehicle miles travelled 

(transportation), or water consumption (water and wastewater). Below is a list of all quantified actions, 

and the approach to calculating emission reductions from each action. Some programs require community 

participation; if a participation goal was included, it is described along with each action below. 

D1. Energy 

Citywide Street Tree Plan 

 

This action assumes that Watsonville will increase its tree cover by 13,980 trees by 2020 and to 40% 

canopy cover with an additional 1,350 acres of tree canopy, or 46,600 tree plantings, by 2030.   It further 

assumes that 20% of the total tree plantings will be shade trees next to homes and other buildings with an 

associated electricity saving of 81 kWh per tree per year. 

 

Energy Watch programs and other utility energy efficiency programs 

 

Based on AMBAG Energy Watch’s Draft Energy Action Strategies for Inclusion in The City of 

Watsonville’s Draft Climate Action Plan, several actions were considered, including Weatherization 

Programs, Lighting, Energy Watch Direct Install, Agricultural Energy Efficiency (EE) Campaign, Food 

Processing EE Campaign, Building Energy - 3rd Party Commissioning and Retail EE Initiative. Where 

possible, kWh and therms were used to calculate emission savings on an annual basis based on standard 

emission factors.  Otherwise, annual reductions in CO2e were sourced directly from AMBAG analysis, 

based on actual program data from PG&E, and calculated over a 7 or 17 year horizon for 2020 and 2030 

GHG savings, respectively. 

Solar PV power installed to date 

This action includes all solar PV installed to date. Based on PG&E data, 86 residential sites were 

connected between 2010 and 2012 with an average of 2.84 kW per residential site, totaling 244.36 kW.  A 

total of 6 non-residential sites were connected between 2010 and 2012 with an average of 72.40 kW per 

site, totaling 434.40 kW. Assuming these PV arrays are active for 8765.81 hours per year and a 19% 

annual efficiency per system, the total kWh production of these systems was calculated for 2020 and 

2030; GHG reductions are based on these kWh savings. Note that there are no known solar hot water 

heaters installed to date. 

New renewable energy installation through incentives and outreach  

This action assumes the number of sites installing solar PV each year by 2020 to be 29 residential and 2 

nonresidential sites, increasing to 35 residential and 5 nonresidential sites per year from 2020 to 2030. 

The average kW per site connected is based on actual data on previous installations from PG&E, 2.84 kW 

per residential site and 72.40 kW per nonresidential site, totaling 81.5 kW and 144.8 kW annually, 

respectively. Assuming these PV arrays are active for 8765.81hours per year and an 19% annual 

efficiency per system, the total GHG savings were calculated for 2020 and 2030 using a 7 year and 10 

time horizon, respectively. 



  

 

  79 

This action also assumes an additional 2 solar water heater systems installed annually, 90% of which are 

replacing natural gas water heaters and the remaining 10% replacing electric water heaters.  With annual 

savings per system of either 137 therms and 2,889 kWh per system, the total annual natural gas and 

electricity savings were calculated over a 7 year and 10 time horizon for 2020 and 2030 GHG savings. 

Outreach to businesses to increase participation in Energy Watch / PG&E programs 

Based on energy consumption data from PG&E’s 2010 GHG inventory and using a compounding factor 

of 1.36% per year, 2020 and 2030 Commercial/Industrial electricity and natural gas consumption were 

estimated.  Assuming that 15% of new businesses participate in various programs by 2020, and 60% 

participate by 2030, with each business achieving 5% energy savings on average, total electricity and 

natural gas savings were estimated for 2020 and 2030. 

Partner with school districts to encourage solar on schools 

This action assumes there are 27 schools in Watsonville that are eligible for solar array installation on 

their roof. This action is based on a target of 20% schools to participate in the solar PV program by 2020, 

and increasing to 40% by 2030, with an average of 72.40 kW per site connected.  Assuming these PV 

arrays are active for 8765.81 hours per year and a 19% annual efficiency per system, the total kWh 

production and associated GHG savings were calculated for 2020 and 2030. 

Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) Program  

This action assumes that the three counties move forward with a CCA, and that Watsonville will join the 

CCA once it is formed. Based on energy consumption data from PG&E’s 2010 GHG inventory and using 

a compounding factor of 1.36% per year, 2020 and 2030 Residential and Commercial/Industrial 

electricity consumption were estimated.  Assumes the CCA provides a “Light Green” option (40% 

renewables), and a “Deep Green” option (100% renewables). This action assumes that by 2020, 30% of 

Watsonville customers will participate in the “Light Green” and 1% will participate in the “Deep Green.” 

By 2030, 90% of Watsonville customers will participate in the CCA “Light Green” option and 5% will 

participate in the “Deep Green.” 

Promote smart meter based Energy Management Systems (EMS) 

By using smart meter data to increase efficiency of building systems, it is assumed that each participating 

Commercial/Industrial customer achieves 10% energy reduction for both electricity and natural gas. 

Assumes 5% of businesses participate by 2020, increasing to 15% businesses participation by 2030. 

D2. Transportation 

Many of the transportation GHG calculations are based on the California Air Pollution Control Officers’ 

Association (CAPCOA) “Quantifying GHG Mitigation Measures” document. Assumptions related to 

applicability at the community-level are applied to make the methodologies applicable city-wide. 

Provide bicycle and pedestrian amenities 

This action is quantified based on the following CAPCOA Mitigation Measures: 



  

 

  80 

 SDT-1 “Provide pedestrian network improvements,” which is assumed to reduce vehicle miles 

traveled by 0.5% in more rural settings (in contrast to 1-2% in urban/suburban settings).  

 SDT-6 “Provide bike parking in non-residential projects,” which is assumed to reduce vehicle 

miles traveled by 0.625% based on research by the Center for Clean Air Policy. 

Implement safe routes to schools program  

This action assumes the City will reach its goal to increase participation in Safe Routes to Schools to 5% 

of students in 2020 and 25% by 2030. The calculation assumes that total school enrollment remains 

relatively flat and that average round-trip distance traveled is approximately 6 miles across all students 

(K-12), with a 180 day school year.  

Support car-sharing and regional ridesharing 

This action is quantified based on the following CAPCOA Mitigation Measures: 

 TRT-3 “Provide ride-sharing programs,” which assumes a 5% reduction in commute vehicle 

miles traveled based on low-density suburban location. Approximately 23% of Watsonville’s 

annual VMT is assumed to be commute-related. This action assumes that 15% and 60% of 

employees in Watsonville will be eligible for an employer-based program in 2020 and 2030, 

respectively. 

 TRT-9 “Implement car-sharing program,” which assumes 20 car-share members per shared car 

and 37% reduction in car-share member annual VMT. This action assumes the City will reach a 

goal of 5 shared cars by 2020 and 20 shared cars by 2030.  

 TRT-11 “Provide employer-sponsored vanpool/shuttle,” which assumes an 11% shift in vanpool 

mode share. This action assumes that 15% and 60% of employees in Watsonville will be eligible 

for an employer-based program in 2020 and 2030, respectively. 

Implement neighborhood traffic calming projects 

This action is quantified based on CAPCOA Mitigation Measure SDT-2 “Provide traffic calming 

measures” which assumes a 0.25% and 0.5% reduction in vehicle miles in 2020 and 2030, respectively. 

The calculation is based on an assumption of percent of intersections with streetscape improvements and 

percent of streets with improvements to encourage walking and biking. These measures include marked 

cross-walks, count-down signal timers, curb extensions, speed tables, raised crosswalks, raised 

intersections, median islands, tight corner radii, roundabouts, on-street parking, planter strips, etc.  

Promote traffic signal synchronization and other intelligent transportation system (ITS) technologies 

This action is quantified based on CAPCOA Mitigation Measure RPT-2 “Improve traffic flow” which 

utilizes average emissions factors (grams of CO2 emitted per mile traveled) associated with different 

traffic speeds (miles per hour) in both free-flow and congested-flow conditions. For this action, traffic 

flow is assumed to improve from a congested speed of 25 mph to free-flow conditions of 20 mph and 30 

mph in 2020 and 2030. Approximately 5% of community-wide VMTs are assumed to be related to 

roadways impacted by this action by 2020 and increasing to 15% of community-wide VMTs by 2030.  



  

 

  81 

Implement formal bike lane and bike infrastructure program 

This action is quantified based on CAPCOA Mitigation Measure SDT-5 “Incorporate bike lane street 

design” assumes that each additional mile of bike lane per square mile is associated with a 1% increase in 

share of workers commuting by bicycle. This action assumes 5 miles of new bike lanes within 

Watsonville by 2020 and a total of 15 miles of new bike lanes by 2030. 

Work with METRO and other transportation agencies in conjunction with local land use and parking 

policies to increase local public transit ridership by 5% by 2020 and 20% by 2030. 

This action is quantified based on the existing levels of ridership from 2007 of 3,249,040 revenue 

passenger miles.
21

 The miles of ridership within Watsonville are estimated based on the proportion of 

Watsonville’s population (20%) to Santa Cruz County as a whole. A 5% and 20% increase in ridership is 

applied to this baseline number for 2020 and 2030, respectively. 

D3. Water and Wastewater 

All water reduction measures assume an electricity reduction due to reduced energy needed to treat and 

distribute water in Watsonville. This plan assumes that one gallon of water reduced will save 0.00129 

kWh of electricity. Some natural gas savings are included for appliances that use hot water; these actions 

include an assumption of 0.00121 therms reduced per gallon of water reduced. 

Utility Water Conservation Programs 

To be eligible for incentives, the program requires applicants to upgrade toilets with a gallon per flush 

(gpf) water use rate of more than 1.6 gpf. Rebates of $100 are available for new high efficiency toilets 

(HET) that have at least a 1.28 gpf flush rate or lower. With an annual incentive budget of $30,000, over 

3,300 toilets have been retrofitted, with an estimated water savings of 0.04 acre feet per toilet, per year 

(roughly13,000 gallons per toilet), per year. Between the years of 2006 and 2010, an average of 6.66 acre 

feet or 2,171,473 gallons of water have been saved through the rebate program.  

The city also provides $100 rebates for upgrading old laundry washing machines with new Energy Star 

qualify rated washing machines. On average, these new machines save roughly 38% more water when 

compared to older machines, as well as saving more energy. Between the years of 2006 and 2010, an 

average of 3.93 acre feet or over 1,279,475 gallons of water have been saved through the rebate program.  

This action assumes that the washing machine rebate program will continue, but the toilet rebate program 

will be discontinued in the next few years. However, other rebate and incentive programs are likely to be 

in place until 2030 and are assumed to replace the toilet rebate program. Savings from new programs 

implemented after are assumed to be more aggressive and to save larger amounts of water and lead to 

increased GHG reductions, compared to current programs in place.  

Outdoor Water Landscaping Ordinance – New landscaped areas over 2,500 square feet 

                                                      
21

 Revenue passenger miles (RPMs) are measures of transit for a bus, or train calculated by multiplying the number 

of revenue-paying passengers aboard the vehicle by the distance traveled. (Source for 2007 Operating 

Characteristics for METRO is “Monterey Mobility 2030, PDF page 27) 



  

 

  82 

This action assumes that five new developments a year will fall under the compliance requirements of this 

ordinance. This action also assumes that an average 40% of total water use at any property is associated 

with outdoor water consumption and that 50% water savings can be realized through the ordinance’s 

requirements, when compared to that of a conventionally designed landscape. GHG emission reductions 

are depended upon a reduction in water consumption, which results in energy reduction in the form of 

kilowatt hours (kWh) needed to treat and pump water.  

Voluntary program to encourage greywater systems - "Laundry to Landscape." The Laundry to 

Landscape action represents a method of onsite residential water recycling, where water used to wash 

clothes is transferred outdoors for landscape irrigation purposes. This effluent is known as greywater and 

the reuse system can be accomplished through do-it-yourself design or more complex means of design. 

The concept in this plan takes a low-tech approach to help reduce costs associated with more intricate 

greywater systems and does not include additional filtration and pumping requirements found in more 

complex greywater systems. Reducing fresh water for irrigation also reduces both electricity and GHG 

emissions for the supplier and the end user and helps to make the water energy nexus more resilient and 

adaptive for future water shortages. Ten properties per year are assumed to install a Laundry to Landscape 

system, saving roughly 123,500 gallons of fresh water each year with an average washer efficiency of 33 

gallons per load and 400 loads of laundry each year.  

Voluntary Landscaping Guidelines and Lawn Replacement Program  

This action assumes that water consumption will be reduced through voluntary use of the landscaping 

guidelines or a lawn removal incentive, and that 10 properties per year will implement the guidelines in 

some form or fashion by 2020, with 20 properties/year participating by 2030. Many of these properties 

might be smaller in size or might be currently existing landscaped areas, and thus are not subject to the 

Mandatory Outdoor Water Landscaping Ordinance, which applies to new landscaped areas 2,500 square 

feet or greater in area. However, properties with landscaped areas less than 2,500 square feet represent the 

majority in Watsonville and hold tremendous potential for water reductions.  

D4. Solid Waste 

City-wide curbside recycling program for both residents and businesses  

The emissions reduction calculations assume that the year-to-year reductions in waste sent to landfill is 

due to the recycling programs and that the percent of recyclables in the waste sent to landfill remains 

constant. In practice however, the percent of recyclable materials in the waste stream should decrease 

over time. Annual diversion rates or waste characterizations are needed to identify the actual trends 

towards reduced recyclables in the waste stream.   

City-wide residential curbside yard waste pickup  

According to the City website, approximately 19% of the residential waste stream is made up of materials 

considered yard waste. The emissions reductions calculations assume that, there will be a 50% reduction 

in the amount of yard waste sent to landfill in the first year of the program, an 80% reduction after 2013, 

and a 100% reduction by 2020.  

 



  

 

  83 

Curbside green waste pickup for businesses  

According to the CalRecycle Solid Waste Characterization database, green waste makes up 5.5% of the 

waste sent to landfill from local businesses. The emissions reductions calculations assume that by 

implementing this program, 80% of the green waste from local businesses will be diverted from landfill 

by 2020 and by 2030 this number will increase to 100%.  

Curbside food waste pickup for residents and businesses 

According to the CalRecycle Solid Waste Characterization database, food waste makes up 18.5% of the 

waste sent to landfill from homes, and 17.8% of the waste stream from local businesses. The emissions 

reductions calculations assume that by implementing this program, 80% of the food waste from local 

residents and businesses will be diverted from landfill by 2020 and 100% will be diverted by 2030. 

D5. Green Building and Green Business 

Existing Green Building Ordinance and Compliance with New State Requirements 

Most new construction in Watsonville is residential housing, with an average of 229,500 square feet of 

new residential housing units constructed each year. On average, 65,000 square feet of nonresidential 

space is constructed each year. This action assumes that the Green Building Ordinance required most 

buildings to achieve 5% above the 2008 version of Title 24, while the new 2013 Title 24 will require a 

10% improvement over the 2008 Title 24.  

Encourage Participation in the Green Business Program  

This action assumes that Watsonville will continue its current role in facilitating and supporting the 

program, and that approximately 3 businesses/year will enroll and participate in the program, which is the 

historical average of program participation. Based on data received from the Green Business Program, 

each certified business is assumed to reduce 8,531 kWh/year and 23,043 gallons of water/year.  

Establish Community Gardens 

This action assumes that 11 new community gardens will be established by 2020, and 21 new gardens 

will be established by 2030. Each garden is assumed to have 10 participating households. On average, 

each household is assumed to make 2.2 trips/week to the supermarket, at an average of 5 round-trip miles 

per trip. Due to the community gardens, it is assumed that 25% of each household’s total annual trips to 

the supermarket are eliminated. Based on these assumptions, a total 15,773 VMT will be reduced by 

2020, and a total of 30,113 VMT will be reduced by 2030. 

Net Zero Fee for New Construction 

This action assumes that 10% of residential and nonresidential properties will achieve 50% energy 

efficiency over 2013 Title 24, and that 5% of residential and nonresidential properties will achieve 100% 

energy efficiency over 2013 Title 24. Calculations are based on the assumption that 229,500 square feet 

of new residential housing units are constructed each year and 65,000 square feet of nonresidential space 

is constructed each year. 



  

 

  84 

Monthly Food Swap 

Similar to the Community Gardens action, each household is assumed to make an average of 2.2 

trips/week to the supermarket, at an average of 5 round-trip miles per trip. This action is assumed to 

reduce annual trips to the supermarket by 10% each year, but half of those trips are replaced with a trip to 

the food swap, for a total reduction of 5% of trips each year. By 2020, 100 households are expected to 

participate, and 200 households are expected to participate by 2030. Based on these assumptions, a total 

2,868 VMT will be reduced by 2020, and a total of 5,736 VMT will be reduced by 2030. 

Increase Participation in the Green Business Program  

Specifically, this action assumes that the City will work with various partners to increase participation in 

the Green Business Certification Program to 25% by 2020 and 75% by 2030. Approximately 6 businesses 

currently join the Green Business Program each year; this action would increase the number to up to 150 

businesses per year. Based on data received from the Green Business Program, each certified business is 

assumed to reduce 8,531 kWh/year and 23,043 gallons of water/year. The total number of businesses in 

Watsonville is provided by the City based on the number of business licenses issued; as of 2013, there are 

1,668 licensed businesses in Watsonville.  

 



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE CLIMATE ACTION PLAN AND 
CARBON FUND FOR THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE  

WHEREAS, State regulations call for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions to 

2005 levels by 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Watsonville has developed a Climate Action Plan that 

includes policies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions to levels outlined by the State of 

California, as well as policies to address climate change; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Watsonville has developed a Carbon Fund and Carbon Fee 

to encourage the installation of renewable energy sources in the City of Watsonville and to 

provide a funding source to implement the policies outlined in the Climate Action Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City prepared an Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration in 

compliance with CEQA requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration were circulated on 

October 6, 2014, for a 30 day period in compliance with the requirements of CEQA; and 

WHEREAS, on or about November 4, 2014, the Planning Commission adopted 

Resolution No. 21-14 (PC) recommending that the City Council approve the Initial Study 

and Mitigated Negative Declaration; and 

WHEREAS, the appropriate public noticing procedures have been followed and a 

public hearing was held according to Section 14-10.900 of the Watsonville Municipal Code; 

and 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\011315\CAP Initial Study Neg Dec.docx 
ri 1/7/2015 5:07:10 PM AJS ______ CJP  ______ CDD  ______ 

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.1f



WHEREAS, the City Council has considered all written and verbal evidence 

regarding the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for the City of Watsonville 

Climate Action Plan and Carbon Fund. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

That the City Council hereby approves the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative 

Declaration for the City of Watsonville Climate Action Plan and Carbon Fund attached 

hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A.” 

 
****************************************** 

 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\011315\CAP Initial Study Neg Dec.docx  
ri 1/7/2015 5:07:10 PM 

2 



 
m:\cdd\pc packet\pcpkt 2014\11-04-14\climate action plan\environmental\noi.doc 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADOPT NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
 

TO:  see  attached  list   FROM: CITY OF WATSONVILLE   
        250 MAIN STREET 
        WATSONVILLE, CA 95076 
 

Project Name: Climate Action Plan for the City of Watsonville 
 

Project Description: The City of Watsonville proposes the adoption of a Climate Action 
Plan to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in the City over the next 25 years, along with 
the creation of a Carbon Fund to provide funding to implement the policies in the Plan.   
 

Project Applicant: City of Watsonville, 250 Main Street, Watsonville, CA 95076 
 

Project Location: Citywide 
 

Date: October 6, 2014   Comment Due Date: November 6, 2014 
 
The City of Watsonville has prepared an Initial Study/Environmental Assessment 
(attached) for the proposed project.  The Initial Study suggests mitigations which will 
reduce potential significant environmental effects to an acceptable level.  Project plans 
will incorporate the applicable mitigation measures, if any, described in the 
Environmental Assessment.   
 
State Law requires interested persons or responsible agencies to respond within thirty 
(30) days of this notice.  Please send your responses to the Community Development 
Department at the address shown above, by the comment due date.   
 
Consideration of the Negative Declaration is tentatively scheduled to be considered by 
the City Council on December 2, 2014.  Any person may make inquiries, present 
comments, or file an appeal on the decision to issue a Negative Declaration at the City 
of Watsonville Community Development Department, 250 Main Street. 
 
Thank you for your attention to this notice. 
 
________________________________ 
(Signature) 
 
Senior Planner  831-768-3074 
(Title)                                        Phone  
 
Attachments: 
A - Initial Study/Negative Declaration 
 

EXHIBIT A
Page 1 of 39



EXHIBIT A
Page 2 of 39



EXHIBIT A
Page 3 of 39



Appendix G 

 

 

Environmental Checklist Form 

 

NOTE:  The following is a sample form and may be tailored to satisfy individual agencies’ needs and project 

circumstances.  It may be used to meet the requirements for an initial study when the criteria set forth in CEQA 

Guidelines have been met.  Substantial evidence of potential impacts that are not listed on this form must also be 

considered.  The sample questions in this form are intended to encourage thoughtful assessment of impacts, and do not 

necessarily represent thresholds of significance. 

 

 
 
1. 

 
Project title:___________________________________________________________________  

 
2. 

 
Lead agency name and address: 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

  
 
3. 

 
Contact person and phone number: _________________________________________________ 

 
4. 

 
Project location: _______________________________________________________________ 

 
5. 

 
Project sponsor's name and address: 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

  
 
6. 

 
General plan designation:   

 
7. 

 
Zoning:   

 
8. 

 
Description of project: (Describe the whole action involved, including but not limited to later 

phases of the project, and any secondary, support, or off-site features necessary for its 

implementation. Attach additional sheets if necessary.) 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
9. 

 
Surrounding land uses and setting: Briefly describe the project's surroundings: 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. 

 
Other public agencies whose approval is required (e.g., permits, financing approval, or 

participation agreement.) 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

Climate Action Plan

City of Watsonville
250 Main Street
Watsonville, CA 95076

Suzi Merriam, Senior Planner 8317683074

Citywide

City of Watsonville
250 Main Street
Watsonville, CA 95076

Citywide Citywide

The City of Watsonville proposes the adoption of a Climate Action Plan and Carbon Offset
Fund to reduce Greenhouse Gas Emissions within the City over the next 25 years.  The
Carbon Offset Fund will assist in providing financing for ghg reduction projects outlined in the
Climate Action Plan

The Climate Action Plan will affect all properties within the City of Watsonville.

Print Form

EXHIBIT A
Page 4 of 39



 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: 

 

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least one impact that 

is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages. 
 

 

 

 
Aesthetics  

 

 

 
Agriculture  and Forestry 

Resources  

 

 

 
Air Quality 

 

 

 
Biological Resources 

 

 

 
Cultural Resources  

 

 

 
Geology /Soils 

 

 

 
Greenhouse Gas 

Emissions 

 

 

 
Hazards & Hazardous 

Materials 

 

 

 
Hydrology / Water 

Quality 
 

 

 
Land Use / Planning 

 

 

 
Mineral Resources 

 

 

 
Noise 

 

 

 
Population / Housing 

 

 

 
Public Services 

 

 

 
Recreation 

 

 

 
Transportation/Traffic 

 

 

 
Utilities / Service Systems  

 

 

 
Mandatory Findings of 

Significance 

 

DETERMINATION: (To be completed by the Lead Agency) 
 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 
 

 

 

 
I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and 

a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 
 

 

 
I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, 

there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been 

made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE 

DECLARATION will be prepared. 
 

 

 
I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 
 

 

 
I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially 

significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been 

adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has 

been addressed by mitigation  measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached 

sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the 

effects that remain to be addressed. 
 

 

 
I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, 

because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR 

or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided 

or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions 

or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required. 

 
 
 

  

Signature 

 
 

  

Date 
 
 

  

Signature 

 
 

  

Date 

 
EXHIBIT A

Page 5 of 39



 

 

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS: 

 

1) A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately supported by the 

information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each question. A "No Impact" answer is 

adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects 

like the one involved (e.g., the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A "No Impact" answer should be 

explained where it is based on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g., the project will not 

expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis). 

 

2) All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, cumulative as 

well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational impacts. 

 

3) Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the checklist answers must 

indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant with mitigation, or less than significant. 

"Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If 

there are one or more "Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required. 

 

4) "Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the incorporation of 

mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" to a "Less Than Significant 

Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to 

a less than significant level (mitigation measures from "Earlier Analyses," as described in (5) below, may be 

cross-referenced). 

 

5) Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, an effect has 

been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. Section 15063(c)(3)(D). In this case, a brief 

discussion should identify the following: 

 

a)  Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review. 

 

b)  Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the scope of 

and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and state whether 

such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis. 

 

c)  Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures Incorporated," 

describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the earlier document and the 

extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project. 

 

6) Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources for potential 

impacts (e.g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously prepared or outside document should, 

where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated. 

 

7) Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used or individuals contacted 

should be cited in the discussion. 

 

8) This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead agencies should 

normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a project's environmental effects in 

whatever format is selected. 

 

9) The explanation of each issue should identify: 

 

a)  the significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and 

 

b)  the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance. 

 

 
EXHIBIT A

Page 6 of 39



 

 

SAMPLE QUESTION 

Issues: 

 
 
 

 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

 
 Less Than 

Significant with 

Mitigation 

Incorporated 

 
Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

 
No 

Impact 

 
I. AESTHETICS -- Would the project: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic 

vista? 
    

 
b) Substantially damage scenic resources, 

including, but not limited to, trees, rock 

outcroppings, and historic buildings within a 

state scenic highway? 

    

 
c) Substantially degrade the existing visual 

character or quality of the site and its 

surroundings? 

    

 
d) Create a new source of substantial light or 

glare which would adversely affect day or 

nighttime views in the area? 

    

 
II. AGRICULTURE AND FOREST 

RESOURCES: In determining whether impacts 

to agricultural resources are significant 

environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to 

the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and 

Site Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the 

California Dept. of Conservation as an optional 

model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture 

and farmland. In determining whether impacts to 

forest resources, including timberland, are 

significant environmental effects, lead agencies 

may refer to information compiled by the 

California Department of Forestry and Fire 

Protection regarding the state’s inventory of 

forest land, including the Forest and Range 

Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy 

Assessment project; and forest carbon 

measurement methodology provided in Forest 

Protocols adopted by the California Air 

Resources Board. -- Would the project: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or 

Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), 

as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the 

Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of 

the California Resources Agency, to non-

agricultural use? 

    

 
b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural 

use, or a Williamson Act contract? 
    

 
c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 

rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 

Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland 

(as defined by Public Resources Code section 

4526), or timberland zoned Timberland 

    

EXHIBIT A
Page 7 of 39



 

 

 
 

 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

 
 Less Than 

Significant with 

Mitigation 

Incorporated 

 
Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

 
No 

Impact 

Production (as defined by Government Code 

section 51104(g))?  
 
d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion 

of forest land to non-forest use?  
    

 
de) Involve other changes in the existing 

environment which, due to their location or 

nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, to 

non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land 

to non-forest use? 

    

 
III. AIR QUALITY -- Where available, the 

significance criteria established by the applicable 

air quality management or air pollution control 

district may be relied upon to make the following 

determinations. Would the project: 

    

 
a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of 

the applicable air quality plan? 
    

 
b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute 

substantially to an existing or projected air 

quality violation? 

    

 
c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net 

increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 

project region is non-attainment under an 

applicable federal or state ambient air quality 

standard (including releasing emissions which 

exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone 

precursors)? 

    

 
d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial 

pollutant concentrations? 
    

 
e) Create objectionable odors affecting a 

substantial number of people? 
    

 
IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES -- Would the 

project: 

    

 
a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either 

directly or through habitat modifications, on any 

species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or 

special status species in local or regional plans, 

policies, or regulations, or by the California 

Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and 

Wildlife Service? 

    

 
b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any 

riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 

community identified in local or regional plans, 

policies, regulations or by the California 

Department of Fish and Game or US Fish and 

Wildlife Service? 

    

 
c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally 

protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of 

    EXHIBIT A
Page 8 of 39



 

 

 
 

 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

 
 Less Than 

Significant with 

Mitigation 

Incorporated 

 
Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

 
No 

Impact 

the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited 

to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through 

direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, 

or other means? 
 
d) Interfere substantially with the movement of 

any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 

species or with established native resident or 

migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of 

native wildlife nursery sites? 

    

 
e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances 

protecting biological resources, such as a tree 

preservation policy or ordinance? 

    

 
f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted 

Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community 

Conservation Plan, or other approved local, 

regional, or state habitat conservation plan? 

    

 
V. CULTURAL RESOURCES -- Would the 

project: 

    

 
a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 

significance of a historical resource as defined in 

§ 15064.5? 

    

 
b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 

significance of an archaeological resource 

pursuant to § 15064.5? 

    

 
c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 

paleontological resource or site or unique 

geologic feature? 

    

 
d) Disturb any human remains, including those 

interred outside of formal cemeteries? 
    

 
VI. GEOLOGY AND SOILS -- Would the 

project: 

    

 
a) Expose people or structures to potential 

substantial adverse effects, including the risk of 

loss, injury, or death involving: 

    

 
i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as 

delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo 

Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State 

Geologist for the area or based on other 

substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to 

Division of Mines and Geology Special 

Publication 42. 

    

 
ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?     
 
iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including 

liquefaction? 
    

 
iv) Landslides?     EXHIBIT A

Page 9 of 39



 

 

 
 

 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

 
 Less Than 

Significant with 

Mitigation 

Incorporated 

 
Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

 
No 

Impact 

 
b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of 

topsoil? 
    

 
c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 

unstable, or that would become unstable as a 

result of the project, and potentially result in on- 

or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 

subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

    

 
d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in 

Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code 

(1994), creating substantial risks to life or 

property? 

    

 
e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting 

the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water 

disposal systems where sewers are not available 

for the disposal of waste water? 

    

 
VII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS -- 

Would the project: 

    

 
a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 

directly or indirectly, that may have a significant 

impact on the environment? 

    

 
b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 

regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing 

the emissions of greenhouse gases? 

    

 
VIII. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS 

MATERIALS - Would the project: 
 
a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 

environment through the routine transport, use, or 

disposal of hazardous materials? 

    

 
b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 

environment through reasonably foreseeable 

upset and accident conditions involving the 

release of hazardous materials into the 

environment? 

    

 
c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous 

or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or 

waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or 

proposed school? 

    

 
d) Be located on a site which is included on a list 

of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 

Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a 

result, would it create a significant hazard to the 

public or the environment? 

    

 
e) For a project located within an airport land use 

plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, 

within two miles of a public airport or public use 

airport, would the project result in a safety hazard 

    

EXHIBIT A
Page 10 of 39



 

 

 
 

 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

 
 Less Than 

Significant with 

Mitigation 

Incorporated 

 
Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

 
No 

Impact 

for people residing or working in the project 

area? 
 
f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 

airstrip, would the project result in a safety 

hazard for people residing or working in the 

project area? 

    

 
g) Impair implementation of or physically 

interfere with an adopted emergency response 

plan or emergency evacuation plan? 

    

 
h) Expose people or structures to a significant 

risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland 

fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to 

urbanized areas or where residences are 

intermixed with wildlands? 

    

 
IX. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY -- 

Would the project: 

    

 
a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 

discharge requirements? 
    

 
b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or 

interfere substantially with groundwater recharge 

such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer 

volume or a lowering of the local groundwater 

table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-

existing nearby wells would drop to a level 

which would not support existing land uses or 

planned uses for which permits have been 

granted)? 

    

 
c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern 

of the site or area, including through the 

alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a 

manner which would result in substantial erosion 

or siltation on- or off-site? 

    

 
d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern 

of the site or area, including through the 

alteration of the course of a stream or river, or 

substantially increase the rate or amount of 

surface runoff in a manner which would result in 

flooding on- or off-site? 

    

 
e) Create or contribute runoff water which would 

exceed the capacity of existing or planned 

stormwater drainage systems or provide 

substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? 

    

 
f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?     
 
g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard 

area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard 

Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other 

flood hazard delineation map? 

    

EXHIBIT A
Page 11 of 39



 

 

 
 

 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

 
 Less Than 

Significant with 

Mitigation 

Incorporated 

 
Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

 
No 

Impact 

 
h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area 

structures which would impede or redirect flood 

flows? 

    

 
i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk 

of loss, injury or death involving flooding, 

including flooding as a result of the failure of a 

levee or dam? 

    

 
j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?     
 
X. LAND USE AND PLANNING - Would the 

project: 

    

 
a) Physically divide an established community?     
 
b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan, 

policy, or regulation of an agency with 

jurisdiction over the project (including, but not 

limited to the general plan, specific plan, local 

coastal program, or zoning ordinance) adopted 

for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an 

environmental effect? 

    

 
c) Conflict with any applicable habitat 

conservation plan or natural community 

conservation plan? 

    

 
XI. MINERAL RESOURCES -- Would the 

project: 

    

 
a) Result in the loss of availability of a known 

mineral resource that would be of value to the 

region and the residents of the state? 

    

 
b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-

important mineral resource recovery site 

delineated on a local general plan, specific plan 

or other land use plan? 

    

 
XII. NOISE -- Would the project result in: 

    

 
a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise 

levels in excess of standards established in the 

local general plan or noise ordinance, or 

applicable standards of other agencies? 

    

 
b) Exposure of persons to or generation of 

excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne 

noise levels? 

    

 
c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient 

noise levels in the project vicinity above levels 

existing without the project? 

    

 
d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in 

ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above 

levels existing without the project? 

    

EXHIBIT A
Page 12 of 39



 

 

 
 

 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

 
 Less Than 

Significant with 

Mitigation 

Incorporated 

 
Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

 
No 

Impact 

 
e) For a project located within an airport land use 

plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, 

within two miles of a public airport or public use 

airport, would the project expose people residing 

or working in the project area to excessive noise 

levels? 

    

 
f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 

airstrip, would the project expose people residing 

or working in the project area to excessive noise 

levels? 

    

 
XIII. POPULATION AND HOUSING -- Would 

the project: 

    

 
a) Induce substantial population growth in an 

area, either directly (for example, by proposing 

new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for 

example, through extension of roads or other 

infrastructure)? 

    

 
b) Displace substantial numbers of existing 

housing, necessitating the construction of 

replacement housing elsewhere? 

    

 
c) Displace substantial numbers of people, 

necessitating the construction of replacement 

housing elsewhere? 

    

 
XIV. PUBLIC SERVICES 

    

 
a) Would the project result in substantial adverse 

physical impacts associated with the provision of 

new or physically altered governmental facilities, 

need for new or physically altered governmental 

facilities, the construction of which could cause 

significant environmental impacts, in order to 

maintain acceptable service ratios, response times 

or other performance objectives for any of the 

public services: 

�  �  �  �  

 
Fire protection?     

 
Police protection?     

 
Schools?     

 
Parks?     

 
 

Other public facilities? 
    

 
XV. RECREATION -- 

    

 
a) Would the project increase the use of existing 

neighborhood and regional parks or other 

recreational facilities such that substantial 

physical deterioration of the facility would occur 

or be accelerated? 

    

EXHIBIT A
Page 13 of 39



 

 

 
 

 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

 
 Less Than 

Significant with 

Mitigation 

Incorporated 

 
Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

 
No 

Impact 

 
b) Does the project include recreational facilities 

or require the construction or expansion of 

recreational facilities which might have an 

adverse physical effect on the environment? 

    

 
XVI. TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC -- Would 

the project: 

    

 
a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or 

policy establishing measures of effectiveness for 

the performance of the circulation system, taking 

into account all modes of transportation including 

mass transit and non-motorized travel and 

relevant components of the circulation system, 

including but not limited to intersections, streets, 

highways and freeways, pedestrian and bicycle 

paths, and mass transit? 

    

 
b)  Conflict with an applicable congestion 

management program, including, but not limited 

to level of service standards and travel demand 

measures, or other standards established by the 

county congestion management agency for 

designated roads or highways? 

    

 
c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, 

including either an increase in traffic levels or a 

change in location that results in substantial 

safety risks? 

    

 
d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design 

feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 

intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm 

equipment)? 

    

 
e) Result in inadequate emergency access?     
 
f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or 

programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or 

pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the 

performance or safety of such facilities? 

    

 
XVII. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS -- 

Would the project: 

    

 
a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of 

the applicable Regional Water Quality Control 

Board? 

    

 
b) Require or result in the construction of new 

water or wastewater treatment facilities or 

expansion of existing facilities, the construction 

of which could cause significant environmental 

effects? 

    

 
c) Require or result in the construction of new 

storm water drainage facilities or expansion of 

existing facilities, the construction of which 

    

EXHIBIT A
Page 14 of 39



 

 

 
 

 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

 
 Less Than 

Significant with 

Mitigation 

Incorporated 

 
Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

 
No 

Impact 

could cause significant environmental effects? 
 
d) Have sufficient water supplies available to 

serve the project from existing entitlements and 

resources, or are new or expanded entitlements 

needed? 

    

 
e) Result in a determination by the wastewater 

treatment provider which serves or may serve the 

project that it has adequate capacity to serve the 

project’s projected demand in addition to the 

provider’s existing commitments? 

    

 
f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient 

permitted capacity to accommodate the project’s 

solid waste disposal needs? 

    

 
g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes 

and regulations related to solid waste? 
    

 
XVIII. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF 

SIGNIFICANCE -- 

    

 
a) Does the project have the potential to degrade 

the quality of the environment, substantially 

reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, 

cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below 

self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a 

plant or animal community, reduce the number or 

restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or 

animal or eliminate important examples of the 

major periods of California history or prehistory? 

    

 
b) Does the project have impacts that are 

individually limited, but cumulatively 

considerable? ("Cumulatively 

considerable" means that the incremental effects 

of a project are considerable when viewed in 

connection with the effects of past projects, the 

effects of other current projects, and the effects 

of probable future projects)? 

    

 
c) Does the project have environmental effects 

which will cause substantial adverse effects on 

human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

    

 

 

Note: Authority cited: Sections 21083, 21083.05, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section 65088.4, Gov. Code; 

Sections 21080, 21083.05, 21095, Pub. Resources Code; Eureka Citizens for Responsible Govt. v. City of Eureka (2007) 

147 Cal.App.4th 357; Protect the Historic Amador Waterways v. Amador Water Agency (2004) 116 Cal.App.4th at 1109; 

San Franciscans Upholding the Downtown Plan v. City and County of San Francisco (2002) 102 Cal.App.4th 656. 

 
Revised 2009 
 

EXHIBIT A
Page 15 of 39

cgonzalez
Typewritten Text



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 1 - 

Initial Study Narrative 

Climate Action Plan for the City of Watsonville 

 

 

I.  Aesthetics 

 

(a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 

 

No impacts  

 

Mitigations:  None required. 

 

(b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock 

outcropping, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required. 

 

(c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its 

surroundings? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required. 

 

(d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect 

day or night views in the area?    

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required. 

 

II. Agricultural Resources 

 

(a) Convert prime farmland, unique farmland, or farmland of statewide importance 

(farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping 

and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural 

use? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required  

 

(b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? 

 

EXHIBIT A
Page 16 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 2 - 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

 

(c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in 

Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public 

Resources Code section 4525) or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as 

defined by Government Code section 51104(g))? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

(d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

(e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or 

nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or 

conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

III.  Air Quality 

 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 

 

The North Central Coast Air Basin (Basin), which is just south of the San Francisco Bay 

Area Air Basin, covers an area of 5,159 square miles and consists of the counties of Santa 

Cruz, San Benito, and Monterey.  The City of Watsonville is in south Santa Cruz County.  

Marine breezes from Monterey Bay dominate the climate of this portion of the Basin.  

Westerly winds predominate in all seasons, but are strongest and most persistent during 

the spring and summer months. 

 

The extent and severity of the air pollution problem in the Basin is a function of the 

area’s natural physical characteristics (weather and topography), as well as human 

created influences (development patterns and lifestyle).  Factors such as wind, sunlight, 

temperature, humidity, rainfall and topography all affect the accumulation and/or 

dispersion of pollutants throughout the Basin area. 

 

EXHIBIT A
Page 17 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 3 - 

In general, the air pollution potential of the coastal areas is relatively low due to 

persistent winds.  The Basin is, however, subject to temperature inversions that restrict 

vertical mixing of pollutants and the warmer inland valleys of the Basin have a high 

pollution potential.  

 

The MBUAPCD prepares an Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) that addresses the 

Basin’s attainment with the California and National Ambient Air Quality Standards 

(CAAQS and NAAQS).  Projects that are not consistent with the AQMP have not been 

accommodated in the AQMP and would therefore have a significant impact upon 

regional air quality unless the emissions are completely offset.  The Association of 

Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) provides consistency determinations for the 

projects that directly or indirectly lead to growth in the region.  The MBUAPCD provides 

consistency determinations for all other projects. 

 

The emissions estimates contained in the latest AQMP are based on the growth 

projections provided by AMBAG for 2035.  The Climate Action Plan proposes policies 

and implementation measures which would lessen any inconsistencies with the local 

AQMP.  These include optimization of route schedules for fleet vehicles in the City, and 

improvement of pedestrian and bike trails and routes to encourage the use of alternative 

transportation.  The entire list of existing and proposed actions to reduce GHG emissions 

is outlined on the following pages. 

EXHIBIT A
Page 18 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 4 - 

 

 

Sector Type of 

Action 

Description GHG 

Reductions by 

2020 

GHG 

Reductions by 

2030 

Energy Existing Citywide Street Tree Plan 116 386 

Energy Watch Programs and other Utility Energy Efficiency Programs 2,389 2,734 

Solar PV Installed To Date 229 229 

New New Renewable Energy Installation Through Incentives and Outreach 545 2,108 

Outreach to Businesses to Increase Participation in Energy Watch / PG&E programs 433 1,982 

Partner with School Districts to Encourage Solar on Schools 0 264 

Community Choice  Aggregation Program 1,390 5,542 

Promote Smart Meter Based EMS 289 991 

Supporting Home Energy Assistance Program Not quantified Not quantified 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 5,390 14,236 

Transportation Existing Provide bicycle and pedestrian amenities 473 753 

Implement safe routes to schools program 369 1,845 

Support car-sharing and regional ridesharing 375 1,682 

Implement neighborhood traffic calming projects 189 430 

Promote traffic signal synchronization and other intelligent transportation system (ITS) 

technologies 
 

579 3,306 

New Implement formal bike lane and bike infrastructure program 574 1,957 

Work with METRO and other transportation agencies in conjunction with local land use 

and parking policies to increase local public transit ridership by 5% by 2020 and 20% by 

2030. 

15 61 

EXHIBIT A
Page 19 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 5 - 

Sector Type of 

Action 

Description GHG 

Reductions by 

2020 

GHG 

Reductions by 

2030 

Supporting Promote electric vehicle infrastructure Not quantified  Not quantified 

Establish distribution points for alternative fuels within Watsonville for general use by the 

public. 

Promote infill development along transit corridors and in the downtown area (2030 GP) 

Not quantified 
 

Not quantified 

Not quantified 
 

Not quantified 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 2,575 10,035 

Water and 

Wastewater 
Existing Utility water conservation programs 246 949 

Outdoor water landscaping ordinance (applies to new landscaped areas over 2,500 square 

feet) 

0.25 0.60 

New Voluntary program to encourage greywater systems - "Laundry to Landscape" 0 1 

Voluntary Native Plant Landscaping & Voluntary Lawn Removal Programs 0 5 

Supporting Wastewater treatment plant - recycled water storage Not quantified Not quantified 

City-operated water conservation and outreach programs, including free water audits Not quantified Not quantified 

Recommended guidelines for improving stormwater runoff provided in a voluntary 

program. 

Not quantified Not quantified 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 246 955 
Solid Waste Existing City-wide curbside recycling program for residential and non-residential community 

members 

183 223 

City-wide residential curbside yard waste pickup 186 232 

New Curbside green waste pickup for non-residential community members 0 117 

Curbside food waste pickup for residential and non-residential community members 0 669 

Supporting Free compost bins and training to residents Not quantified Not quantified 

Plastic and single-use carryout bag restrictions Not quantified Not quantified 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 369 1,241 

Green 

Buildings, 

Existing Existing Green Building Ordinance and Compliance with New State Requirements 147 258 

Encourage Participation in the Green Business Program 53 106 

EXHIBIT A
Page 20 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 6 - 

Sector Type of 

Action 

Description GHG 

Reductions by 

2020 

GHG 

Reductions by 

2030 

Green 

Business, 

and Local 

Food 

Establish Community Gardens 8 15 

New Net Zero Fee for New Construction 3 8 

Monthly Food Swap 0 3 

Increase Participation in the Green Business Program 611 2,052 

SUBTOTAL REDUCTIONS: 821 2,441 

Total of All Existing Actions: 5,541 13,149 

Total of All New Actions 3,859 15,759 

GRAND TOTAL OF ALL REDUCTIONS: 9,401 28,908 

 

EXHIBIT A
Page 21 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 7 - 

 

 

Given the air quality policies contained in the Climate Action Plan, the impact is 

considered less than significant and no mitigation measures are required. 

 

Mitigations: Implementation of the policies outlined in the Climate Action Plan will 

reduce impacts to a less than significant level.  

 

b)Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or 

projected air quality violation? 

 

Construction activities produce combustion emissions from various sources including 

demolition, site grading, utility engines, on-site heavy-duty construction vehicles, 

equipment hauling, and motor vehicles transporting the construction crew.  The use of 

construction equipment on-site would result in localized vehicular exhaust emissions.  

Vehicular exhaust emissions during site construction operation and schedule for the 

proposed developments within the City are not available and therefore short-term 

construction impacts are not quantified. 

 

In order to address future short-term construction air quality impacts, proposed projects 

within the City would be required to adhere to the air quality policies and implementation 

measures contained within the proposed within the current general plan.  As part of the 

City’s development review process, all future projects would be individually analyzed to 

review any potential air quality impacts and necessary mitigation measures. 

 

MBUAPCD Control Measures 

In addition to the policies and implementation measures found in the general plan, all 

future projects subject to CEQA would be required to comply with the MBUAPCD’s 

recommended particulate control measures.  These measures include the following: 

 Water all active construction areas at least twice daily; 

 Cover all trucks hauling soil, sand and other loose materials or require all trucks 

to maintain at least two feet of freeboard; 

 Pave, apply water three times daily, or apply (non toxic) soil stabilizers on all 

unpaved access roads, parking areas and staging areas at construction sites; 

 Sweep daily (with water sweepers) all paved access roads, parking areas and 

staging areas at construction sites; 

 Sweep streets daily (with water sweepers) if visible soil material is carried onto 

adjacent public streets; 

 Hydroseed or apply (non toxic) soil stabilizers to inactive construction areas 

(previously graded areas inactive for ten days or more); 

 Enclose, cover, water twice daily or apply (non toxic) soil binders to exposed 

stockpiles (dirt, sand, etc.); 

 Limit traffic speeds on unpaved roads to 15 mph; 

 Install appropriate best management practices or other erosion control measures to 

prevent silt runoff to public roadways; 

 Replant vegetation in disturbed areas as quickly as possible; 

EXHIBIT A
Page 22 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 8 - 

 Install wheel washers for all exiting trucks, or wash off the tires or tracks of all 

trucks and equipment leaving the site; 

 Limit the area subject to excavation, grading and other construction activity at any 

one time; 

 Post a publicly visible sign which specifies the telephone number and person to 

contact regarding dust complaints (the person shall respond to complaints and 

take corrective action within 48 hours); and 

 Ensure that the phone number of MBUAPCD is visible to the public for 

compliance with Rule 402 (Nuisance). 

 

Given the existing policies in the current general plan and policies outlined in the Climate 

Action Plan to reduce GHG emissions, cooperation with MBUAPCD, and MBUAPCD 

compliance requirements, short term construction impacts are anticipated to be less than 

significant where policies have been implemented. 

 

Toxic Air Contaminants 

Diesel exhaust, which is estimated by the EPA’s National Scale Assessment, is composed 

of either a gas or particulate phase.  The gas phase is composed of many of the urban 

hazardous air pollutants, such as acetaldehyde, acrolein, benzene, 1, 3-butadiene, 

formaldehyde and polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons.  The particulate phase has many 

different types that can be classified by size or composition.  The size of diesel 

particulates of greatest health concern are those in the categories on fine, and ultrafine 

particles.  The composition of fine and ultrafine particles may be composed of elemental 

carbon with absorbed compounds such as organics, sulfates, nitrates, metals and other 

trace elements.  Diesel exhaust is emitted from a broad range of on-and off road diesel 

engines.   

 

All future projects subject to CEQA would be required to comply with the MBUAPCD’s 

to ensure that sensitive receptors are not exposed to toxic air contaminants and diesel 

particulate matter above the MBUAPCD thresholds of significance. 

 

Long-Term Operational Impacts  

 

Projected population increases associated with build-out of the city would result in a 

corresponding increase in the number of automobiles and vehicular pollutants.  The 

primary method of reducing pollutants that result either directly or indirectly from vehicle 

exhaust (including ozone), is to reduce both the number of vehicular trips and the miles 

traveled each day by local workers and residents.  A large fraction of the remaining 

stationary pollutants (from electricity and gas consumption) can be reduced through 

energy conservation, which have been identified in the Climate Action Plan.  To 

minimize the number of vehicle miles traveled (VMT), land uses will encourage the 

location of jobs, housing, and shopping in areas in such as a way as to minimize extra 

automobile trips.  Further, creation, expansion, and improvement of pedestrian and bike 

trails to create a link throughout the community will also reduce the VMT in the city.  

Reduction in vehicular trips as well as vehicular miles can be accomplished over time 

through the application of the policies outlined in the Climate Action Plan. 

EXHIBIT A
Page 23 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 9 - 

 

The Climate Action Plan outlines existing, new, and supporting actions to reduce vehicle 

air pollutants.  These include the provision of bicycle and pedestrian amenities, 

supporting car sharing and ride sharing, implementing a formal bike lane and bike 

infrastructure program, and implementation of neighborhood traffic calming projects. 

 

Mitigations: Future projects (subject to requirements of CEQA) would be required by 

MBUAPCD to incorporate all feasible control measures listed above to minimize 

construction impacts.    

 

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase in any criteria pollutant for 

which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state 

ambient air quality standard (including releasing emissions which exceed 

quantitative thresholds for ozone precursors)? 

 

The project provides policies to improve air quality in the City of Watsonville and reduce 

GHG emissions.  The Climate Action Plan will have a positive effect on air quality in the 

City.  The policies in the Climate Action Plan will improve air quality in the City and will 

not violate applicable Federal or State ambient air quality standards.   

 

Localized CO Hotspots 

Local air quality is a major concern along roadways.  Carbon monoxide is a primary 

pollutant, and unlike ozone, is directly emitted from a variety of sources.  For this reason, 

CO concentrations are usually indicative of the local air quality generated by a roadway 

network and are used as an indicator of its impacts upon the local air quality.  

Comparisons of levels with State and Federal CO standards indicate the severity of the 

existing concentrations for receptors in the City. 

 

An impact is considered potentially significant if the project produces emissions levels 

that exceed the State (1- and 8-hour standard of 20.0 ppm and 9.0 ppm) or Federal (1- 

and 8-hour standards of 35.0 and 9.0 ppm, respectively) AAQS.  Because CO is produced 

in greatest quantities from vehicle combustion and does not readily disperse into the 

atmosphere, adherence to AAQS is typically demonstrated through an analysis of 

localized CO concentrations.  Areas of vehicle congestion have the potential to create 

“pockets” of CO called “hot spots.”  These pockets have the potential to exceed the State 

1-hour standard of 20.0 ppm and/or the 8-hour standard to 9.0 ppm.  Note that federal 

levels are based on 1- and 8- hour standards of 35.0 and 9.0 ppm respectively. 

 

To identify CO hotspots, the MBUAPCD criterion recommends performing a CO hotspot 

analysis when a project increases the volume to capacity ratio (also called the intersection 

capacity utilization) by 0.05 (5%) for any intersection with an existing level of service 

(LOS) D or worse.  In addition, CO hotspot modeling is recommended when intersection 

or road segments that operate at LOS D or better would operate at LOS E or F with the 

proposed project’s traffic.  Because traffic congestion is highest at intersections where 

vehicles queue and are subject to reduced speeds, these hot spots are typically produced 

at intersections.  Typically, the level of service (LOS) at an intersection producing a hot 

EXHIBIT A
Page 24 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 10 - 

spot is at D or worse during the peak hour.  The table below shows the Year 2030 CO 

Concentrations, and includes the intersections within the study that required CO hotspot 

modeling. 

 

 
The analysis provides a worst-case scenario. Because the p.m. peak hour results in higher 

intersection capacity utilization (ICU) (i.e., worse LOS) in all cases, the p.m. peak hour 

was used in the modeling process.  Year 2030 projections are modeled using the existing 

lane configurations. 

 

Mitigations: None required 

 

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 

 

Sensitive receptors are located throughout the City.  According to the American Lung 

Association, people with cardiovascular diseases, children and the elderly are most 

vulnerable to the health risks associated with air quality pollution.   

 

It is anticipated that impacts to sensitive receptors would be reduced with the 

implementation of the Climate Action Plan and Carbon Offset Program, and therefore, 

impacts to sensitive receptors are anticipated to be less than significant. 

EXHIBIT A
Page 25 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 11 - 

 

Mitigations: None required  

 

e)   Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people?   

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required. 

 

IV.  Biological Resources 

 

(a)  Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on 

any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or 

regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and 

Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

 

No impact 

 

Mitigations: None required 

 

(b)  Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 

community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California 

Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required. 

 

(c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by 

Section 404 of the Clean Water  Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, 

coastal, etc.)  Through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 

 

There are no wetlands in the vicinity of the proposed project. 

 

Mitigations: None required. 

 

(d)  Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or 

wildlife species  or with established native resident or migratory  wildlife corridors, or 

impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required. 

 

(e)  Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such 

as a tree preservation policy  or ordinance? 

EXHIBIT A
Page 26 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 12 - 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required. 

 

(f)  Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 

Community Conservation  Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat  

conservation plan? 

 

There are no habitat conservation plans for any species on the property. 

 

Mitigations: None required. 

 

V.  Cultural Resources 

(a)  Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as 

defined in §15064.5? 

 

No impacts 

Mitigations: None required. 

(b)  Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource 

pursuant to §15064.5? 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required. 

(c)  Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique 

geologic feature? 

No impacts 

(d)  Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries? 

 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

VI.  Geology and Soils 

(a)  Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk 

of loss, injury, or death involving: 

No Impacts 

Mitigations:  None requires 

EXHIBIT A
Page 27 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 13 - 

Strong seismic ground shaking? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

Landslides? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

(b)  Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

 (c)   Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable 

as a result of the project, and potentially result in on-or off-site landslide, lateral 

spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

 (d)  Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building 

Code (1994),  creating substantial risks to life or property? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

e)  Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative 

waste water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste 

water? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

VII.  Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

EXHIBIT A
Page 28 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 14 - 

(a)  Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a 

significant impact on the environment? 

AMBAG completed the 2005 and 2010 greenhouse gas inventories for the city of 

Watsonville with assistance from ICLEI- Local Governments for Sustainability and 

Pacific Gas and Electric Company.  Both inventories used the approach and methods 

provided by the Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Protocol.  The results of the 

2005 and 2010 greenhouse gas inventories are outlined in the table below. 

 
Source or Activity 2005 Activity 

Data Quantity 
and Unit 

2010 Activity Data 
Quantity and Unit 

2005 
Emissions 
(MTCO2e) 

2010 
Emissions 
(MTCO2e) 

Percentage 
change 

from 2005  
to 2010 

Emissions 

Residential Use of 
Electricity 

55,981,010 kWh 59,947,206  kWh 12,524 12,143 -3% 

Commercial/Industri
al Use of Electricity 

237,467,768 kWh 156,208,492 kWh 63,465 32,836 -48% 

Residential 
Stationary 
Combustion 

4,996,734 therms 5,249,041 therms 26,561 27,759 5% 

Commercial 
Stationary 
Combustion 

3,550,930 therms 3,526,173 therms 18,875 18,710 -1% 

On-road Vehicle 
Travel 

366,270 vehicle 
miles traveled 

daily 

376,835 vehicle 
miles traveled daily 

69,555 66,622 -4% 

Off-road Vehicle 
Emissions 

n/a n/a 13,644 15,024 10% 

Municipal Airport 259,731 gallons 
of fuel dispensed 

255,516 gallons of 
fuel dispensed 

2,263 2,270 0% 

Freight Rail 1,400 gallons of 
diesel 

560 gallons of 
diesel 

142 57 -60% 

Potable Water 
Treatment and 
Distribution

1
 

n/a n/a 900 900 NA 

Wastewater 
Treatment 

176,000 cubic 
feet of collected 
biogas per day; 
60,000 persons 
served by the 

plant 

174,100 cubic feet 
of collected biogas 

/day; 66,000 
persons served by 

the plant 

1,275 4,019 215% 

                                                 
1
 Potable water treatment emissions are estimated based on energy use intensity data provided by city of Watsonville 

Staff; these emissions have not been added to the summed Total because they are already captured in the Electricity 

and Stationary Fuel Combustion Categories above, but are shown for informational purposes only. 

EXHIBIT A
Page 29 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 15 - 

Generation of Solid 
Waste 

46,518 tons 
landfilled,  

148 million cubic 
feet of landfill 
gas collected 

41,373 tons 
landfilled,  

331.15 million 
standard cubic feet 

of landfill gas 
collected 

12,309 8,517 -31% 

Total Community-Wide Emissions: 219,773 187,959 -14% 

Growth in population, housing, and jobs is expected in the city of Watsonville, and 

reduction levels must be set against expected growth by 2020 and 2030, and not the 

current emission levels. The GHG forecast is used to understand future emissions in the 

“business-as-usual” scenario, which assumes no additional action is taken to reduce GHG 

emissions. GHG emissions are forecasted to 2020, 2030, and 2050. 

With the adoption of the Climate Action Plan and Carbon Offset Program, the City will 

reach the goal of reducing GHG emissions levels to 15% below 2005 levels by 2020 and 

25% below 2005 levels by 2030. 

Mitigations:  Follow the Climate Action Plan Policies to reduce the emissions of 

greenhouse gases to designated thresholds. 

(b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of 

reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases? 

The city does not currently have an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the 

purpose of reducing the emissions of GHGs.  Therefore, the proposed Climate Action 

Plan and Carbon Offset Program would not conflict with an adopted plan, policy, or 

regulation pertaining to GHGs. 

Mitigations:  None required. 

VIII.  Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

 (a)  Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine 

transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required. 

(b)  Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably 

foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials 

into the environment? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required. 

EXHIBIT A
Page 30 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 16 - 

(c)  Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 

substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 

No impact 

Mitigations:  None required. 

(d)  Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled 

pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a 

significant hazard to the public or the environment? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:   None required. 

(e)  For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not 

been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the 

project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area? 

No impacts 

Mitigations: None required 

(f)  For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project result in a 

safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required. 

(g)  Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency 

response plan or emergency evacuation plan? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required. 

(h)  Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving 

wildland fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where 

residences are intermixed with wildlands? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required. 

IX.  Hydrology and Water Quality 

(a)  Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements? 

EXHIBIT A
Page 31 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 17 - 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

(b)  Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with 

groundwater recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a 

lowering of the local groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing 

nearby wells would drop to a  level which would not support existing land uses or 

planned uses for which permits have been granted)? 

The Climate Action Plan includes policies and programs to reduce water consumption 

throughout the City, including water conservation in landscaping, native plant 

landscaping programs, and encouragement of a laundry to landscape program.  The 

proposed Climate Action Plan will not cause a depletion in groundwater recharge. 

Mitigations:  None required 

(c)  Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through 

the alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would result in 

substantial erosion or siltation on- or off site? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

(d)  Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through 

the alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or 

amount  of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

 (e)  Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or 

planned storm water drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of 

polluted runoff? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

 (f)  Otherwise substantially degrade water quality? 

 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required. 

(g)  Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a federal Flood 

Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map? 

EXHIBIT A
Page 32 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 18 - 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required. 

(h)  Place within 100-year flood hazard area structures which would impede or redirect 

flood flows? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:   None required 

(i)  Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving 

flooding, including flooding As a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

(j)  Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required. 

X.  Land Use and Planning 

 Would the project:  

 

(a) Physically divide an established community? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

(b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency 

with jurisdiction over the project (including, but not limited to the general plan, 

specific plan, local coastal program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the 

purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required   

 

(c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community 

conservation plan? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required. 

EXHIBIT A
Page 33 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 19 - 

 

XI.  Mineral Resources 

(a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of 

value to the region and the residents of the state? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required. 

 

(b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery 

site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required. 

 

XII.  Noise 

(a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards 

established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards 

of other agencies? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required 

 

(b) Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive ground borne vibration or 

ground borne noise levels? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required. 

 

(c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity 

above levels existing without the project? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required. 

 

(d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the 

project vicinity above levels existing without the project? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required. 

 

EXHIBIT A
Page 34 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 20 - 

(e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has 

not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, 

would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to 

excessive noise levels? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required 

 

(f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project expose 

people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

No impacts 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

XIII. Population and Housing 

(a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by 

proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through 

extension of roads or other infrastructure)? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

(b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating the construction 

of replacement housing elsewhere? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required 

 

(c) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of 

replacement housing elsewhere? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required. 

 

XIV.  Public Services 

(a) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with 

the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or 

physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause 

significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, 

response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services: 

1. Fire Protection? 

2. Police Protection? 

EXHIBIT A
Page 35 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 21 - 

3. Schools? 

4. Parks? 

5. Other public facilities? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required   

 

XVI.  Recreation 

(a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks 

or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the 

facility would occur or be accelerated? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

(b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or 

expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect 

on the environment? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required. 

 

XVII.  Transportation and Traffic 

 

(a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of 

effectiveness for the performance of the circulation system, taking into account all 

modes of transportation including mass transit and non-motorized travel and 

relevant components of the circulation system, including but not limited to 

intersections, streets, highways and freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and 

mass transit? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

(b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including, but not 

limited to level of service standards and travel demand measures, or other 

standards established by the county congestion management agency for 

designated roads or highways? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

EXHIBIT A
Page 36 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 22 - 

 

(c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic 

levels or a change in location that results in substantial safety risks? 

 

No impact 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

(d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g. sharp curves or 

dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g. farm equipment)? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

(e) Result in inadequate emergency access? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

(f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans or programs regarding public transit, 

bicycle or pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the performance or safety 

of such facilities? 

 

No impact 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

(g) Result in inadequate parking capacity? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

XVIII.  Utilities and Service Systems 

(a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water 

Quality Control Board? 

 

 No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required.   

 

(b) Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment 

facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause 

significant environmental effects? 

EXHIBIT A
Page 37 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 23 - 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required.   

 

(c) Require or result in the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or 

expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant 

environmental effects? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

(d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing 

entitlement and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required  

 

(e) Result in determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or 

may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s 

projected demand in addition to the provider’s existing commitments? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

(f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the 

project’s solid waste disposal needs? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations: None required 

 

(g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid 

waste? 

 

No impacts 

 

Mitigations:  None required 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A
Page 38 of 39



M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\11-04-14\Climate Action Plan\environmental\Initial Study Narrative.doc 
 - 24 - 

XVII.  Mandatory Findings of Significance 

 

(a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, 

substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or 

wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a 

plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or 

endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods 

of California history or prehistory? 

 

The Climate Action Plan and Carbon Offset Program include policies to reduce GHG 

emissions in the City of Watsonville by promoting existing programs and identifying 

program opportunities for the future.  The Climate Action Plan and Carbon Offset 

Program will not result in degradation of the environment. 

 

(b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively 

considerable?  (“Cumulatively considerable” means that the incremental effects 

of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past 

projects, and the effects of probable future projects)? 

 

The Climate Action Plan and Carbon Offset Program will have a cumulatively beneficial 

effect on the environment by reducing GHG emissions, promoting alternative energy and 

alternative transportation, and conservation in water use and waste. 

 

(c) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse 

effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

 

The proposed Climate Action Plan and Carbon Offset Program will not cause substantial 

adverse effects either directly or indirectly on humans. 

 

 

 

Sources: 

 

1. City of Watsonville 2005 General Plan, as amended 

 

2. City of Watsonville 2030 Vista General Plan 

 

3. Watsonville Municipal Code 

 

4. 2008 Air Quality Management Plan for the Monterey Bay Region, 

completed by the Monterey Bay Air Pollution Control District, 2008. 

EXHIBIT A
Page 39 of 39



ORDINANCE NO.  Introduction  (CM) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE ADDING  A NEW CHAPTER 51 (CARBON FUND 
PROGRAM) OF TITLE 14 (ZONING) OF THE WATSONVILLE 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO ESTABLISH A CARBON FUND FEE TO ASSIST 
IN ACHIEVING THE CLIMATE RELATED GOALS AS PRIORITIZED IN 
THE CLIMATE ACTION PLAN FOR THE CITY 

WHEREAS, on or about November 4, 2014, the Watsonville Planning 

Commission adopted Resolution No. 23-14 (PC) recommending that the City Council 

adopt the Carbon Fund Ordinance, in accordance with the Findings attached hereto and 

marked as Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Ordinance, held a public hearing 

thereon, and found the request to be consistent with the Findings required for a zoning 

text amendment pursuant to Section 14-12.807 of the Watsonville Municipal Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. ENACTMENT. 

Title 14 (Zoning) is hereby amended by adding a new Chapter 51 (Carbon Fund 

Program) of the Watsonville Municipal Code to read in words and figures as follows: 

Chapter 14-51 Carbon Fund Program 

Sec. 14-51.010 Purpose. 

The purpose of this chapter is to establish and set forth guidelines for a Carbon 

Fund Program. The City of Watsonville has determined that the reduction of 

greenhouse gas emissions resulting from the voluntary installation of renewable energy 

systems in Watsonville, and the establishment of a Carbon Fund Fee will assist in 

achieving the climate related goals as prioritized in the City’s Climate Action Plan. 

Ord No.           (CM)       1
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\011315\WMC 14-51 Carbon Fund.docx
ri 1/7/2015 5:08:09 PM          AJS _____ CJP _____ CDD _______    

CITY COUNCIL 6.1g



Sec. 14-51.020 Definitions. 
 

(a) “California Green Building Standards Code” shall mean the most current 

edition of the California Code of Regulations Title 24 Part 11 and is also referred to as 

CalGreen. 

(b) “California Energy Code” shall mean the most current edition of the 

California Code of Regulations Title 24 Part 6. 

(c) “Average Annual Electricity Demand” shall mean the average number of 

kilowatt-hours consumed by electrically powered systems, equipment, devices, etc. in 

one average year as computed or modeled by a professional involved in the project. 

(d) “Carbon Impact Fee” shall mean a development impact fee assessed on 

all applicable building project types.  The Carbon Impact Fee shall be reimbursed for 

projects that have incorporated voluntary compliance measures by installing on-site 

energy generation to offset the energy demand of the qualifying addition, alteration, or 

new construction. 

(e) “Carbon Fund Program” shall mean the program, adopted by this 

ordinance, whereby carbon impact fees assessed on all applicable development are 

directed to a fund which may only be used to fund qualified projects as prioritized in the 

Climate Action Plan and approved by City Council. 

(f) “Climate Action Plan” shall mean an adopted set of strategies intended to 

guide community efforts for reducing greenhouse gas emissions in the City of 

Watsonville. 

(g) “Compliance Threshold” means the percent of average annual electricity 

demand covered by on-site electricity generation systems.  Compliance thresholds are 

40% and 80%.  Refunds issued for voluntary compliance with the Carbon Fund 

2 
 



Program correspond with the compliance threshold, i.e. achieving the 40% compliance 

threshold means that 50% of the Carbon Impact fee is refunded and achieving the 80% 

compliance threshold means that 100% of the Carbon Impact fee is refunded. 

(h) “Energy Benchmark Disclosure” shall mean the preparation of a disclosure 

report by the developers of non-residential buildings greater than 5,000 square feet 

gross floor area.  Report shall include comparative measurement and disclosure of 

commercial building energy performance for the most recent 12 months of energy 

usage prior to any sale, lease or financing of the entire building as adopted by 

benchmarking and disclosure policies in California (AB 1103).  

(i) “Energy Budget” shall mean the sum of the annual time-dependent 

valuation (TDV) energy consumption for energy use components included in the 

performance compliance approach for the Standard Design Building, as established in 

the Alternative Calculation Method Reference Manual approved by the Energy 

Commission and calculated by Compliance Software certified by the Energy 

Commission, pursuant to 2013 Building Energy Efficiency Standards, California Code of 

Regulations, Title 24, Part 6, or subsequently adopted state energy standards 

(scheduled to be adopted 7/1/14). 

(j) “Energy Efficiency” shall mean the management and conservation of 

energy usage.  

(k) “Energy Use Intensity” shall mean the annual average kilowatt-hour per 

square foot consumed by a building. 

(l) “Greenhouse Gas Emissions” shall mean gasses that trap heat from solar 

radiation in the atmosphere such as Carbon dioxide (CO2), Methane (CH4), Nitrous 

3 
 



oxide (N2O), Hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), Perfluorocarbons (PFCs), and Sulphur 

hexafluoride (SF6), as specified in the Kyoto Protocol. 

(m) “Kilowatt-hour” (kWh) shall mean a measure of electrical energy 

equivalent to a power consumption of 1,000 watts for one (1) hour. 

(n) “On-site Electricity Generation” shall mean a renewable energy device or 

system that converts chemical, mechanical or thermal energy to electrical energy and is 

located on the property where development is taking place. 

(o) “Solar Photovoltaic Energy System” shall mean the arrangement of 

components designed to supply usable electric power for the proposed development as 

sized and installed by a qualified energy professional. 

(p) “Voluntary Compliance” shall mean applicant has elected to comply with 

the voluntary measures contained herein by providing on-site generation to offset 

computed or modeled average increased annual electricity demand. Successful 

voluntary compliance as demonstrated on the compliance worksheet and approved by 

the City will result in the refund of the Carbon Impact Fee multiplied by the refund 

percentage corresponding to each compliance threshold percentage (i.e., 40% 

compliance receives a 50% refund and 80% compliance receives a 100% refund).  

(q) “Refund” shall mean applicants who successfully document and achieve 

voluntary compliance according to the administrative procedures set forth in the Carbon 

Fund Program are entitled to a check in the amount of the Carbon Impact Fee multiplied 

by refund percentage corresponding to each compliance threshold percentage (i.e., 

40% compliance receives a 50% refund and 80% compliance receives a 100% refund). 

 
 
 
 

4 
 



Sec. 14-51.030 Applicable Building Projects. 
 

(a)  The provisions of this chapter shall apply to the following types of building 

projects for which a building permit is required.   

 (1)    New residential and non-residential construction. 

 (2) Multifamily residential and non-residential additions and/or 

alterations. 

 (3)   Single family residential additions over 500 square feet in area. 

(b)     The following building project types are exempted from the provisions of 

this chapter: 

 (1)     Single family residential alterations. 

 (2)    Temporary Buildings (such as construction trailers). 

 (3)   Building area which is not or is not intended to be conditioned 

space. 

(4)   Any requirements of this chapter which would impair the historic 

integrity of any building listed on a local, state, or federal register of historic 

structures, as determined by the Chief Building Official. In making such a 

determination the Chief Building Official may require the submittal of an 

evaluation by an architectural historian or similar expert. 

(c)   All building projects submitted for permit shall meet all applicable 

requirements of the most recently adopted Building Energy Efficiency Standards, 

California Code of Regulations, Title 24, Part 6, or subsequently adopted state energy 

standards. 

 

5 
 



(d)   The Carbon Fund Program is distinct and separate from the Green Building 

program and compliance with one program does not constitute compliance with the 

other. 

Sec. 14-51.040 Carbon Impact Fee. 
 

(a) This chapter establishes a Carbon Impact Fee to be assessed on all 

applicable building project types as defined in section 14-51.030 from the date of 

adoption.  The Carbon Impact Fee shall be directed to a Carbon Fund account, not 

associated with the City’s General Fund, to fund greenhouse gas reducing projects as 

outlined in the City of Watsonville Climate Action Plan.   

(b) Carbon Impact fees are equivalent to a percent of the building permit fee, 

dependent on the building project type:  

(1) 50% of building permit fee for new residential and non-residential 

construction. 

(2) 30% of building permit fee for multifamily residential, and non-

residential additions and alterations. 

(3)  30% of building permit fee for single family residential additions. 

(4)  Single family residential alterations are exempt from the Carbon 

Fund Program and are not subject to payment of the Carbon Fund Fee. 

Sec. 14-51.050 Carbon Fund. 
 

The Carbon Impact fees shall be collected by the Community Development 

Department as part of the building permit process and directed to the Carbon Fund by 

the Director of Finance for use by the City in implementing priority projects that reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions as prioritized in the City of Watsonville Climate Action Plan.   

(a)   Guidelines for the use of the Carbon Fund include: 

6 
 



(1) Projects proposed by Public Works, Planning, and other 

departments are eligible for funds. 

(2) Projects proposed must have a direct or indirect greenhouse gas 

emissions reduction identified. 

(3) Projects proposed should be aligned with the priorities identified in 

the Climate Action Plan. 

(4) Funds cannot be used for staff time. 

(b)   Guidelines for the administration of the Carbon Fund include: 

(1) Funds earned need not be expended every fiscal year. 

(2) Projects shall be proposed at the end of the fiscal year to utilize 

fees collected in previous year. 

(3) Projects shall be approved by collaborative deliberation between 

departments and agreement by department heads. 

(4) Each project must be presented to City Council for approval by City 

Council prior to a commitment of funding from the Carbon Fund. 

(5) City staff may assess the program after the first year to consider if 

an additional incentive (e.g., rebated Carbon Impact fee plus a percent of overall 

development impact and permit fees) is required after the first year of 

implementation of the Carbon Fund Program to motivate clean energy building 

construction. 

Sec. 14-51.060 Compliance. 
 
(a)  Eligible projects subject to the provisions of this chapter will not be issued 

a Building Permit by the Building Department unless one of the following Carbon Fund 

Program options in this section are completed: 

7 
 



(1) Option 1: Pay all development impact fees and permit fees, 

including the Carbon Impact Fee; 

(2) Option 2: Pay all development impact fees and permit fees and 

document voluntary compliance with Section 14-50.70 for Carbon Impact Fee 

refund; 

(b)   The City Council may establish, by resolution or ordinance revision, 

additional incentives for voluntary compliance with the Carbon Fund Program ordinance 

including financial or application processing incentives and/or award or recognition 

programs to encourage higher levels of clean energy building construction. 

Sec. 14-51.070 Voluntary Compliance Submittal Requirement. 
 

(a)     Applicants shall demonstrate voluntary compliance with the Carbon Fund 

Program by completing and submitting the Carbon Fund Program Applicant Worksheet 

provided by the City. 

(b)     New Construction. In order to demonstrate voluntary compliance with this 

Ordinance, qualified applications shall incorporate on-site electricity generation such as 

a solar photovoltaic energy system to achieve 40% or 80% of electricity demand from 

the project, and include the following information: 

(1) Documentation of average annual electricity demand using Title 24 

Part 6 Energy Budget.  

Note:  A detailed solar contractor’s estimate is sufficient 

documentation of average annual electricity demand for Single Family 

residential projects. 

(2) If energy efficiency measures are included in the project exceeding 

Title 24 Part 6 compliance requirements, then the estimated savings from those 

8 
 



measures should be included in the Energy Budget or solar contractor’s estimate 

and deducted from the total project electricity demand. 

(3) Title 24 Part 6 Energy Budget or certified solar contractor detailed 

estimate (latter allowable for Single Family Residential projects only),  

(4) Applicant Worksheet to show Carbon Impact Fee compliance 

threshold and refund level calculations, and  

(5) on-site electricity generation system permit application. 

(c) Additions. In order to demonstrate voluntary compliance with this 

Ordinance, qualified applications shall incorporate on-site electricity generation such as 

a solar photovoltaic energy system to achieve 40% or 80% of electricity demand from 

the project, and include the following information: 

(1) Documentation of average annual electricity demand without 

existing any renewable energy systems using (a) at least one year of utility bills, 

(b) Title 24 Part 6 Energy Budget, or (c) for Non-Residential only, an Energy 

Benchmark Disclosure covering at least one (1) year. 

(2) Calculation of Energy Use Intensity (EUI) for building footprint 

(annual kWh/square foot) based on average annual electricity demand. 

(3) Application of the EUI to new addition, minor/major remodel square 

footage to calculate estimated electricity demand for project. 

(4) Provide on-site electricity generation such as a solar photovoltaic 

energy system to achieve 40%, or 80% of electricity demand.  If energy efficiency 

measures are included in the project, the estimated savings from those 

measures should be included in the Energy Budget and therefore deducted from 

the total project electricity demand. 

9 
 



(d)    Alterations. Multi-family residential and non-residential alterations may be 

eligible for a refund of the Carbon Impact Fee when the alteration proposes the 

installation of solar panels that meet the thresholds outlined in Section 14-51.070(c).   

Sec. 14-51.080 Administrative Procedures. 
 

The procedures for administrative processing for voluntary compliance shall 

follow the provisions of this section, which shall include, but not be limited to the 

following: 

(a)   Project design and planning. 

(1)  Applicant shall follow voluntary compliance submittal requirements 

and prepare documentation. 

(b)   Building Plan check review. 

(1) Applicant shall submit worksheet and voluntary compliance 

documentation with all other permit submittals and applicable fees. 

(2)  Building Department shall review on-site electricity generation 

system application (e.g., solar photovoltaic energy system) for compliance with 

the adopted California Electrical Code’s latest version at time of plan check, and 

shall note revision or acceptance of system design. 

(3)   Building Department shall determine, based on voluntary 

compliance documentation, the estimated amount of reimbursement of Carbon 

Fund Fee, and shall notify the applicant of estimate. 

(4) At any point in this process, applicant may withdraw Carbon Fund 

Program voluntary compliance worksheet with no penalty but will not be eligible 

for Carbon Impact Fee refund. 

(c) Changes during construction. 

10 
 



 

(1) Any changes during construction must be reviewed and approved 

by the process outlined in this section.  

(d) Final building inspection. 

(1) The Building Department shall conduct final inspection of qualified 

project and shall either notify owner/contractor of non-compliance with Carbon 

Fund ordinance or shall approve Carbon Fund Program voluntary compliance 

worksheet. 

(2) If non-compliant, applicant may modify system to comply with plans 

and Carbon Fund Program ordinance and steps in this section.  

(e)   Post-final inspection requirement 

(1)  If and when compliance with Carbon Fund Program is obtained, 

the Building Department shall process a refund to be drawn from Carbon Fund in 

the amount of the Carbon Impact Fee refund multiplied by the compliance 

threshold. 

(f)   Conflict with other laws:  The provisions of this section are intended to be 

in addition to and not in conflict with other laws, regulations and ordinances related to 

building construction and site development.  If any provision of this section conflicts with 

any duly adopted and valid statutes or regulations of the federal government or the 

State of California, the federal or state statutes or regulations shall take precedence.  

Sec. 14-51.090 Annual Program Review. 
 

(a) The City Council shall review this chapter bi-annually to determine the 

necessity of modifications due to program performance or new legislation enacted by 

the State or new standards developed by the California Energy Commission, or other 

11 
 



applicable organizations that may impact the Carbon Fund Program. Community 

Development Department staff shall bi-annually report to the City Manager and City 

Council the number and types of projects built under this chapter that achieve voluntary 

compliance as well as fund size and expenditures. 

(b) During the bi-annual review of the Carbon Fund Program, the report to 

City Council should include recommendation to maintain Carbon Impact Fees as a 

percentage of the building permit fee or adopt an additional incentive to motivate 

voluntary compliance with the Carbon Fund Program through increased percentages of 

project valuation or the addition of increased refund amount through other means. 

(c) If incentives are increased after the first year, sum of approved projects’ 

costs shall not exceed 75% of the previous year’s fund size to ensure adequate 

reserves to reimburse applicants who comply with voluntary ordinance in current year. 

SECTION 2. PUBLICATION. 
 

This ordinance shall be published in the Watsonville Register-Pajaronian and/or 

Santa Cruz Sentinel in compliance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of 

Watsonville. 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

This ordinance shall be in force and take effect thirty (30) days after its final 

adoption. 

****************************** 

12 
 



 
 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL 
 
         
         
        Carbon Offset Fund  
        Hearing Date:  January 13, 2015 
 
ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT FINDINGS (Section 14-12. 708) 
 
1. That the proposed amendment is consistent with the policies embodied in the General 

Plan. 
 

Supportive Evidence 
The proposed Carbon Offset Fund follows the policies in the General Plan as it creates 
a funding stream to implement the policies in the Climate Action Plan to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions and provide for a healthier city.  Goals in the 2005 General 
Plan include, the promotion of City-centered growth, protection of natural resources, 
maintenance and improvement of air quality, protection of water quality, promotion of 
energy conservation, and alternative energy resources in transportation and 
development. 

 
2. That the proposed amendment is compatible to the extent possible with the actual and 

general planned use of the adjacent properties. 
 
Supportive Evidence 
 The proposed Carbon Offset Fund follows the policies of the General Plan as well as 
State regulations to incentivize the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions in the City 
of Watsonville.  The proposed Carbon Offset Fund will not conflict with the General 
Plan designations or the existing or proposed uses of properties within the City of 
Watsonville 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                           
               EXHIBIT “A” 
                           Page 1 of 1 

 

 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\011315\CAP Carbon Fund Findings for Ord Exhibit A.docx\1/7/2015\5:09 PM\SA\ds 



Page 1 of 3

2/18/2015 1:50 PM 

M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2015\02-24-15\Cr 6 Water treatment facilities\REVISED.Chromium 6 

Staff Report 2-9-15 SP-1.docx

City of Watsonville 
Department of Public Works and Utilities 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: February 18, 2015 

TO: Marcela Tavantzis, City Manager Pro Tempore 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Director of Public Works and Utilities 
Beau Kayser, Water Operations Supervisor 

SUBJECT: Contract with Corona Environmental Consulting for 
Preliminary Design of Treatment Systems Necessary to 
Comply with New State-Mandated Chromium 6 Drinking Water 
Regulations 

AGENDA ITEM: February 24, 2015 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing the City Manager Pro 
Tem to execute a contract with Corona Environmental Consulting for preliminary design of 
treatment systems necessary to comply with new State-mandated Chromium 6 drinking water 
regulations in an amount not-to-exceed $526,520 and an appropriation from the Water 
Enterprise Fund for the same amount.  

DISCUSSION: 

Background.  The City operates a water system that serves Watsonville and parts of 
unincorporated areas of Santa Cruz County.  The operations include water production, water 
distribution, and water quality testing.  City staff regularly analyzes the quality of its water 
supply and submit the results to the State Division of Drinking Water (DDW).  The State 
regulates the drinking water standards and ensures compliance with Maximum Contaminant 
Levels (MCLs).  An MCL is the limit on the amount of a particular substance that is allowed 
in drinking water. The City has an excellent track record, and maintains compliance with all 
drinking water standards each year. 

The City draws the majority of its water from the Aromas Red Sands aquifer, where chromium-
6 is a naturally occurring mineral.  The City water supply has always been in compliance with 
the chromium limit. 

New State-Mandated Regulation.  On July 1, 2014, the State reduced the limit for chromium 
in drinking water from 50 parts per billion (ppb) down to 10 ppb.  The Federal level is 100 ppb. 

CITY COUNCIL 8.1a

mindy.esqueda
Approved



 

Page 2 of 3 

 
R. Williams  2/18/2015 1:50:05 PM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2015\02-24-15\Cr 6 Water treatment facilities\REVISED.Chromium 6 Staff Report 2-9-15 SP-
1.docx 

 

Once this new law was enacted, eight of the City’s wells, accounting for nearly 80% of the 
City’s water production, became out of compliance with the new limit of 10 ppb. The average 
level of chromium-6 in all City wells is 8 ppb, and the average level in the wells with chromium-
6 is 13 ppb. Water agencies are expected to come into compliance with this regulation by July 
1, 2015. 
 
An Unfunded Mandate. The Association of California Water Agencies estimates that the 
financial impact of chromium-6 treatment will exceed $4 billion statewide. City staff estimates it 
will cost approximately $20 million to construct treatment systems to comply with the new 
chromium-6 regulation. 
 
During the year before the chromium-6 regulation was adopted by the State, City staff actively 
worked to ensure funding would be provided to pay for compliance with the proposed 
regulation. City staff reached out to several hundred other water service providers, developed 
a coalition of water agencies that went to Sacramento to meet with State drinking water 
officials, and worked closely with local and State legislators to ensure that they understood the 
economic impact of this regulation, and the great need for funding associated with this 
regulation.   
 
City staff advocated for grant funding for economically disadvantaged communities, and has 
worked with legislators to develop proposals that would ensure water agencies have adequate 
time to install chromium-6 treatment facilities. In February 2014, the City Council adopted a 
resolution asking the State to strongly consider the aforementioned economic impacts and 
implementation schedule concerns. 
 
Treatment for Chromium-6.  In order to demonstrate that the City is working towards 
compliance with the new chromium-6 regulation, and to qualify for grant funding opportunities, 
the City must design treatment systems for eight water wells. Chromium-6 treatment is a 
specialized and relatively new field, and required the use of a specialized engineering 
consultant.  
 
In late summer 2014, staff requested Statements of Qualifications from environmental 
engineering firms experienced with water treatment facility design, and received proposals 
from several firms.  In evaluating the proposals, staff learned that Corona Environmental 
Consulting is at the forefront of chromium-6 treatment research, and selected them as the 
most qualified firm.   
 
In fall 2014, staff retained Corona with a minor contract to evaluate the City water supply, 
determine best treatment options, and develop conceptual plans for the purpose of developing 
a budget for implementing the water treatment project.   
 
Consultant Scope of Work.  In order qualify for grant funding, the City must now complete 
preliminary plans and specifications for the chromium treatment systems. The scope of work 
for the proposed contract with Corona would involve additional water analysis, pilot testing to 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 
R. Williams  2/18/2015 1:50:05 PM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2015\02-24-15\Cr 6 Water treatment facilities\REVISED.Chromium 6 Staff Report 2-9-15 SP-
1.docx 

 

prove that the proposed treatment methods work, and preparing preliminary designs and cost 
estimates for each site requiring treatment.   
 
Project Funding. It is estimated that compliance with the Chromium-6 regulation will cost $20 
million. Staff has made initial grant applications for Proposition 50 grant funding and the Clean 
Water State Revolving Loan programs. Most grant and loan programs require projects to be 
“shovel ready,” and the proposed contract would allow the City to be competitive for limited 
grant funding. 
 
Unfortunately, grant funding for water treatment is severely limited, and it is likely that the 
majority of the project costs will need to be paid from water utility revenues.  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
This action is consistent with the strategic plan goal of improving infrastructure. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The contract with Corona would be funded by the Water Enterprise fund, in an amount not-to-
exceed $526,520.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The Council could choose not to approve this contract. However, this would likely lead to the 
State Department of Drinking Water deeming the City as being out of compliance with the new 
chromium-6 regulation on July 1, 2015. Non-compliance penalties are unknown at this time. In 
addition, the City would not be able to qualify for grant funding.    
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
cc: City Attorney 



 

 

City of Watsonville 
Department of Public Works and Utilities 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
 

DATE:  February 10, 2015 
 
TO:   Marcela Tavantzis, City Manager Pro Tempore 
 
FROM: Steve Palmisano, Director of Public Works and Utilities 
 Ezequiel Vega, Administrative Services Director 
 Tom Sharp, Sr. Engineering Associate 
 
SUBJECT: Contract with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for Utility 

Enterprise Cost of Service Analysis and Rate Study 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  February 24, 2015      City Council
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
It is recommended that City Council adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the City 
Manager to execute a contract with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for preparing a cost of 
service analysis and rate study for the City’s water, wastewater and solid waste enterprise 
funds. The contract amount would be for a not-to-exceed amount of $96,560. It would be 
funded equally among each of the three utility funds.  It is also recommended that Council 
approve an appropriation of $32,187 from each of the utility funds.    
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Utilities Overview 
The City of Watsonville operates three independent and self-supporting utility enterprises, 
which are run by the Water, Wastewater, and Solid Waste Divisions.  
 

 The Water Division is responsible for the providing safe, reliable and affordable drinking 
water to 65,000 customers in our community. Staff operates and maintains 12 wells, 
one surface water treatment plant, 6 reservoirs, and 177 miles of water distribution 
lines.   

 

 The Wastewater Division is responsible for providing wastewater treatment services to 
the City and three surrounding Sanitary Districts.   The wastewater is highly treated, to 
either the Secondary level of treatment and discharged to the Monterey Bay National 
Marine Sanctuary, or is treated to the Tertiary level, and is distributed for direct food 

mindy.esqueda
Approved



Page 2 of 4 

 

 

crop irrigation as Recycled Water.  Staff also maintains over 175 miles of sewer and 
storm water lines and 33 sewer and storm water pump stations.   

 

 The Solid Waste Division collects and disposes of the City’s refuse, recycling, and 
green waste. Staff also maintains a City-owned landfill, operates the highly-used public 
drop-off facility at 320 Harvest Drive, and completes over 10,000 miles of street 
sweeping per year.   

 
The City Council adopts utility rates to pay the cost of operating and maintaining each of these 
utilities. These funds also pay for capital projects to replace and modernize the City’s 
infrastructure, including projects such as new water and sewer lines, as well as many types of 
equipment, such as garbage collection vehicles, water meters, and well pumps.   
 
 
Critical Financial Issues 
State-Mandated Chromium-6 Regulation 
On July 1, 2014, the State reduced the limit for chromium in drinking water from 50 parts per 
billion (ppb) down to 10 ppb.  The Federal level is 100 ppb. Once this new law was enacted, 
eight of the City’s wells, accounting for nearly 80% of the City’s water production, will be 
impacted by the new limit of 10 ppb.  
 
The average level of chromium-6 in all City wells is 8 ppb, and the average level in the wells 
with chromium-6 is 13 ppb. Water agencies are expected to come into compliance with this 
regulation by July 1, 2015.   

 The cost to comply with this regulation will be approximately $20 million to 

construct new treatment facilities. In addition, operating these treatment systems 

will cost approximately $750,000 per year. 

 The City must complete a treatment system design in order to apply for grants and low-

interest loans. 

 City utility rates must be high enough to qualify for State loans; currently, we would not 

qualify. 

 The City must show progress to State regulatory agencies to avoid compliance 

penalties. Projects must be under design and moving forward. 

Aging Infrastructure 

The City Council and staff have always been proud of the fact that Watsonville has by far the 
lowest utility rates in the county; our combined rates are about half the cost of most of our 
neighboring jurisdictions. The City has been able to achieve this through very lean staffing 
levels, prudent fiscal management, and by effectively maintaining equipment and facilities so 
that they last as long as possible.   
 
However, there are limits to how far staff can extend the life of facilities and, like many 
communities across the nation, a significant number of facilities are becoming too old to repair 
and will soon need to be replaced.  
 



Page 3 of 4 

 

 

The American Water Works Association recently completed a study that showed that it will 
cost approximately $1.5 trillion to replace the nation’s aging water and sewer pipes. As grant 
funding becomes harder to secure, the City must begin to address the issue of replacing aging 
facilities with local funding. Over half of the City’s wells, reservoirs, water lines, and sewer lines 
are over 50 years old.  
 
It costs $500,000 to $1,000,000 per mile to replace water and sewer lines. Watsonville has 
approximately 350 miles of water and sewer mains. Since current utility rates only generate 
enough funding to replace about two miles of pipeline per year, it would take about 175 years 
to replace all of the City’s water and sewer mains. There is a need to increase the rate of main 
replacement and unfortunately, this will require additional funding.  

 
The City needs to fund approximately $30 million in water and sewer replacement and 

upgrade projects over the next 10 years. Recent rate increases have not been adequate to 

fund many needed capital projects. 

 

When infrastructure reaches the end of its life, the community is burdened with decreased 
utility system reliability, reduced fire protection, and potential damages to businesses and 
homes caused by sewer back-ups and flooding. It is important to note that the cost of 
emergency repairs is always significantly greater than that of planned replacement projects.  
 
Closing the City Landfill 
The City’s landfill is nearing capacity, and will need to be closed in approximately three years. 
Closing the landfill will cost approximately $5 million. Once the City landfill has been 
closed, refuse will need to be hauled to the Monterey Regional Waste Management Agency in 
Marina. The cost to haul the City’s refuse to Marina will increase by approximately 20%. 
 
 
Utility Rate Study 
 
The City has not completed a rate study since 2010.  It is standard practice in the industry to 
complete a financial needs assessment and rate study every five years. 

 
The City passed a rate increases in 2012. However, at that time, the community was in the 
midst of the Great Recession, and experiencing significant financial hardship. The rate 
increases proposed by staff in 2012 were the minimum necessary to keep up with rising 
operational costs and to allow for a very limited number of capital projects. Unfortunately, the 
gap between the revenue generated by the current utility rates and the need for infrastructure 
projects is growing each year. 
 
 
Consultant Selection Process  
Staff solicited statements of qualifications from several financial and engineering firms to 
perform a cost of service analysis and design rates for the City.  The two firms that submitted 
statements were Carollo Engineers, Inc. and Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc.   
 



Page 4 of 4 

 

 

A selection committee comprised of staff from the Finance and Public Works and Utilities 
Departments ranked the proposals on a number of criteria. Raftelis was found to have the 
most relevant experience for working with a municipal utility, and was selected. Staff met with 
Raftelis and solicited a proposal for services.   
 
Scope of Work 
 
The scope of work would include the following components: 
 
Rate Design for Water, Sewer, and Solid Waste Enterprise Funds.  This task would include 
completing a Cost of Service Analysis, which would evaluate the current and projected 
revenues and expenditures in each of the utilities as well as projected capital improvement 
project funding needs for the next five years.  The consultant would then develop the rate 
study, providing a variety of options for setting rates that would address the critical funding 
needs for each of the utilities. 

 
Workshops for Staff and City Council. The consultant would first present a summary of the 
process used to develop draft rate structures, and would provide the City Manager and 
executive management staff an opportunity to review the funding needs of the utilities and the 
options for funding. After incorporating input from executive staff, the consultant would make a 
presentation to the City Council in a workshop-style meeting, and present several options for 
the Council to consider.  
 
Legal Review of Proposed Rate Structure.  The consultant would ensure that the proposed 
rate structure is in compliance with Proposition 218, the key State regulation that guides the 
implementation of rates and fees. 
 
Public Hearing.  After a rate structure is approved by Council, public notification followed by a 
public hearing would be required in order to implement any new utility rates. The consultant 
would provide a presentation on the rates process and answer questions from the Council and 
public at this hearing. 
 
Rate Study Report. The consultant would provide a detailed report to document the rate study 
effort. Documentation is a critical part of the process and provides an important tool for budget 
and capital projects planning purposes. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
The contract amount would be for a not-to-exceed amount of $96,560. It would be funded 
equally among each of the three utility funds. There is no impact to the General Fund. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
City Council may decide not to approve this contract. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
None 
 
cc: City Attorney 



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT 
SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AND CORONA 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, LLC., A LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY, FOR PRELIMINARY DESIGN OF TREATMENT SYSTEMS 
NECESSARY TO COMPLY WITH NEW STATE MANDATED CHROMIUM 6 
DRINKING WATER REGULATIONS, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$560,520; AUTHORIZING A $560,520 BUDGET APPROPRIATION FROM 
WATER ENTERPRISE FUND; AND AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
CITY MANAGER PRO TEMPORE TO EXECUTE SAME 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Agreement for Consultant Services between the City of Watsonville

and Corona Environmental Consulting LLC., a limited liability company, for preliminary 

design of treatment systems necessary to comply with new State mandated Chromium 6 

drinking water regulations, in an amount not to exceed $560,520, a copy of which 

Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, is fair and 

equitable and is hereby ratified and approved. 

2. That the budget appropriation of $560,520 from Water Enterprise Fund is

hereby authorized. 

3. That the City Manager Pro Tempore be and is hereby authorized and directed

to execute such Agreement for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

****************************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Agrmt Corona Environmental Consulting.docx 
ri 2/18/2015 4:41:12 PM AJS ______ MT ______ PWU  ______ 

1 

CITY COUNCIL 8.1e

mindy.esqueda
Approved













































RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT 
SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AND RAFTELIS 
FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS, INC., A CORPORATION, FOR PREPARING 
A COST OF SERVICE ANALYSIS AND RATE STUDY FOR THE CITY’S 
WATER, WASTEWATER, AND SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUNDS, IN 
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $96,560; AUTHORIZING A $96,560 
BUDGET APPROPRIATION: $32,187 FROM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND, 
$32,187 FROM WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE FUND, AND $32,187 FROM 
SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND; AND AUTHORIZING AND 
DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER PRO TEMPORE TO EXECUTE SAME 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Agreement for Consultant Services between the City of Watsonville

and Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., a corporation, for preparing a cost of service 

analysis and rate study for the City’s water, wastewater, and solid waste enterprise funds, 

in an amount not to exceed $96,560 a copy of which Agreement is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference, is fair and equitable and is hereby ratified and 

approved. 

2. That the budget appropriation of $96,560: $32,187 from Water Enterprise

Fund, $32,187 from Wastewater Enterprise Fund, and $32,187 from Solid Waste 

Enterprise Fund is hereby authorized. 

3. That the City Manager Pro Tempore be and is hereby authorized and directed

to execute such Agreement for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

************************************ 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2015\022415\Agrmt Raftelis Rate Study.docx 
ri 2/18/2015 11:10:59 AM  AJS ______ MT ______ PWU  ______ 

1 

CITY COUNCIL 8.1f

mindy.esqueda
Approved













RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS, INC.

















FUND FUND 
NO. NAME 

120 TRUST FUND 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUMMARY OF DISBURSEMENTS 
WARRANT REGISTER DATED 2/24/2015 

130 EMPLOYEE CASH DEDUCTIONS FUND 
150 GENERAL FUND 
170 INVESTMENT FUND 
202 REDEVELOPMENT OBLIG RETIREMENT 
204 HOUSING FUND 
205 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
207 RENTAL REHAB FUND 
221 INCLUSIONARY HOUSING 
246 CIVIC CENTER COMMON AREA 
250 LIBRARY FUND 
260 SPECIAL GRANTS 
265 PEG-CABLE TV FUND 
281 PARKS DEVELOPMENT FUND 
305 GAS TAX 
309 PARKING GARAGE FUND 
710 SEWER SERVICE FUND 
720 WATER OPERATING FUND 
730 AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND 
740 WASTE DISPOSAL FUND 
780 WORKERS COMP/LIABILITY FUND 
785 HEAL TH INSURANCE FUND 
787 HEAL TH INSURANCE FUND-POOL 

AMOUNT 

275.00 
547,344.72 
199,488.60 

425.20 
36,285.19 

533.64 
20,209.98 

2,500.00 
59.00 

19,373.36 
6,881.59 

18,002.90 
210.00 

10,291.00 
9,874.57 
3,788.64 

334,737.85 
146,565.84 
127,134.70 
234,297.28 

49,523.52 
2,303.25 

501,600.51 

TOTAL 2,271, 706.34 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE CLAIMS 
ARE BUDGETED AND APPROPRIATED FOR: 

APPROVED FOR PAYMENT: 

EZEQUIEL R. VEGA 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIRECTOR 

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 2/11/2015 TO 2/24/2015 

PAYROLL INVOICES 

TOTAL OF ALL INVOICES 

MARCELA TAVANTZIS 
INTERIM CITY MANAGER 

1,724,361.62 

547,344.72 

2,271, 706.34 

CITY COUNCIL 10.3a



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304590 

1 304640 

1 304656 

1 304706 

1 304760 

1 304146 

1 304643 

1 304501 

1 304594 

1 304502 

1 304503 

$3450.00 
1400.00 

200.00 
1350.00 

500.00 

$452.32 
452.32 

$79.93 
79.93 

$230.00 
230.00 

$4714.61 
4714. 61 

$500.00 
500.00 

$65.00 
65.00 

$2195.79 
253.00 

1406.00 
536.79 

$14106.00 
14106.00 

$660.12 
64 7. 11 
13. 01 

$6483.43 
93.00 
57.20 
89.80 
62.60 
18.62 

954.49 
731.52 

1577.30 
426.27 
459.10 

63.20 
1411.10 

60.75 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

02/24/15 52393 
720-596-7361-00000 
740-572-7361-00000 
309-521-7361-00000 
150-622-7361-00000 

02/24/15 58089 
150-230-7361-00000 

02/24/15 59449 
720-596-7770-00000 

02/24/15 64494 
150-620-7559-00000 

02/20/15 56602 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/15 00375 
150-110-7232-00104 

02/24/15 58250 
150-691-7770-00158 

02/24/15 00460 
150-450-7361-00000 
150-220-7361-00000 
150-523-7324-00000 

02/24/15 52542 
260-336-7367-03226 

02/24/15 00975 
730-560-7509-00000 
730-560-7509-00000 

0 A-1 JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVIES 

0 ACCOUNTEMPS 
JOB ORDER NUMBER: 00070-109062 

0 ACEVEDO, LORENZO 
REFUND CLOSED ACCOUNT 

0 AFFORDABLE LIBRARY PRODUCTS 
PROC SUPPLIES 

0 AFLAC 
H7935 INSURANCE 

0 AGRI-CULTURE 
TUITION-DUTRA 

0 AGUIRRE, MONIQUE 
REISSUE CK 304005 

0 AIRTEC SERVICE,INC 
MAINTENANCE 
MAINTENANCE 
HEATER REPAIR 

0 APPLIED SURVEY RESEARCH 
PROJECT EVALUATOR AND YOUTH SU 

0 APTOS LANDSCAPE SUPPLY 
POND SUPPLIES 
POND SUPPLIES 

INVOICE # 

02/24/15 00995 
740-575-7327-00000 
150-410-7516-00000 
150-220-7327-00000 
150-620-7327-00000 
150-450-7327-00000 
720-598-7327-00000 
720-597-7327-00000 
740-570-7327-00000 
740-572-7361-00000 
150-523-7327-00000 
150-680-7327-00000 
710-530-7327-00000 
730-560-7516-00000 

0 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES,INC 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

2 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304644 

1 304534 

1 304692 

1 304722 

1 304504 

1 304699 

1 304696 

1 304505 

1 304506 

1 304508 

395.79 
40.89 
41. 80 

$1494.16 
374.01 
506.35 
155.40 
215.79 
242.61 

$1875.00 
468.75 
468.75 
468.75 
468.75 

$1038 .13 
1038 .13 

$144.00 
144.00 

$15965.61 
2769.00 

508.48 
178.90 
190.84 

2121.80 
508.48 

9688.11 

$9.12 
9.12 

$1847.56 
1847.56 

$1460.50 
47.00 

1072. 50 
47.00 

294.00 

$100.79 
54.74 
46.05 

$6626.93 
713. 65 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

720-596-7327-00000 
150-450-7504-00000 
246-321-7327-00000 

02/24/15 58325 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 06120 
150-280-7361-00000 
710-530-7361-00000 
740-570-7361-00000 
720-596-7361-00000 

LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 

0 ARATA EQUIPMENT COMPANY 
PIVOT STOCK 
VALVE/GRIPPER BUSHINGS 
AIR FILTER 
PROX SWITCH ASSY STOCK 
AIR CLEANER ELEMENT 

0 ARRIAGA, JOHN 
FEBRUARY 2015 
FEBRUARY 2015 
FEBRUARY 2015 
FEBRUARY 2015 

INVOICE # 

02/24/15 63149 
150-523-7505-00000 

0 ASBURY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
SUPPLIES 

02/24/15 65412 
730-560-7562-00000 

02/24/15 01164 
720-596-7211-00000 
150-450-7211-00000 
740-570-7211-00000 
150-620-7211-00000 
150-220-7211-00000 
150-680-7211-00000 
710-530-7211-00000 

02/24/15 63800 
150-409-7222-00000 

02/24/15 63649 
150-250-7222-00000 

02/24/15 01215 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-410-7323-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 01245 
150-510-7533-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 01342 
250-935-7857-42043 

0 ASCENT AVIATION GROUP, INC. 
MYFBO FEB 2015 FEES 

0 ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS 
WATACPCOOl 
WATACPCOOl 
WATACPCOOl 
WATACPCOOl 
WATACPCOOl 
WATACPCOOl 
NAT GAS 

0 AT&T 
WHITEPAGE AD 

0 AT&T - at&t CALNET 2 
lOOMB INTERNET LINE 

0 AUTO CARE TOWING 
VEHICLE TOW 
TOWING SERVICE 
FLAT TIRE 
TRUCK TOW 

0 AUTOMOTIVE COLOR 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 
BOOKS 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

3 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304601 

1 304649 

1 304509 

1 304678 

1 304637 

1 304510 

1 304511 

1 304507 

1 304627 

1 304609 

1 304596 

1 304149 

331. 05 
104.64 

2913.53 
88.01 

405.83 
1596.48 

473.74 

$129.58 
129.58 

$80.00 
80.00 

$80.00 
25.00 
55.00 

$8.00 
8.00 

$230.00 
230.00 

$9.06 
9.06 

$160.00 
160.00 

$4287.68 
2902.68 
1385.00 

$3230.00 
3230.00 

$3248.25 
945.00 

2303.25 

$554.26 
420.53 
115.70 

4. 67 
13.36 

$302.00 
302.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
150-626-7542-00000 
250-623-7544-00975 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 

02/24/15 53148 
740-570-7091-00000 

02/24/15 58904 
720-598-7359-00000 

02/24/15 01410 
730-560-7561-00000 
740-572-7559-07831 

02/24/15 61843 
710-541-7315-07021 

02/24/15 57274 
150-410-7361-00000 

02/24/15 01450 
150-680-7541-00000 

02/24/15 01455 
720-597-7324-00000 

02/24/15 01304 
710-530-7324-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 

02/24/15 56005 
730-560-7361-00000 

BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 

0 BANDERAS, ANTONIO 
BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 

0 BANUELOS, RICHARD 
WATER DIST. OP CERT. 

0 BAYSIDE OIL II INC 
ACCT WAAOl HAZ WASTE 
ACCT COWOl 

0 BC LABORATORIES, INC. 
PERMIT 

0 BEST DOORS INC. 
WHEEL ON EXIT GATE 

0 BIG CREEK LUMBER COMPANY 
SUPPLIES 

0 BILL FANNIN FENCING & GATES 
SERVICE CALL 

0 BME INC. 
TUNE UP PARTS 
COGEN EMERGENCY REPAIR 

0 BRANDLEY, REINARD W. 
ENGINEER SERVICES 

INVOICE # 

02/24/15 53989 0 BRENDT D. CARLSON, M.D., INC. 
150-210-7319-00000 
785-290-7319-00000 

02/24/15 52591 
170-231-7302-00000 
250-621-7302-00000 
170-231-7302-00000 
250-621-7302-00000 

02/12/15 01619 
150-410-7325-00000 

MED SERVICE 
MED SERVICE 

0 BRINK'S INCORPORATED 
FEBRUARY 2015 
FEBRUARY 2015 
JANUARY 2015 
JANUARY 2015 

0 BUD'S ELECTRIC SERVICE, INC 
POLICE DEPT FIRING RANGE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

4 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304586 

1 304731 

1 304579 

1 304512 

1 11112469 

1 304660 

1 304513 

1 304634 

1 304757 

1 304714 

1 304578 

1 304738 

1 304622 

$100.00 
100.00 

$ 60713. 18 
97.50 

5968.00 
19659.02 

162.50 
18871. 94 
13667.05 

2287.17 

$54.36 
54.36 

$2864.23 
778.24 

1030.79 
1055.20 

$1687.82 
1687.82 

$6919.20 
175.00 

6744.20 

$575.00 
575.00 

$13139. 00 
7508.00 
5631.00 

$707.08 
707.08 

$250.00 
250.00 

$102.24 
44.92 
57.32 

$750.00 
750.00 

$980.78 
326.41 
538.51 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

02/24/15 51987 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/24/15 65809 
202-367-7303-00000 
780-293-7307-00000 
202-361-7303-03863 
202-367-7303-00000 
780-293-7307-00000 
202-361-7303-03863 
202-361-7303-03863 

02/24/15 50708 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 01665 
150-230-7501-00000 
150-230-7501-00000 
150-230-7501-00000 

02/20/15 62407 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 59751 
710-540-7763-00052 
305-923-7839-42061 

02/24/15 01975 
150-315-7232-00045 

02/24/15 56651 
720-596-7307-00000 
710-540-7361-00421 

02/20/15 51096 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 64969 
740-572-7763-17812 

02/24/15 50641 
150-691-7533-00158 
720-598-7559-00000 

02/24/15 66074 
780-293-7307-00000 

02/24/15 55520 
150-419-7322-00000 
150-691-7342-00166 

0 BUENO, MARIA 
WASHER REBATE 

0 BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSEN, LLP 
LEGAL SERVICES BETWEEN THE CIT 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF 
LEGAL SERVICES BETWEEN THE CIT 
LEGAL SERVICES BETWEEN THE CIT 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF 
LEGAL SERVICES BETWEEN THE CIT 
LEGAL SERVICES 

0 BURTON'S FIRE APPARATUS, INC. 
PARTS 

0 BUSINESS FORMS UNLIMITED 
DIRECT DEPOSIT STOCK 
AP WARRANTS 
SUPPLIES 

0 CA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT 
PAYROLL FOR - 022015 

0 CAL-WEST LIGHTING & SIGNAL MAINTENANCE INC. 
PEACE&UNITY BANNER REMOVAL 
TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE 

0 CALIFORNIA BUILDING OFFICIALS-CALBO 
REG R HICKS MARCH 2-6, 2015 

0 CALIFORNIA CONSERVATION CORPS 
CCC CONTRACT#l5-6607-457R/PROJ 
CCC CONTRACT #15-6607-458R 

62252 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT 
FL1100479 B. MARTIN DEL CAMPO 

0 CASAS, MS. SELENE MUNOZ 
RECYCL COORDINATOR 

0 CASSIDY'S PIZZA 
YOUTH CENTER POT LUCK DINNER 
STAFF LUNCH 

0 CAZDEN, RUTH F. 
CONTRACT INSURANCE REQ 

0 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC 
RICOH PRINTER 
INK 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

5 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304697 

1 304670 

1 304702 

1 304514 

1 304758 

1 304727 

1 304151 

1 304708 

1 304718 

1 304745 

1 304515 

1 304711 

1 304737 

1 304605 

94.07 
21. 7 9 

$2500.00 
2500.00 

$130. 39 
130. 39 

$41000. 00 
41000. 00 

$328.92 
328.92 

$121.60 
121. 60 

$250.00 
250.00 

$8109.91 
8109.91 

$160.65 
160.65 

$6000.00 
1000.00 
1000.00 
1000.00 
1000.00 
1000.00 
1000.00 

$335.10 
335.10 

$43.95 
43.95 

$693.22 
693.22 

$1802.00 
1802.00 

$210.00 
210.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

150-220-7324-00000 
720-596-7501-00000 

02/24/15 63681 
207-387-7351-00000 

02/24/15 60800 
730-560-7361-00000 

02/24/15 64168 
720-913-7805-52105 

02/24/15 02492 
150-410-7561-00000 

02/20/15 55274 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 65694 
740-572-7763-17812 

02/17/15 02771 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 64534 
150-160-7357-00000 

02/24/15 65193 
150-450-7361-00000 
150-450-7361-00000 
150-450-7361-00000 
150-450-7361-00000 
150-450-7361-00000 
150-450-7361-00000 

02/20/15 02861 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 02866 
150-680-7533-00000 

02/24/15 64666 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 66056 
710-540-7361-00129 

02/24/15 53771 
265-393-7361-00000 

SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 CENTRAL COAST MARKETING TEAM 
MEMBERSHIP DUES 14/15 

0 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 
MONTHLY INTERNET/TV 

0 CHEVROLET OF WATSONVILLE 
2015 CHEVROLET 2500HD WORK TRU 

0 CHEVRON & TEXACO CARD SERVICES 
FUEL 

0 CINCINNATI LIFE INSURANCE CO 
PAYROLL FOR - 022015 

0 CLOUD, CAROL 
RECY COORDINATOR 

0 COAST COUNTIES TRUCK & EQUIP 
PARTS ORDER NO. 156770 

0 CODE PUBLISHING 
MUNI CODE SUPPLEMENT 

0 COLEY HEATH, ANITA 
BACKGROUND 
BACKGROUND 
BACKGROUND 
BACKGROUND 
BACKGROUND 
BACKGROUND 

0 COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INS 
PAYROLL FOR - 022015 

0 COMMERCIAL LANDSCAPE SUPPLY INC. 
CUPS EZ REACHERS 

0 COMMERCIAL TRUCK COMPANY 
PART 

0 COMMUNITY SCIENCE WORKSHOP NETWORK 
SERVICES 

0 COMMUNITY TELEVISION OF SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 
PROGRAM BROADCAST 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

6 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304646 

1 304625 

1 304719 

1 304599 

1 304516 

1 304532 

1 304746 

1 304651 

1 304704 

1 304763 

1 304617 

1 304690 

1 304 716 

1 304517 

$3300.00 
950.00 

2350.00 

$220.23 
220.23 

$19001. 59 
19001. 59 

$275.00 
275.00 

$17606.27 
17606.27 

$128.00 
128.00 

$1631.09 
575.42 
555.73 
50.00 

449.94 

$375.00 
75.00 
75.00 
75.00 
75.00 
75.00 

$175.00 
175.00 

$805.83 
805.83 

$1711.18 
1711.18 

$549.10 
549.10 

$181. 50 
181.50 

$828.76 
86.80 

211. 58 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

02/24/15 58589 
150-680-7361-00000 
150-680-7361-00000 

02/24/15 55809 
710-911-7813-42082 

02/24/15 65296 
720-598-7537-42067 

02/24/15 53061 
120-279-5895-00159 

02/24/15 03019 
740-572-7559-07831 

02/24/15 05864 
150-419-7361-00000 

02/20/15 03017 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 59083 
150-419-7559-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-419-7559-00000 

02/24/15 64427 
710-530-7559-00000 

0 COMMUNITY TREE SERVICE, INC. 
TREE SERVICE 
TREE REMOVAL 

0 CONTROLTECH 
SALES TAX INV 11055 

0 CORIX WATER PRODUCTS, INC. 
REPAIR PARTS 

0 CORTEZ, RACHEL 
REFUND 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
JUGS/CAPS 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
NETWORK ACCESS JAN2015 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
S. CARRILLO 
J. OLVERA 
C. SANCHEZ 
R. TELLEZ 

0 CRIME SCENE CLEANERS INC 
MEDICAL WASTE DISPOSAL 
CLEAN VEHICLE 
VEHICLE CLEANING 
VEHICLE CLEANING 
MEDICAL WASTE DISPOSAL 

0 CRIPPEN, CRISTEL 
PLANT MAINT JAN 2015 

INVOICE # 

02/20/15 65812 
130-000-2050-00000 

0 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORITY 
PAYROLL FOR - 022015 

02/24/15 55158 
150-315-7309-00000 

02/24/15 63028 
720-600-7501-00000 

02/24/15 64974 
150-410-7323-00000 

02/24/15 03118 
740-572-7361-00000 
710-530-7559-00000 

0 CSG CONSULTANTS, INC. 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 EXTEND TERM 

0 CUBE SOLUTIONS, INC. 
WORKSTATION 

0 CUZICK, MATT 
PD MOTORCYCLE REPAIR 

0 D&G SANITATION 
PORT TOILET RENTAL 
HANDICAP UNIT 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

7 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 PAGE 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304518 

1 304519 

1 304520 

1 304147 

1 304709 

1 304700 

1 304747 

1 304521 

1 304645 

1 304581 

1 304728 

1 304522 

1 304639 

1 304607 

1 304148 

1 304635 

162.75 
367.63 

$290.21 
290.21 

$182.59 
182.59 

$384.00 
384.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$83.64 
83.64 

$350.00 
350.00 

$286.15 
286.15 

$6890.00 
6890.00 

$880.00 
880.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$3820.00 
3820.00 

$6254.70 
6254.70 

$250.00 
250.00 

$6.00 
6.00 

$20209.98 
20209.98 

$33.39 
33.39 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

720-598-7559-00000 
150-685-7361-00000 

02/24/15 03293 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 03355 
150-620-7559-00000 

02/24/15 03422 
150-210-7361-00000 

02/12/15 50200 
150-680-7351-00000 

02/24/15 64625 
740-570-7369-00000 

02/24/15 63843 
720-597-7324-00000 

02/20/15 03017 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 03521 
740-912-7855-52147 

02/24/15 58503 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 50974 
720-596-7771-00000 

02/24/15 65730 
260-339-7361-03310 

02/24/15 03601 
710-530-7361-00000 

02/24/15 58047 
740-572-7763-17812 

02/24/15 53850 
150-620-7357-00000 

02/12/15 03913 
205-385-73~7-01502 

02/24/15 56913 
150-523-7505-00000 

PORT TOILET RENTAL 
CITY PLAZA EXTRA SERVICE 

0 DELTA GLASS OUTSTANDING 
WINDOW TINT PD VEH 

0 DEMCO INC OUTSTANDING 
LIB PROC SUPPLIES 

0 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE OUTSTANDING 
DOJ FINGERPRINTS 

0 DEPARTMENT OF PESTICIDE REGULATION OUTSTANDING 
QAC CERT EXAM FEE J ROCHA. 

0 DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCES RECYCLING & RECOVERY OUTSTANDING 
EA SERVICES 

0 DEVICES FOR LIFE OUTSTANDING 
BATTERY MSC 

55719 DEVIN DERHAM-BURK OUTSTANDING 
E. SANTANA 

0 DIAMOND D COMPANY OUTSTANDING 
CHANGE ORDER TO ADD: $6,890.00 

0 DIAMOND VIEW AUTO GLASS OUTSTANDING 
REPLACEMENTS 

0 DICKEL, JETTZEN OUTSTANDING 
LOW FLOW TOILET 

0 DNV GL ENERGY SERVICES USA, INC. OUTSTANDING 
RESOLUTION NO. 32-13(CM) 

0 DON CHAPIN CO, INC OUTSTANDING 
PROJECT: ST-14-04QB 

0 E.A. HALL MIDDLE SCHOOL OUTSTANDING 
RECY CLUB GRANT 

0 EBSCO INFORMATION SERVICES OUTSTANDING 
MAG RENEWAL 

0 EL PAJARO COMMUNITY DEV CORP OUTSTANDING 
RESO NO. 49-14(CM) 

0 ELECTRO SPECIALTIES OUTSTANDING 
PARTS 

8 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304479 

1 304615 

1 304597 

1 304523 

1 304524 

1 304525 

1 304526 

1 304685 

1 304480 

1 304729 

1 304584 

$477963.62 
477963.62 

$100.00 
100.00 

$558.35 
21. 81 
18.12 

2.83 
19.18 
35.22 
36.57 

2.44 
399.93 

22.25 

$9.42 
3. 79 
5.63 

$2124.39 
208.18 

1916.21 

$427.81 
105.00 
322.81 

$1288.24 
97 .12 

362.39 
194.34 
493.87 
140.52 

$1050.00 
1050.00 

$2000.00 
500.00 
500.00 
500.00 
500.00 

$250.00 
250.00 

$329.12 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

02/18/15 65748 0 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT SPECIALISTS, INC. 
787-299-7319-00000 

02/24/15 54954 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/24/15 52833 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
720-597-7559-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 04170 
710-541-7212-00000 
710-541-7212-00000 

02/24/15 04186 
720-596-7559-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 

02/24/15 04282 
720-597-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 

02/24/15 04302 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 

02/24/15 62808 
710-540-7361-00422 

02/18/15 66329 
150-280-7361-00423 
720-596-7361-00000 
710-530-7361-00000 
740-570-7361-00000 

02/24/15 65746 
740-572-7763-17812 

02/24/15 51618 

EMPLOYEE HEALTH BENEFITS 

0 FABILA, LUIS & ALVAREZ, MIRELLA 
WASHER REBATE 

0 FASTENAL COMPANY 
DRILL BIT 
PARTS 
PARTS 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
PARTS 
PARTS 
PARTS 
PARTS 

0 FEDEX 
FRT 
FRT 

0 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC. 
VLV REPAIR KIT 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 

0 FIRST ALARM, INC. 
ACT 1719 320 HARVEST SVC CALL 
ALARM SERVICE 

0 FISHER SCIENTIFIC 
SUPPLIES 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 FLEMING, JOSEPHINE 
GBP CONSULTING 

0 FORD AND BONILLA 
DEV CITY MESSAGES 
DEV CITY MESSAGES 
DEV CITY MESSAGES 
DEV CITY MESSAGES 

0 FREEDOM ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
RECY CLUB 

0 FREEDOM MEAT LOCKERS 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

9 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304598 

1 304527 

1 304744 

1 304675 

1 304655 

1 304650 

1 304672 

1 304724 

1 304571 

1 304141 

1 304528 

1 304529 

249.67 
79.45 

$130. 50 
43.50 
87.00 

$53.12 
53.12 

$6630.00 
6630.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$8721. 78 
8721. 78 

$17654.96 
128.30 

17526.66 

$868.81 
868.81 

$1329.26 
392.80 
233.63 
702.83 

$119840. 41 
119840. 41 

$17930.31 
1172.71 

443.19 
7403.01 
572.61 

3519.59 
585.91 
735.00 
367.92 

3130.37 

$768.05 
44.71 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

710-530-7359-00000 
720-597-7359-00000 

02/24/15 52852 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 04707 
250-935-7857-42043 

02/24/15 66362 
710-530-7303-00031 

02/24/15 61725 
720-596-7771-00000 

02/24/15 59314 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/24/15 58929 
740-572-7361-00023 

STAFF MTG LUNCH 
STAFF MTG LUNCH 

0 FREEDOM TUNE-UP 
FLEET SMOG 
SMOG SERVICE 

0 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 
BOOKS 

0 GALLAGHER LAW GROUP 
HEIM V COW-MEDIATION 

0 GARCIA, ESTEBAN 
LOW FLOW TOILET 

0 GARRISON, DELLA 
WASHER REBATE 

0 GIBSON RESOURCE GROUP, INC. 
GREEN WASTE REMOVAL 

INVOICE # 

02/24/15 61030 0 GOLDEN STATE FLOW MEASUREMENT INC. 
720-597-7559-00000 
720-597-7559-00000 

02/24/15 65597 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 11442 
710-530-7324-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 

02/11/15 53060 
730-910-7837-42121 

02/24/15 05030 
720-598-7537-42067 
720-598-7537-42067 
720-598-7537-00000 
720-598-7537-42067 
720-598-7537-42067 
720-598-7537-42067 
720-598-7559-00000 
720-598-7537-42067 
305-923-7835-02191 

02/24/15 05077 
740-575-7559-00000 

GEL CAPS 
UPGRADES 

0 GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER COMPANY 
TIRES 

0 GRAINGER 
DRIVER GLOVES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 GRANITE ROCK COMPANY 
RESOLUTION NO. 124-13(CM) 

0 GRANITE ROCK COMPANY 
STATEMENT 12/31/14 
ACCT 84732 
STATEMENT 12/31/14 
STATEMENT 12/31/14 
STATEMENT 12/31/14 
STATEMENT 12/31/14 
STATEMENT 12/31/14 
STATEMENT 12/31/14 
RESOLUTION NO. 54-14(CM) 

0 GREEN RUBBER-KENNEDY AG 
SUPPLIES 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

10 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304618 

1 304717 

1 304530 

1 304589 

1 304602 

1 304659 

1 304743 

1 304142 

1 304145 

53.97 
88.80 

280.41 
262.43 

37.73 

$2872 .15 
2872.15 

$196.97 
28.16 
44.81 

124.00 

$16241. 63 
4255.67 

290.94 
533.64 
34.00 
85.00 

187.00 
51. 58 

915.80 
153.00 
561.00 

9157.00 
17.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$37.00 
37.00 

$41762.92 
41762.92 

$35608.81 
438.81 

14300.00 
20870.00 

$431.33 
24.76 

406.57 

$100.80 
16.80 
84.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

710-540-7559-00421 
150-523-7505-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 
740-572-7559-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 

02/24/15 55194 
150-620-7559-00000 

02/24/15 65001 
710-540-7559-00421 
150-691-7533-00166 
150-691-7533-00166 

SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 GRESSCO LTD 
PROC SUPPLIES 

0 GROCERY OUTLET 
NATURE CTR SPLS 
CONTIGO PRGM SPLS 
CONTIGO PRGM SPLS 

INVOICE # 

02/24/15 05137 
150-130-7303-00000 
730-560-7303-00000 
204-368-7303-00000 
710-540-7307-00000 
780-293-7303-00000 
720-596-7303-00000 
202-367-7303-00000 
150-130-7303-00000 
710-530-7303-00031 
780-294-7303-00037 
780-293-7303-00053 
730-560-7303-00000 

0 GRUNSKY EBEY FARRAR & HOWELL, INC 
LEGAL SERV TO 12/31/14 

02/24/15 52315 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/24/15 53259 
150-692-7770-00162 

02/24/15 59740 
150-250-7322-00000 

02/24/15 66328 
740-570-7559-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 

02/11/15 51675 
740-570-7559-00024 
150-220-7324-00000 

02/11/15 66073 
150-691-7343-00159 
150-691-7343-00166 

LEGAL SERV TO 12/31/14 
LEGAL SERV TO 12/31/14 
LEGAL SERV TO 12/31/14 
LEGAL SERV TO 12/31/14 
LEGAL SERV TO 12/31/14 
LEGAL SERVICES 
LEGAL SERV TO 12/31/14 
LEGAL SERV TO 12/31/14 
LEGAL SERV TO 12/31/14 
LEGAL SERV TO 12/31/14 
LEGAL SERV TO 12/31/14 

0 GUTIERREZ, PEDRO 
WASHER REBATE 

0 GUZMAN, NUVIA 
CLASS CANCELLED 

0 HARRIS COMPUTER SYSTEMS 
GEMS SUPPORT 

0 HEDSTROM ENVIRONMENTAL 
QUOTE DATED 10/23/2014 
QUOTE DATED 10/23/2014 
QUOTE DATED 10/23/2014 

0 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 HORIBE, ERIC 
ZUMBA STRENGTH AND EXTREMO 
ZUMBA STRENGTH AND EXTREMO 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

11 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304734 

1 304749 

1 304750 

1 304531 

1 304619 

1 304701 

1 304694 

1 304533 

1 304725 

1 304721 

1 304633 

1 304671 

1 304715 

1 304613 

1 304535 

$250.00 
250.00 

$3585.84 
3585.84 

$3540.01 
3540.01 

$661.00 
297.60 
363.40 

$190.49 
190.49 

$264.25 
2 64. 25 

$272.49 
272.49 

$1707.15 
1707.15 

$26.10 
26.10 

$250.00 
250.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$775.00 
97.00 
97.00 

581.00 

$250.00 
250.00 

$1376.00 
641.00 
735.00 

$385.77 
88.23 

297.54 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

02/24/15 66024 
740-572-7763-17812 

02/20/15 05813 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/20/15 05813 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 05818 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 

02/24/15 55321 
150-250-7501-00000 

02/24/15 64123 
150-280-7357-00000 

0 HOWARD, GAYLE 
RECYCL COORDINATOR 

0 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 
303800 

0 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 
303884 PTS 

0 IDEXX LABORATORIES INC. 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 IMAGE SALES INC. 
INK-ID BADGES 

0 INFOSEND, INC. 
DEC 14, JAN 2015 

INVOICE # 

02/24/15 63231 
150-450-7322-00000 

0 INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER 
INV 1905501009993 

02/24/15 06009 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 65660 
150-620-7501-00000 

02/24/15 65410 
740-572-7763-17812 

02/24/15 56559 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/24/15 60829 
720-596-7361-00000 
710-531-7361-00000 
720-597-7361-00000 

02/24/15 64970 
740-572-7763-17812 

02/24/15 54438 
246-321-7361-00000 
309-525-7361-00000 

02/24/15 06337 
710-530-7324-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 

0 INTERSTATE BATTERY CO 
STATEMENT 2/3/15 

0 J.P. COOKE CO. 
PRE-INK STAMP 

0 JEFFRIES, JANET 
RECYCL COORDINATOR 

0 JENSEN, LINDA 
WASHER REBATE 

0 JERRY ALLISON LANDSCAPING INC. 
HOLM RD, MSC, CLIFFRD/MONT 
HOLM RD, MSC, CLIFFRD/MONT 
HOLM RD, MSC, CLIFFRD/MONT 

0 JOHNSTON, DANIEL 
RECY COORDINATOR 

0 K & D LANDSCAPING INC. 
LANDSCAPE SERVICES 
LANDSCAPE SERVICES 

0 K LIFT SERVICE COMPANY, INC 
FORKLIFT SERVICE 
FORKLIFT SERVICE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

12 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304591 

1 304536 

1 304720 

1 304652 

1 304683 

1 304628 

1 304537 

1 304705 

1 304664 

1 304595 

1 304616 

1 304726 

1 304592 

1 304538 

1 304674 

$127.18 
127.18 

$24396.82 
20093.83 

2215.58 
2087.41 

$848.18 
848.18 

$77.49 
38.15 
39.34 

$300.00 
300.00 

$800.00 
800.00 

$85.00 
85.00 

$1800.00 
1800.00 

$545.00 
545.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$1240.44 
84.09 

857.96 
59.68 

179.03 
59.68 

$100.00 
100.00 

$51.00 
51. 00 

$100.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

02/24/15 52417 0 KELLY-MOORE PAINT COMPANY, INC. 
730-560-7326-00000 

02/24/15 06467 
710-534-7361-00000 
710-541-7315-07021 
710-541-7315-07026 

02/24/15 65309 
150-450-7351-00000 

02/24/15 59233 
150-523-7232-00000 
740-570-7232-00000 

02/24/15 62638 
150-680-7361-00000 

02/24/15 56099 
150-620-7322-00000 

02/24/15 06760 
150-680-7533-00000 

02/24/15 64431 
150-230-7307-00000 

02/24/15 60320 
150-692-7770-00163 

02/24/15 52566 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/24/15 55072 
720-596-7771-00000 

02/24/15 65685 
150-690-7501-00000 
150-230-7559-00000 
740-570-7357-00000 
150-315-7357-00000 
710-540-7357-00000 

02/24/15 52426 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/24/15 06933 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 61621 

SUPPLIES 

0 KINNETIC LABORATORIES, INC 
RESOLUTION NO. 187-09(CM)YEAR 
SAN LORENZO RIVER MONITORING 
PAJARO RIVER AND WWTP INFLUENT 

0 KRONOS 
SUPPORT SERVICES 

0 LA ROSA MARKET & BAKERY 
JAN15 SAFETY MEETING 
JAN15 SAFETY MEETING 

0 LA SELVA 
PINE TREE REMOVAL 

0 LIBRARY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
AUTH UPDATE 

0 LINCOLN STREET RADIATOR 
REPAIRS 

0 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONSULTANTS, LLC 
2ND PMT-CONTRACT 

0 LOPEZ, BENITO 
SEASON CANCELLED 

0 LORENTE, NORVE 
WASHER REBATE 

0 LUKRICH, JOHN 
LOW FLOW TOILET 

0 MALDONADO, JUAN 
NAME PLATES 
ENVELOPES 
BUSINESS CARDS 
BUSINESS CARDS 
BUSINESS CARDS 

0 MANCHA, ROSEMARY 
WASHER REBATE 

0 MARINOS AUTOMOTIVE MACHINE SHOP, INC. 
REPAIR 

0 MARTINEZ, RUBEN 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

13 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304539 

1 304691 

1 304614 

1 304540 

1 304541 

1 304152 

1 304542 

1 304710 

1 304543 

100.00 

$42.99 
42.99 

$197.24 
45.00 

152.24 

$175.00 
175.00 

$799.36 
799.36 

$1976.54 
1580.03 

382.50 
14. 01 

$1430.95 
1430.95 

$4094.33 
28.07 

225.63 
444.00 
370.79 
107.69 

66.49 
137.43 
489.75 

72. 99 
5 63. 7 0 
419.53 
487.19 
271. 80 
409.27 

$855.00 
855.00 

$2151.00 
320.00 
320.00 
394.00 
398.00 
237.00 
241.00 
241.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

720-596-7771-00000 LOW FLOW TOILET 

INVOICE # 

02/24/15 07010 
250-935-7857-42043 

0 MATTHEW BENDER & COMPANY, INC 
REF BOOKS 

02/24/15 63069 
740-570-7232-00000 
740-570-7232-00000 

02/24/15 54830 
710-530-7091-00000 

02/24/15 07063 
710-530-7324-00000 

02/24/15 07130 
720-596-7324-00000 
720-596-7324-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 

02/18/15 65885 
787-299-7320-00000 

02/24/15 07170 
150-691-7342-00166 
720-596-7559-00000 
246-321-7324-00000 
150-220-7324-00000 
309-521-7324-00000 
720-596-7324-00000 
740-572-7559-00023 
150-620-7504-00000 
150-680-7504-00000 
150-450-7504-00000 
730-560-7504-00000 
710-530-7559-00000 
720-596-7324-00000 
150-410-7559-00000 

02/24/15 64626 
150-523-7307-00000 

02/24/15 07367 
150-220-7361-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 
150-523-7562-00000 
150-220-7361-00000 
710-531-7361-00000 
150-220-7361-00000 
720-598-7361-00000 

0 MCCLOUD, JACQUELINE 
CWEA ANNUAL AWARDS BANQUET 
LAB SPLS WOMENS WADERS 

0 MCGRATH, GENE 
BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 

0 MCMASTER CARR 
PRESSURE WASHER 

0 MERCURY METALS, INC 
FLEX EXHAUST 
MODIFY FLEX EXHAUST 
PARTS 

0 MES VISION 
CLAIM JAN 31 2015 

0 MID VALLEY SUPPLY 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 
STATEMENT 1/30/15 

0 MIDSTATE AUTOMOTIVE EQUIPMENT 
LIFT INSPECTION 

0 MONTEREY BAY UNIFIED AIR 
PERMIT FEES 
PERMIT FEES 
PERMIT FEES 
PERMIT FEES 
PERMIT FEES 
PERMIT FEES 
PERMIT FEES 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

14 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 ,RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304544 

1 304603 

1 304576 

1 304545 

1 304742 

1 304546 

1 304739 

1 304606 

1 304 723 

1 304632 

1 304593 

1 304748 

1 304150 

1 304682 

$490.68 
45.37 

274.93 
6.82 

135.25 
28.31 

$26540.69 
21367.16 

3391.86 
1122. 82 

658.85 

$184.54 
184.54 

$1000. 00 
1000.00 

$387.00 
387.00 

$119 .11 
119 .11 

$2000.00 
2000.00 

$62.60 
62.60 

$175.55 
175.55 

$117.50 
117.50 

$59.00 
59.00 

$20300.19 
20300.19 

$115000.00 
80500.00 
34500.00 

$244.39 
40.73 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

02/24/15 07400 
730-560-7326-00000 
730-560-7326-00000 
730-560-7326-00000 
730-560-7326-00000 
730-560-7326-00000 

02/24/15 53542 
150-523-7562-00000 
740-575-7561-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 
740-572-7324-00000 

02/24/15 50159 
150-690-7361-00000 

02/24/15 07480 
150-230-7307-00000 

02/24/15 66208 
740-572-7361-00023 

02/24/15 07510 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 66119 
150-409-7307-00000 

02/24/15 53788 
720-596-7770-00000 

02/24/15 65569 
150-692-7510-00163 

02/24/15 56459 
250-935-7857-42043 

02/24/15 52473 
221-347-7351-00000 

02/20/15 05078 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/12/15 66363 
710-530-7361-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 

02/24/15 62579 
150-230-7212-00000 

0 MONUMENT LUMBER COMPANY 
ACCT W6060 
ACCT W6060 
ACCT W6060 
ACCT W6060 
ACCT W6060 

0 MORENO PETROLEUM COMPANY 
FUEL AND OIL 
FUEL AND OIL 
FUEL AND OIL 
FUEL AND OIL 

0 MORENO ROOFING COMPANY 
ROOF LEAKS RAMSAY PARK 

0 MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM LLP 
2014 AUDIT 

0 MULLEN & TOLAND SYSTEMS, INC. 
APPLIA PROCESSING 

0 MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT 
AIR FILTER 

0 MUNICIPAL RESOURCE GROUP, LLC 
POLICE OFFICER BACKGROUND 

0 MURPHY, LAURIE GLANTZ 
REFUND CLOSED ACCOUNT 

0 MYALL, GUERIN 
DEPOSIT 

0 NATIONAL CHAVEZ CENTER 
DVDS 

0 NATIONAL NOTARY ASSOCIATION 
MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL VENTURA J 

0 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS 
PAYROLL FOR - 022015 

0 NAVARRO FARMS 
SETTLEMENT 
SETTLEMENT 

0 NEOPOST, INC. 
MAIL MACHINE MAINT 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

15 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304712 

1 304636 

1 304611 

1 304630 

1 304679 

1 304654 

1 304693 

1 304547 

1 304548 

1 304549 

1 304550 

1 304551 

40.73 
40.74 
40.73 
40.73 
40.73 

$306.00 
306.00 

$119.99 
119. 99 

$100.00 
100.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$453.92 
188.63 
265.29 

$100.00 
100.00 

$241.51 
241.51 

$65.00 
65.00 

$18246.56 
18246.56 

$12223.81 
713. 90 

2346.87 
6956.36 

48.87 
22.98 

538.88 
1027.17 

568.78 

$638.13 
638.13 

$1105.29 
1105.29 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

710-530-7212-00000 
720-596-7212-00000 
730-560-7212-00000 
740-570-7212-00000 
150-620-7212-00000 

02/24/15 64776 
150-692-7510-00163 

02/24/15 57105 
710-541-7506-00000 

02/24/15 54270 
720-596-7771-00000 

02/24/15 56262 
720-596-7772-00000 

MAIL MACHINE MAINT 
MAIL MACHINE MAINT 
MAIL MACHINE MAINT 
MAIL MACHINE MAINT 
MAIL MACHINE MAINT 

0 NOR CAL ASA 
UMPIRE CERT 2015 

0 NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 
BOD RACKS 

0 NUNEZ, RODOLFO ZAVALA 
LOW FLOW TOILET 

0 OSORIO, JOHN T. 
WASHER REBATE 

INVOICE # 

02/24/15 62007 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

0 OSUNA AUTO ELECTRIC & SMALL ENGINE REPAIR 
SYSTEM TEST 

02/24/15 59268 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/24/15 63167 
710-541-7506-00000 

02/24/15 08223 
720-597-7361-00000 

02/24/15 08230 
246-321-7211-00000 

02/24/15 08230 
150-622-7211-00000 
150-450-7211-00000 
150-410-7211-00000 
150-220-7211-00000 
720-597-7211-00000 
150-510-7211-00000 
309-521-7211-00000 
309-521-7211-00000 

02/24/15 08230 
720-596-7211-00000 

02/24/15 08230 
710-530-7211-00000 

STARTER 

0 PACHECO, RAMON 
WASHER REBATE 

0 PACIFIC 4 
GLOVES 

0 PACIFIC CREDIT SERVICES INC 
PRE COLLECT 12/18/14 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
275 MAIN ST 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
REF100761 OBF LOAN W BEACH 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
350 HAMES RD 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
401 PANABAKER 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

16 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304648 

1 304552 

1 304620 

1 304653 

1 304553 

1 304554 

1 3 04 7 62 

1 304677 

1 304657 

1 304555 

1 304661 

1 304736 

$141.21 
141.21 

$1635.00 
1635.00 

$2308.62 
2175.55 

21. 80 
27.82 
83.45 

$250.00 
250.00 

$1248.00 
120.19 
289.18 

9.12 
55.47 
37.06 
51. 60 
11. 36 

167.23 
251.04 

6.08 
42.01 

117.66 
90.00 

$1660.51 
107.26 

1553.25 

$47.00 
47.00 

$1000.00 
1000.00 

$375.00 
375.00 

$160.00 
160.00 

$9300.00 
9300.00 

$1907.31 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

02/24/15 58896 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 08322 
150-280-7351-00409 

02/24/15 55375 
740-572-7324-00023 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 59261 
740-572-7763-17812 

02/24/15 08340 
710-540-7559-00421 
150-680-7533-00000 
710-530-7559-00000 
150-680-7541-00000 
150-410-7325-00000 
150-691-7533-00166 
150-523-7505-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 
150-450-7325-00000 
150-688-7533-00000 
150-690-7325-00000 
730-560-7325-00000 

02/24/15 08343 
710-540-7357-00000 
150-280-7357-00000 

02/20/15 59033 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 61828 
720-596-7774-00000 

02/24/15 59615 
150-690-7361-00000 

02/24/15 08365 
150-680-7359-00000 

02/24/15 59888 
740-575-7702-00000 

02/24/15 66043 

0 PACIFIC MATERIAL HANDLING SOLUTIONS, INC. 
SWITCH 

0 PAJARO VALLEY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
DUES 

0 PAJARO VALLEY FABRICATION INC. 
COMPACTOR REPAIR 
AIRPORT FUEL TRK REPAIR 
SHEAR MATERIAL 
TRUCK 617 REPAIR 

0 PAJARO VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL 
SCHOOL REC CLUB 

0 PAJARO VALLEY LOCK SHOP 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 
PARTS & SERVICE CALLS 

0 PAJARO VALLEY PRINTING 
BRIDGE ST FLYERS 
OUR TOWN NEWSLETTER FEB 2015 

0 PAL POLICE ACTIVITIES LEAGUE 
PAYROLL FOR - 022015 

0 PALO ALTO MEDICAL FOUNDATION 
LANDSCAPE REBATE 

0 PANTHER PROTECTIVE SERVICE INC. 
PATROL SERVICE 

0 PAPA 
EC & RS SEMINAR 

0 PAPE MACHINERY, INC. 
RENTAL 

0 PKT WELDING & FABRICATION 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

17 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304631 

1 304667 

1 304658 

1 304730 

1 304642 

1 304474 

1 304477 

1 304751 

1 11112466 

1 304759 

1 304556 

1 304686 

413.77 
222.33 
799.44 
471. 77 

$666.76 
666.76 

$3142.21 
3142.21 

$885.38 
152.92 
265.45 

16.43 
32.86 
16.20 
32.40 
33.48 

128.00 
30.83 

176.81 

$111. 55 
111. 55 

$100.00 
100.00 

$6800.12 
6800.12 

$15405.82 
15405.82 

$2403.30 
2403.30 

$251119.82 
251119. 82 

$244.29 
244.29 

$1619.84 
337.00 

1282.84 

$100.00 
100.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

740-572-7324-00023 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 56371 
150-510-7533-00000 

02/24/15 60472 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/24/15 59675 
740-570-7559-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
150-620-7702-00000 
150-523-7324-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 

02/24/15 65776 
720-598-7359-00000 

02/24/15 58203 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/18/15 65844 
787-299-7318-00000 

02/18/15 65844 
787-299-7318-00000 

02/20/15 08790 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/20/15 08840 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/20/15 55765 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 08921 
720-600-7501-00000 
720-600-7501-00000 

02/24/15 62813 
720-596-7772-00000 

LABOR DUMPSTERS 
REPAIR 
REPAIR 
TRUCK REPAIR 

0 PLOTTER PROS 
SUPPLIES 

0 POWERPLAN 
REPAIR SERVICE 

0 PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION, INC 
CYLINDER CHARGES 
SUPPLIES 
CYLINDER CHARGES 
WELD SERVICES 
CYLINDER CHARGES 
WELD SERVICE 
WELD SERVICE 
RENTAL 
OXYGEN-WELDING 
WELD SERVICE 

0 PRECIADO, JAMIE 
WATER DIST. SYS OP AND MAINT 

0 PRECIADO, JULIO 
WASHER REBATE 

0 PREFERRED BENEFIT 
CLAIMS W/ENDING 2/05/15 

0 PREFERRED BENEFIT 
CLAIMS W/ENDING 2/12/15 

0 PROF FIRE FIGHTERS-WATSONVILLE 
PAYROLL FOR - 022015 

0 PUBLIC EMP RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
PAYROLL FOR - 022015 

66174 Premiere Credit of North America LLC 
E. GIL 

0 QUILL CORPORATION 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
8529333-SUPPLIES 

0 RAMIREZ, MARIA 
WASHER REBATE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

18 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304557 

1 304688 

1 304558 

1 304756 

1 304600 

1 304676 

1 304559 

1 304575 

1 304641 

1 304647 

$750.95 
151. 95 
599.00 

$26185.50 
26185.50 

$7773.08 
1880.00 
5893.08 

$175.00 
175.00 

$3308.98 
93.83 
76.77 

149.10 
124.74 

35.00 
42.65 

141. 8 0 
19.92 
35.00 

351. 67 
63.09 
45.98 

188.02 
151. 01 

1415.19 
55.97 
55.97 
37.31 
37.31 

188.65 

$100.00 
100.00 

$63.22 
63.22 

$175.00 
175.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$250.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

02/24/15 09140 
150-160-7221-00000 
150-626-7361-00000 

02/24/15 63006 
740-912-7813-22364 

02/24/15 09150 
150-130-7307-00000 
780-294-7303-00037 

02/20/15 51096 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 53134 
150-690-7322-00000 
150-691-7361-00161 
150-315-7322-00000 
710-530-7322-00000 
150-691-7361-00159 
150-688-7361-00000 
720-596-7357-00000 
150-620-7357-00000 
710-540-7324-00000 
710-540-7361-00000 
150-230-7357-00000 
150-450-7322-00000 
150-250-7322-00000 
202-367-7322-00000 
720-600-7357-00000 
150-120-7322-00000 
150-160-7322-00000 
150-210-7322-00000 
150-130-7501-00000 
150-690-7322-00000 

02/24/15 61798 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/24/15 09270 
150-110-7559-00000 

02/24/15 50005 
740-570-7091-00000 

02/24/15 58171 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/24/15 58853 

0 REGISTER PAJARONIAN 
MID YEAR BUDGET 
NON PROFIT RENEWAL 

0 REHRIG PACIFIC COMPANY 
PROPOSAL # CI1615 141215 DATED 

0 REMCHO, JOHANSEN AND PURCELL 
LEGAL SERVICES 
LEGAL SERVICES 

51673 REQUA, DEBRA 
FL003841 C.JOHNSON 

0 RICOH USA, INC. 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 

0 RILLERA, ZOSIMA 
WASHER REBATE 

0 . RIVER NURSERY & FLOWER SHOP 
FLOWER ARRANGEMENT 

0 ROCHA, EDDIE 
BOOT REIMB 

0 ROCHA, NOEL 
WASHER REBATE 

0 ROLLING HILLS MIDDLE SCHOOL 

INVOICE # 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

19 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 PAGE 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304663 

1 304752 

1 304610 

1 304561 

1 304478 

1 304585 

1 304583 

1 304560 

1 304582 

1 304580 

1 304681 

1 304621 

250.00 

$102.00 
102.00 

$9483.24 
9483.24 

$30.00 
30.00 

$2200.00 
2200.00 

$23.57 
23.57 

$2049.20 
1024.60 
1024.60 

$100.00 
100.00 

$60.00 
20.00 
40.00 

$13416.84 
13416.84 

$14929.00 
1132. 00 
1132. 00 
1425.00 
1557.00 
1293.00 
1132. 00 
1425.00 
1132. 00 
1293.00 
1293.00 
2115. 00 

$246.03 
246.03 

$125.00 
125.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

740-572-7763-17812 

02/24/15 60284 
150-692-7343-00162 

02/20/15 09490 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 54172 
740-570-7361-00000 

02/24/15 09547 
740-572-7361-00023 

02/18/15 63029 
150-688-7344-00000 

02/24/15 51698 
720-598-7537-42067 
720-598-7537-42067 

02/24/15 51485 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/24/15 09487 
150-692-7351-00163 
150-692-7351-00210 

02/24/15 51257 
150-162-7307-00000 

SCHOOL REC CLUB 

0 ROTH, DELANEY 
GYM CLASS 

0 S C COUNTY EMP CREDIT UNION 
PAYROLL FOR - 022015 

0 S. MARTINELLI & COMPANY 
SCALE SERVICE 

0 SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, INC. 
HAZ WASTE PROCESSING 

0 SAFEWAY, INC. 
SUPPLIES 

0 SAN BENITO SUPPLY 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 SANCHEZ, SANDRA 
WASHER REBATE 

0 SANCRA 
TEAM REGISTRATION 
TEAM REGISTRATION 

0 SANTA CRUZ COUNTY CLERK 
NOV 4 2014 ELECTION 

INVOICE # 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

02/24/15 50736 
720-596-7369-00000 
720-596-7369-00000 
720-596-7369-00000 
720-596-7369-00000 
720-596-7369-00000 
720-596-7369-00000 
720-596-7369-00000 
720-596-7369-00000 
720-596-7369-00000 
720-596-7369-00000 
720-596-7369-00000 

0 SANTA CRUZ COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERV. OUTSTANDING 
WELL #13 

02/24/15 62101 
740-570-7361-00000 

02/24/15 55409 
740-572-7763-17812 

WELL #8 
WELL #7 &15 
WELL#l7 
WELL#lO 
WELL#18 
WELL #19 
WELL #14 
WELL #2 
WELL #3 
WELL 1&5 

0 SANTA CRUZ SENTINEL 
CLASSIFIED ADVERTISING 

0 SAVE CLUB 
RECYCL TEAM GRANT 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

20 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304143 

1 304733 

1 304562 

1 304753 

1 304713 

1 304735 

1 304577 

1 304140 

1 304695 

1 304754 

1 304687 

1 304665 

$87.56 
87.56 

$3111. 25 
3111. 25 

$206.56 
62.13 

144.43 

$1208.82 
1208.82 

$125.00 
125.00 

$223.00 
223.00 

$113.50 
113. 50 

$360.00 
360.00 

$10291. 00 
5778.00 
4513. 00 

$28.70 
28.70 

$6635.00 
3557.00 
3078.00 

$2268.60 
53.15-
54.02 
56.23 

137.26 
246.15 

28.77 
4.35 
3.26 

50.10 
68.64-
52.30-

130. 71 
84.70 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

02/11/15 62743 
740-570-7232-00000 

02/24/15 65992 
150-250-7322-00000 

02/24/15 09832 
740-572-7232-00000 
720-596-7359-00000 

02/20/15 09882 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 64968 
740-572-7763-17812 

02/24/15 66033 
710-530-7324-00000 

02/24/15 50480 
150-419-7559-00000 

02/11/15 66359 
780-293-7711-00000 

0 SAVE MART SUPERMARKETS 
SW MTG SUPPLIES 

0 SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC USA, INC. 
ADVANTAGE SERV PLAN 

0 SCHWAN INC 
MTG BURRITOS 
LUNCH MTG RAFTELIS CONSULTANTS 

0 SEIU LOCAL 521 
PAYROLL FOR - 022015 

0 SIERRA CATS - WHS 
RECY TEAM WHS 

0 SILKE COMMUNICATIONS 
RADIO BATTERIES 

0 SOLANO, MANUEL 
LODGING EXP JAN 2015 

0 SOLORIO, EMMA 
SETTLEMENT-FENCE DAMAGE 

INVOICE # 

02/24/15 63521 0 SSA LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS, INC. 
281-929-7361-52053 
281-929-7855-52052 

02/20/15 10338 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 62855 
740-572-7361-00023 
740-572-7361-00023 

02/24/15 60391 
150-620-7501-00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
150-450-7501-00000 
150-450-7501-00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
150-450-7501-00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
150-409-7501-00000 

SPORTS FIELD STUDY 
SPORTS FIELD STUDY 

0 ST OF CA FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
L. MANZO 

0 ST VINCENT DE PAUL 
IVC038952,IVC039061 
MATTRESS RECYCLING 

0 STAPLES ADVANTAGE 
CREDIT 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
FIRE OFFICE SUPPLIES 
FIRE OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
CREDIT 
CREDIT 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

21 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304666 

1 304563 

1 304475 

1 304588 

1 304626 

1 304629 

1 304623 

1 304564 

153.70 
26.45 
29. 96 
36.37 

326.99 
103.29 
161.16 

29.40 
152.92 

65.37 
432.58 

71. 85 
68.43 
11. 33-

$1414.18 
168.94 
175.75 

71. 68 
35. 96 

102.19 
88.78 
51. 73 
40.96-

350.29 
93.85 
65.39 
35.95 

214.63 

$734.00 
734.00 

$156.84 
156.84 

$129.24 
129.24 

$359.70 
359.70 

$100.00 
100.00 

$264.50 
50.00 

214.50 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

150-409-7501-00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
202-367-7501-00000 
150-315-7501-00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
150-409-7501-00000 
150-690-7501-00000 
150-690-7501~00000 
150-691-7501-00161 
150-620-7501-00000 
710-540-7559-00000 
150-409-7501-00000 
150-230-7559-00000 
150-409-7501-00000 

02/24/15 60391 

02/24/15 10280 
150-626-7559-00000 
150-691-7803-00186 
150-409-7501-00000 
150-688-7501-00000 
150-691-7501-00159 
150-230-7357-00000 
150-691-7501-00159 
150-230-7357-00000 
150-691-7533-00166 
150-688-7501-00000 
150-220-7324-00000 
150-680-7501-00000 
150-409-7501-00000 

02/18/15 10319 
150-523-7562-00000 

02/24/15 52296 
740-570-7232-00000 

02/24/15 56004 
710-540-7232-00000 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
CDD OFFICE SUPPLIES 
CDD OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
PD OFFICE SUPPLIES 
FIN OFFICE SUPPLIES 
CREDIT 

0 UNISSUED 

0 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
CREDIT 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 

0 STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK 

0 STEELMAN, ROBERT 
SW DIV MTTING EXP 2/2015 

0 STOLZENTHALER, TAMI 
GEELA-ENVIRON ED 

INVOICE # 

02/24/15 56113 
150-523-7505-00000 

0 STREET SCENE ON & OFF ROAD PERFORMANCE 
HITCH FORD ECONOLINE 

02/24/15 55758 
720-596-7771-00000 

02/24/15 10551 
730-560-7361-00000 
730-560-7361-00000 

0 SUGIDONO, SAM 
LOW FLOW TOILET 

0 SUPERIOR ALARM COMPANY 
ALARM SERVICE 
12 VOLT BATTERY 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

UNISSUED 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

22 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 PAGE 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304608 $1858.14 
1858.14 

1 304565 $4678.16 
147.91 
16.01 

351. 70 
344.56 
432.32 
147.63 

1725.74 
170.76 

36. 52 
155.87 
173.31 
119. 00 
162.82 
123.61 
126.50 

76.90 
205.90 
161.10 

87.79 
87.79-

1 304566 $1996. 86 
741. 06 

1255.80 

1 304680 $310.00 
120.00 
190.00 

1 304689 $246.35 
222.28 

24.07 

1 304567 $321.44 
321. 44 

1 304612 $100.00 
100.00 

1 304568 $4543.29 
38.00 
29.90 

104.12 
43.37 

4327.90 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

02/24/15 53924 
740-575-7559-00000 

02/24/15 10680 
740-572-7559-00000 
202-367-7501-00000 
150-315-7501-00000 
710-530-7559-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
150-230-7559-00000 
150-240-7559-00000 
740-572-7559-00023 
710-540-7559-00421 
710-540-7559-00000 
150-220-7324-00000 
150-210-7501-00000 
720-597-7559-00000 
150-120-7501-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 
260-339-7559-00924 
730-560-7501-00000 
150-450-7501-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 

02/24/15 10699 
710-530-7559-00000 
710-530-7559-00000 

02/24/15 62092 
740-572-7361-00000 
150-450-7361-00000 

02/24/15 63011 
150-450-7212-00000 
720-596-7212-00000 

02/24/15 10771 
150-220-7361-00000 

02/24/15 54298 
720-596-7771-00000 

02/24/15 10840 
150-450-7323-00000 
150-690-7325-00000 
740-572-7559-00023 
720-598-7559-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

0 SUTTON AG ENTERPRISES, INC OUTSTANDING 
BIRD CONTROL 

0 TAYLOR'S OFFICE CITY OUTSTANDING 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 

0 TELECOMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS INC. OUTSTANDING 
INSTALL WIRING 
INSTALL WIRING 

0 TERRA X PEST SERVICES, INC. OUTSTANDING 
MONTHLY SERVICE 
PEST CONTROL 

0 THE UPS STORE OUTSTANDING 
JAN STATEMENT 
JAN STATEMENT 

0 TINO'S PLUMBING, INC OUTSTANDING 
CITY HALL BREAKROOM 

0 TOTTEN, MERNA OUTSTANDING 
LOW FLOW TOILET 

0 TOWNSEND AUTO PARTS 
JANUARY STATEMENT 
JANUARY STATEMENT 
JANUARY STATEMENT 
JANUARY STATEMENT 
JANUARY STATEMENT 

OUTSTANDING 

23 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304569 

1 304741 

1 304732 

1 304707 

1 304740 

1 304755 

1 304638 

1 304570 

1 304587 

1 304144 

1 304624 

$1319.62 
623.98 
495.24 
73.41 

126.99 

$7102.18 
3086.39 

420.78 
946.08 

1084.38 
882.86 
681.69 

$12189.08 
4011. 30 
163.39 
326.76 

2344.69 
2834.86 

163.39 
2344.69 

$375.90 
375.90 

$242.91 
242.91 

$199.00 
199.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$44.69 
44.69 

$124.19 
124.19 

$190.40 
190.40 

$643.60 
9.58 

36.79 
228.06 

38.01 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

02/24/15 10924 
720-596-7559-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 
150-622-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 

0 TRI-COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION INC 
SERVICE 

02/24/15 66194 
150-280-7361-00000 
150-620-7361-00000 
710-530-7361-00000 
720-596-7361-00000 
740-570-7361-00000 
730-560-7361-00000 

02/24/15 65990 
150-280-7765-00000 
202-367-7222-00000 
150-620-7222-00000 
710-530-7222-00000 
720-596-7222-00000 
730-560-7222-00000 
740-570-7222-00000 

02/24/15 64529 
150-620-7361-00000 

02/24/15 66130 
730-560-7702-00000 

02/20/15 11070 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 57906 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/24/15 11160 
150-410-7559-00000 

02/24/15 52255 
720-597-7091-00000 

02/11/15 53312 
150-691-7343-00159 

02/24/15 55799 
730-560-7222-00000 
150-315-7222-00000 
150-110-7222-00000 
150-450-7222-00000 

ANNUAL SERVICE 
MAINT SERVICE 
EXTIN SERVICE 

0 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
RESOLUTION N0.83-14(CM) MUNIS 
LIBRARY 
WASTEWATER 
WATER 
SOLID WASTE 
AIRPORT 

0 UNIFY INC. 
SUPPORT 
SUPPORT 
SUPPORT 
SUPPORT 
SUPPORT 
SUPPORT 
SUPPORT 

0 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. 
COLL AGENCY 

0 UNITED SITE SERVICES 
RENTAL 

0 UNITED WAY OF SANTA CRUZ CO 
PAYROLL FOR - 022015 

0 URIBE, GONZALO 
WASHER REBATE 

0 VALLEY FEED 
FOOD FOR K9 

0 VASQUEZ, JOAQUIN 
BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 

0 VELASQUEZ, NATALIA CORDOBA 
ZUMBA DEC/JAN 

0 VERIZON WIRELESS 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

24 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304684 

1 304761 

1 304662 

1 304572 

1 304669 

1 304673 

1 11112468 

1 11112467 

1 304573 

1 304604 

1 304668 

1 304476 

1 304698 

26.02 
279.12 

26.02 

$22565.20 
19710. 51 

2854.69 

$2353.55 
2353.55 

$13336.80 
4120.80 
4308.00 
4908.00 

$105749.64 
68034.18 
37715.46 

$96960.00 
96960.00 

$1239.89 
1239.89 

$207223.28 
103572.98 

72839.22 
30811. 08 

$35143.40 
1691.63 

33451. 77 

$500.00 
500.00 

$220.70 
220.70 

$375.00 
375.00 

$7877.50 
7877.50 

$100.00 
100.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

710-532-7361-00000 
720-596-7222-00000 
150-250-7222-00000 

02/24/15 62757 
710-530-7303-00031 
710-530-7303-00044 

02/20/15 58532 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 59908 
710-540-7361-00421 
710-540-7361-00421 
710-540-7361-00421 

02/24/15 11685 
710-530-7303-00031 
710-530-7303-00031 

02/24/15 60785 
740-912-7855-52147 

02/24/15 61518 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/20/15 11700 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/20/15 10334 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/24/15 11915 
150-410-7559-00000 

02/24/15 53570 
720-597-7232-00000 

02/24/15 60612 
720-596-7774-00000 

02/18/15 64245 
780-291-7712-00000 

02/24/15 63708 
720-596-7772-00000 

CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 

0 WACTOR & WICK LLP 
HEIM V COW 
WATS V HEIM 

0 WAGEWORKS INC 
AF06989 

0 WATSONVILLE WETLANDS WATCH 
AGREEMENT FOR TRAIL, VEGETATIO 
AGREEMENT FOR TRAIL, VEGETATIO 
AGREEMENT FOR TRAIL, VEGETATIO 

0 WEBER, HAYES AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 
HEIM V COW 
HEIM V COW 

0 WESTERN BALER & CONVEYOR, INC. 
REPAIRS TO HARRIS BALER 

0 WILLIAMS EQUIPMENT CO., INC. 
PARTS 

0 WIRE TRANSFER-IRS 
FEDERAL 
STATE 
MEDICARE 

0 WIRE TRANSFER-STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
SDI 77651115 
PIT 80038870 

0 WITMER-TYSON IMPORTS, INC 
KP TRAINING 1/2015 

0 WOLF, MICHAEL 
WATER EFFIC-CONFERENCE 

0 WONG, LILY 
LANDSCAPE REBATE 

0 YORK INSURANCE SERVICES GROUP, INC. 
TRUST DEPOSIT 

0 ZAMUDIO, CARLOS 
WASHER REBATE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

25 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 304574 $1698.01 
1698.01 

1 304703 $437.25 
397. 71 

39.54 

TOTAL # OF ISSUED CHECKS: 

TOTAL # OF VOIDED/REISSUED CHECKS: 

TOTAL # OF ACH CHECKS: 

TOTAL # OF UNISSUED CHECKS: 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 02/11/15 - 02/24/15 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 

02/24/15 12015 
740-570-7324-00000 

02/24/15 64379 
150-620-7322-00000 
150-620-7212-00000 

286 TOTAL AMOUNT: 

0 TOTAL AMOUNT: 

0 TOTAL AMOUNT: 

1 

DESCRIPTION 

0 ZEP VEHICLE CARE, INC. 
PARTS 

0 ZOOM IMAGING SOLUTIONS 
TONER&COPIER CHARGES 
TONER&COPIER CHARGES 

2271706.34 

0.00 

0.00 

INVOICE # 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

26 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 09 SEP 14 16:29 RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:44 PAGE 27 

FUND TOTALS 
----------

FUND FUND NAME ISSUED TOTAL VOIDED/REISSUED TOTAL 
---------------

120 TRUST FUND 275.00 0.00 
130 EMPLOYEE CASH DEDUCTIONS FUND 547,344.72 0.00 
150 GENERAL FUND 199,488.60 0.00 
170 INVESTMENT FUND 425.20 0.00 
202 REDEVELOPMENT OBLIG RETIREMENT 36,285.19 0.00 
204 HOUSING FUND 533.64 0.00 
205 COMMUNITY DEV BLOCK GRANT 20,209.98 0.00 
207 RENTAL REHAB FUND 2,500.00 0.00 
221 INCLUSIONARY HOUSING 59.00 0.00 
246 CIVIC CENTER COMMON AREA 19,373.36 0.00 
250 LIBRARY FUND 6, 881.59 0.00 
260 SPECIAL GRANTS 18,002.90 0.00 
265 PEG -CABLE TV FUND 210.00 0.00 
281 PARKS DEVELOPMENT FUND 10,291.00 0.00 
305 GAS TAX 9,874.57 0.00 
309 PARKING GARAGE FUND 3,788.64 0.00 
710 SEWER SERVICE FUND 334,737.85 0.00 
720 WATER OPERATING FUND 146,565.84 0.00 
730 AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND 127,134.70 0.00 
740 WASTE DISPOSAL FUND 234,297.28 0.00 
780 WORKERS COMP/LIABILITY FUND 49,523.52 0.00 
785 HEALTH INSURANCE FUND 2,303.25 0.00 
787 HEALTH INSURANCE FUND - POOL 501,600.51 0.00 

================ ================ 
TOTAL - 2,271,706.34 0.00 



:,,,, 

.· xEPORT: APED IT 
,·//' 

Batch # 1944 

Account # 

130-000-2050-00000 

GENERATED: 13 JAN 14 15:18 

Account Name 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
GL Offsetting Entries 

Expenditure summary 

PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS PAYABLE 

, 
I 

RUN: THURSDAY FEB192015 13:11 PAGE 10 

Amount Acct Mth Date Acct Mth Total 

$547,344.72 2015/02 02/20/15 $547,344.72 


	Agenda
	Closed Session Cell Tower Appeal Letter
	Item 4.1 Ramsay Softball Lighting Report
	Item 4.1 Ramsay Softball Lighting Resolution
	Item 4.2 School Crossing Upgrades Report
	Item 4.2 School Crossing Upgrades Resolution
	Item 4.3a Manana Lane Sewer Report
	Item 4.3b Mañana Lane Authorization for Loan Resolution
	Item 4.3c Mañana Lane Pledging Revenue and Fund Resolution
	Item 4.3d Mañana Lane Reimbursement Resolution
	Item 4.4 Library Board District 3 Application
	Item 4.4 Library Board District 3 Resolution
	Item 4.5 Library Board District 4 Application
	Item 4.5 Library Board District 4 Resolution
	Item 4.6 Latino Affairs Commission Resolution
	Item 4.7 Hazmat Commission Resolution
	Item 4.8 Amendment SA Fourth Loan Agrmt Report
	Item 4.8 Amendment SA Fourth Loan Agrmt Resolution
	Item 6.1a CAP Climate Action Plan Report
	Item 6.1e CAP Climate Action Plan Resolution
	Item 6.1f CAP Initial Study Neg Dec Resolution
	Item 6.1g CAP Carbon Fund Ordinance
	Item 8.1a Chromium 6_Raftelis_Corona Contracts Report
	Item 8.1e Chromium 6_Corona Resolution
	Item 8.1f Raftelis Contract Resolution
	Untitled



